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ABOUT HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

R 7 7 S S P S A TR 2 B

COMPANY HISTORY

In 1977, the family of Dr CHA Chi Ming, the late founder and chairman of the Group, acquired the equity interest
of Hong Kong Resort Company Limited (“Hong Kong Resort”) which is the registered owner and developer of
Discovery Bay on Lantau Island. The shares of Hong Kong Resort and the other Group company were once
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1987 and in 1988 and 1989 respectively. During the
years 1988 and 1989, the Group underwent a series of reorganisation and scheme of arrangement and formed
HKR International Limited in May 1989 as its new listed holding company carrying on principally real estate
development and other related businesses.

Today, HKR International Limited is a constituent of the Hang Seng Composite Index Series under the stock
code of 480. It has diversified interests in real estate development and investment, property management, luxury
hotels and serviced apartments, property related manufacturing, healthcare services and other investments in
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Asia.
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OUR VISION, MISSION & VALUES
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VISION

MISSION
fi

VALUES
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To be the pioneer of innovative living space

HERFTHE BIEEZER

We strive to create a healthy, stylish and distinctive living experience
through teamwork and passionate pursuit of innovation and excellence

HREES - BIFTRE  BHRK - BERAK

Proneer
Break new grounds

HERRHFT

INTEGRITY

Uphold high ethical
standards
EXFa1E

T RIS A% FE R

Respect

Value the individual and
cherish our environment

BAEL

Devotion

Be committed and
passionate

RLME "

INNOVATION
Think outside the box
FEA A8

ExcELLENCE

Consistency in the
pursuit of our quality
standards

IEREE
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SIGNATURE PROJECTS

AREMEMEEIEH

Mainland China

R 58 P
DAZHONGLI,
S I—MN GHAI
Bk
Total planned GFA
o B

323,000

Located in the Jingan district, the Dazhongli project is
a world class mixed-use development comprising two
super Grade-A office towers, three luxury hotels and
a prime retail mall. It is scheduled for completion by
phases from 2015 onwards.
HEZEMNAPEEESHABNGEERYE B
MEBSERRAPLE = REXBHER—ESRK
R HERK - TEETR 2015 FHE D PEERTEMX o

THE EXCHANGE,
TLAN IN

KRG

Total GFA

AR A

152,000«

The Exchange, the Group’s investment
property, comprises two office towers, a
retail mall and a hotel.
RERSERENKREYE  AME
MAERIE - BYHORRERER
B o

Hong Kong

DISCOVERY BAY
1

Total GFA

AT TR -

716,857 w

Located on Lantau Island, Discovery Bay is the Group’s
flagship residential project comprising garden houses,
low, mid and high rise developments, a 27-hole golf
course, a marina, two residents clubs, a manmade
beach, two international schools and two shopping
malls.
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Singapore
i

THE SENTOSA
RESORT & SPA

Total GFA
At T

28,988

Atop a cliff on Sentosa Island, The Sentosa
Resort & Spa is a stylish and luxury resort in
lush greenery, minutes away from downtown
Singapore. It is highly acclaimed for its award
winning Spa Botanica.
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Japan
HORIZON PLACE

AKASAKA,
TOKYO ¥ 3¢

Total Floor Area
AETHIA -

8,503

Thailand

RIH

THE SUKHOTHAI
RESIDENCES,
BANGKOK E2 4

Total GFA
A T

79,21 1 m?
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unit Horizon Place Akasaka is located
in Akasaka, Minato-ku of Tokyo. It is
well connected with many of Tokyo’s
landmarks and boasts a panoramic view of
skyscrapers.

EEMN2010FEA - HHMUEEME
Horizon Place AkasakafiZ X 78 & K
IR EERRSEEEMT - LHEE
PG R E R KEREL ©

The Sukhothai Residences is located next to
The Sukhothai hotel on South Sathorn Road.
This ultra luxury 41-storey condominium tower
is targeted for completion in 2011.

The Sukhothai Residencesfiz 7 South Sathorn
Road®)The SukhothailBijE 5532 - 15 EE =41
EBrRBHEEABENFEEREEANN2011F
BT o

THE SUKHOTHAI i

HOTEL,
BANGKOK 22
Total GFA

AR T A

39,062

The Sukhothai is a world-renowned and
award-winning hotel in Central Bangkok,
highly regarded by international travellers
for its unparalleled services and facilities.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF

THE YEAR
FEAEHE

2010

The Group acquired Horizon Place Akasaka, a
94-unit apartment building in Akasaka of Tokyo, for
investment purposes. Another luxury 18-unit block in

Roppongi known as Homat Sun was purchased shortly
afterwards in July.

J SEBAUNRERARE  HEUFESBLZHEETKE
' Horizon Place Akasaka{EIx &A% @ EigR7 ABE AL
RARARARRE - HE 18EE R A= EESE Homat Sun °

The Group, through a joint-venture company
set up with its Thai partner, acquired a piece

of freehold land on Wireless Road in Bangkok
at a total consideration of Thai Baht 2.5 billion
(approximately HK$651.7 million) for future
development of high-end residential projects.

SEFERA—FREFBEBHEKNIHELER
a)  LA25{EZREk (H6517EBL) BA |
— AT 2 A Wireless Road i)k AEHE+ &
- BERBREETER -

The Group acquired a seven-storey industrial building on Fui Yiu Kok Street in Tsuen Wan for
HK$140 million. Redevelopment is being planned.

SEN1ARETBA-BURNZERE AT B LENTIEAE @ 852 -

A new clinic of Qualigenics,
a subsidiary of the Group’s
healthcare unit GenRx
Holdings Limited, opened in
Tsuen Wan.
SEETEEBRRERS
WRENIERAER AT ZHE
NREERRE  EXERAR
810
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2010

The Group and its partner Swire Properties secured a

13-year RMB8 billion syndicated loan facility for the

construction and development of the Dazhongli project

in Jingan district of Shanghai.

SENHEIEEHALMER HEFTR AP EE

BMEZELRERREG-ELAMIIF - REAARE
L, BOBTTHIREERAEE -

The Sukhothai hotel in Bangkok was named one
of “The 50 Best Hotels in the World” by the Daily
Telegraph UK.

2 A 2 A K The Sukhothai & /& % % B 3§ = Daily
Telegraphi® 4 [ The 50 Best Hotels in the World | 2

o

Phase 14 of Discovery Bay, the latest high-end residential development in Discovery Bay, was
officially named “Amalfi”.

REBZHNE A RREFERRBEEAGRARRE]

MAR The Group disposed of its 50% interest in Discovery Park Shopping Centre in Tsuen Wan for
— about HK$1.41 billion.

SEUN 141 EETHERESERSITMBY RIS A 50% #: -
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CHAIRMAN'S

STATEMENT
¥R

| would like to present the Annual Report of HKR International Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the
Financial Year 2010/2011 (“the year”).

The property market in Hong Kong has been very buoyant due to the devaluation of Hong Kong Dollars in
relationship to Renminbi and most of the other currencies. There seems to be an influx of interest in Hong Kong
properties.

Inflation is a constant pressure in most parts of the world and it has been a major worry to a lot of investors and
prospective home owners.

With the interest rate in Hong Kong nearing zero, although the government is trying to slow down the upward
pressure of housing prices by introducing a series of policies aiming at stabilising the market and reduce the up
trend, yet, the market still continues to go up.

The Group is cautiously optimistic about the local property market. While keeping close watch of opportunities
available to us, we are also seeking opportunities beyond Hong Kong to other Asian markets that might offer
good opportunities to increase our profit margin. The public auction prices of Hong Kong properties continue to
increase and make it difficult for us to increase our inventory.
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Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson
Chairman
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
F Rk

SOLID FINANCIALS

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year was HK$1,647.9 million and earnings per share
were HK$1.22, compared to a profit of HK$1,890.8 million (restated) and earnings per share of HK$1.40 in
2009/2010. Turnover for the year was HK$1,800.7 million, compared to HK$1,839.8 million recorded in the
previous year. As of 31 March 2011, the net asset value of the Group stood at HK$13,571.7 million (HK$10.1
per share), up 15% from last year's HK$11,784.3 million (HK$8.7 per share) (restated).

The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of HK11 cents per share for the year. Together with
the interim dividend of HK7 cents per share, the total dividend amounted to HK18 cents per share for the year.
In 2009/2010, a total dividend of HK18 cents per share was paid to shareholders.

ASSETS ENHANCEMENTS

In Hong Kong, we redeemed all issued zero coupon convertible bonds due 2010 and disposed of the 50%
interest in Discovery Park Shopping Centre in Tsuen Wan. We also bought an industrial building on Fui Yiu Kok
Street in Tsuen Wan for redevelopment.

Amalfi, Phase 14 of Discovery Bay, is planned for sales launch in 2011 and is expected to attract keen market
interest given its superior quality. Following the opening of the DB North Plaza in 2010, the deluxe resort hotel
in Yi Pak would open for business in 2012, and is set to transform Discovery Bay from a purely up-market
residential development to an unparalleled oceanfront integrated resort in Hong Kong.

In Shanghai, our flagship project in Dazhongli of the Jingan district was progressing on schedule. A 13-year
RMB8 billion syndicated loan facility was secured for the project, further boosting its financial position.

In Bangkok, we joined hands with our Thai partner to acquire a piece of freehold land on Wireless Road for
future development. Our ultra-luxury condominium tower, The Sukhothai Residences, is also scheduled for re-
launch in 2011.

In Japan, apart from DIA Palace Sapporo Higashi Actio acquired in 2008, we purchased another two residential
buildings during the year, namely Horizon Place Akasaka and Homat Sun, both in Tokyo. All three properties are
being held for investment purposes, providing a stable income stream to the Group.

Although occupancy of The Sukhothai hotel and Siri Sathorn serviced residences was affected by Thailand’s
political instability, business of The Sentosa Resort & Spa was picking up on the back of a strong growth in tourist
arrivals in Singapore. More importantly, these hotels and resorts continue to serve and impress visitors from
around the world, delivering outstanding services and clinching international awards.

Meanwhile, GenRx Holdings Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary engaging in premium healthcare
services, continues to expand and strengthen its medical and dental networks across Asia.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHE

OUTLOOK

As mentioned before we are cautiously optimistic on the local property market. Perhaps due to the relative
difference between Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi, we are seeing a lot more buyers from China. We think
that our project in Discovery Bay will attract a lot of buyers. We added a new shopping centre and we will be
putting up a new hotel into the market, all in Discovery Bay. HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd and other wholly-owned
subsidiaries will continue to explore and enhance the profit margin of HKR International Limited.

APPRECIATION

During the year, Mr Benjamin Cha was appointed to the Board as an Executive Director. | would like to take this
opportunity to thank all Board Directors for their tremendous contribution over the years. We have benefited
from their professional knowledge and insightful advice. | would also like to thank our business partners for their
continued support, our shareholders for their confidence in the Group and all staff for the hard work and loyalty.
Hands in hands, we shall continue to create values for all stakeholders and shareholders, and serve the markets
in which we operate as a good corporate citizen.

i#a&méﬂﬁﬁ——”““u
CHA Mou Sing Payson

Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 June 2011
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MANAGING
DIRECTORS REPORT
BEARHEE

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

) 8 S A R

During the Financial Year 2010/2011, we were busy bolstering our financial strength and enhancing our asset
portfolio across Asia. The key objective is to ensure that the Group has the right resources, at the right time, to
capture further growth opportunities in the region. We are looking to strengthen our business presence in Hong
Kong and beyond, especially in Mainland China, Thailand and Japan.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We have all along been very conscious in strengthening the Group’s financial position and were enjoying a low
gearing ratio of 8.4% as of 31 March 2011. During the year, we fully redeemed the issued HK$1.41 billion zero
coupon convertible bonds due 2010, in the outstanding principal amount of HK$647 million. We also disposed
of our 50% interest in Discovery Park Shopping Centre, Tsuen Wan, to our partner New World Group at around
HK$1.41 billion.

Financially, we are in good shape to undertake more selective projects that will offer good investment potentials
and excellent return. For example, in October 2010, we bought a seven-storey industrial building on Fui Yiu Kok
Street in Tsuen Wan for HK$140 million. Redevelopment is being planned.

Construction works of Phase 14 of Discovery Bay would complete soon. We have named this latest Phase “Amalfi”,
the spectacular sea view of which is comparable to the famous coastal resort of “Amalfi Coast” in Southern
Italy. Comprising three mid-rise blocks with a total size of about 168,000 square feet GFA, Amalfi is planned for
sales launch in the third quarter of 2011. Given the Group’s well-respected brand name and Amalfi’s premium
positioning, we are confident that this latest development would be met with overwhelming market response.
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Meanwhile, construction works of Phase 15 of Discovery Bay, with a total size of about 187,697 square feet GFA,
are in good progress. Sales plan would be formulated in due course.

The deluxe 325-room resort hotel in Discovery Bay is scheduled for soft opening in mid-2012. Interior fitting out
works are now progressing smoothly. Boasting a magnificent spa and a seaside wedding chapel, the hotel will
be a welcome retreat for business and leisure travellers from around the world, as well as a uniquely romantic
banquet venue for the newlyweds.

Discovery Bay saw the opening of an increasing number of trendy shops and gourmet restaurants at its new
201,000-square-feet DB North Plaza. With the launch of more residential developments, the new hotel and new
shopping centre, as well as the oceanfront alfresco dining hub of D Deck, Discovery Bay is being continuously
developed and transformed into an integrated community and an iconic resort where residents and visitors alike
can enjoy unparalleled and stylish living, shopping and dining experiences.

In Shanghai, foundation works of the Dazhongli project in Jingan district will commence within 2011. Schematic
Design of the development has been submitted for approval. In December 2010, with our partner Swire
Properties Limited, we secured a 13-year syndicated loan facility that would provide working capital for the
construction and development of the project. With a planned GFA of approximately 323,000 square metres, this
world-class mixed-use development is expected to complete in phases from 2015 onwards, bringing to the city and
its people two super Grade-A office towers, three luxury hotels and a prime retail mall. Located in the very heart
of the city centre, with excellent connection to the airport, the Metro system, high-speed railway and the freeway
network, the Dazhongli project is in a class of its own and cannot be easily replicated. As a multi-component
commercial development, it is less susceptible to economic cycles and policy risks. We are confident that it would
become a strong performer and a key profit contributor for the Group in the years to come. We will spare no efforts
in making the Dazhongli project a new landmark that Shanghai, as well as the Group, would be proud of!

In Bangkok, we formed a joint-venture company with our Thai partner to acquire a piece of freehold land on
Wireless Road, at a total consideration of Thai Baht 2.5 billion (approximately HK$651.7 million). The land, with
a site area of approximately 12,666 square metres, would be held for future development of high-end residential
projects.

Construction of The Sukhothai Residences, our ultra-luxury 41-storey condominium tower adjacent to the legendary
hotel - The Sukhothai - is almost completed. About 71% of the 196 units have been sold and they would be handed
over to buyers in 2011. The remaining units would be put on the market around end of 2011.

In Japan, in addition to the 39-unit residential building of DIA Palace Sapporo Higashi Actio (Sapporo, Hokkaido)
acquired earlier, we bought the 94-unit Horizon Place Akasaka (Akasaka, Tokyo) and the 18-unit Homat Sun
(Roppongi, Tokyo) in May and July 2010 respectively. All three properties are being held for investment purposes
and have provided the Group with a steady rental income.

Impact of the devastating earthquake and tsunami that struck northeast Japan in March 2011 on its
economy cannot be underestimated. Yet, as the Japanese government mobilises huge resources to engage in
reconstruction, reinvestment and fiscal reforms, we remain cautiously optimistic about the country’s recovery and
are now closely monitoring the situation on the ground.
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On the hospitality front, while the occupancy of The Sukhothai hotel and Siri Sathorn serviced residences in
Bangkok was hampered by the political instability in Thailand, The Sentosa Resort & Spa, our luxury spa resort in
Singapore, achieved encouraging results. Occupancy rate increased to 72% thanks to the rise in tourist arrivals
in the country. Both The Sukhothai hotel and The Sentosa Resort & Spa also won local and international acclaims
during the year. For example, The Sukhothai hotel was named one of “The 50 Best Hotels in the World” by the
Daily Telegraph UK while The Sentosa Resort & Spa was named one of the “Best Hotels - Resorts” in “The Best
of Singapore 2011” award organised by Singapore Tatler magazine.

GenRx Holdings Limited, our wholly-owned subsidiary that operates a comprehensive medical and dental service
network in Asia, continued to provide professional services to customers in Hong Kong, Shanghai, Guangzhou,
Macau and Manila, achieving a satisfactory turnover of HK$409.4 million. New clinics are being opened to
expand GenRx’s network.

PROSPECTS

Barring unforeseen circumstances, both the global and local economies are on their long-term paths to recovery.
We remain cautiously optimistic about the economic outlook in Asia and the healthy development of the Hong
Kong property market, notwithstanding short-term volatility following the introduction of new tightening measures
by the government. The low interest rate, abundant liquidity, improved job market, limited supply of residential
flats and solid demand for housing would continue to contribute to a vibrant market.

As we consolidate our strong foothold in Hong Kong, which remains our base of operations, we would be
leveraging on our combined expertise in property development and investment, hospitality management and
healthcare service provision to capture, and where appropriate create, new opportunities that will allow the Group
to further develop, diversify, and expand in Asia.

We will also strengthen our communications with all stakeholders, in particular the investment community, so
as to enhance the Group’s transparency and to ensure that the Group’s strength and values, as well as our
directions, are known and appreciated by the market.

Meticulous and clearly defined strategies are being vigorously executed by dedicated staff under the inspirational
leadership of the Board. | would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to all our Board Directors
and committed staff for working together towards building a stronger HKR International Limited.

Vit

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
Hong Kong, 22 June 2011
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DISCOVERY BAY
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Hotel in Yi Pak ]
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Amalfi & Phase 15 Development

Construction works of Amalfi, Phase 14 of Discovery Bay, are well on schedule. Comprising three mid-rise blocks
with a size of about 168,000 square feet GFA, Amalfi was given an occupation permit in February and is planned
for sales launch in the third quarter of 2011. With the Group’s strong brand equity in creating innovative lifestyle
and Amalfi’'s exceptional quality, we believe the project would be very well-received by the market.

Receiving an occupation permit together with Amalfi was Phase 15 of Discovery Bay, the latest development with
a total size of about 187,697 square feet GFA. Construction works are in good progress and sales plan would be
formulated in due course.

Hotel in Yi Pak

The deluxe resort hotel on the waterfront of Yi Pak Bay is scheduled for soft opening in mid-2012. Internal
fitting-out works are in progress and expected to complete by the end of 2011. Boasting unobstructed sea view,
alfresco dining, a Spa Botanica and state-of-the-art banquet and meeting facilities, the 325-room hotel will cater
to all types of functions from meetings, corporate training, wedding banquets to large gala events.

Opening alongside the hotel will be Hong Kong's first seaside wedding chapel. With floor-to-ceiling glass windows
offering 180° sea view and a capacity of 100 guests, this 16-metre white chapel will be the venue of choice for
romantic weddings.

Whether for vacation, business meeting, wedding or romantic getaway, guests will enjoy a complete resort
experience in Discovery Bay.
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DB North Plaza & DB Plaza

The tenant mix of DB North Plaza, the up-market lifestyle shopping centre in Yi Pak, was further diversified as
new shops and restaurants opened during the year. With more than 200,000 square feet GFA of shops and office
units, the shopping centre will continue to bring great products and services to the community.

Being the largest oceanfront alfresco dining hotspot in Hong Kong, D Deck has remained diners’ firm favourite.
About 20 thematic restaurants at D Deck, along the waterfront promenade connecting Tai Pak Beach, offer
mouthwatering international cuisines and unique dining experience for gourmets. Creative publicity campaigns
are being launched to promote D Deck as a paradise of delicacies. DB Plaza, privileged with D Deck, achieved
an occupancy rate of 97% as at 31 March 2011 and generated a stable rental income for the Group.

The Bounty

The Bounty, a 42-metre European tall ship replica which resides in Discovery Bay, has become an icon of local
waters since she arrived in Hong Kong in 2007. As the only European tall ship in Hong Kong, The Bounty was
chartered by international firms, professional groups and associations as well as individuals for a wide range
of functions, including large-scale international conferences, corporate entertainment, team-building activities,
private theme parties and weddings etc.
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Discovery Bay Services

In order to provide added transportation convenience and flexibility to Discovery Bay residents, Hong Kong Resort
Company Limited, the Group’s 50%-owned subsidiary, has applied to the Transport Department for the introduction
of a strictly controlled taxi service for Discovery Bay. The application is being considered by the Government.

The patronage of bus rose slightly during the year and bus services for DB North Plaza were enhanced to provide
shoppers and diners added convenience. Ferry service remains a comfortable and convenient transport mode for
residents.

The clubs in Discovery Bay recorded a stable turnover during the year and they will continue to upgrade their
facilities to cope with the rising expectation of club members. Meanwhile, the Group’s property management
services company continued to deliver professional service to Discovery Bay residents.



T s L [0 P 4R A B ]
2010/2011 4E#t

RTREREERFAENEREMABENALY SRR 0% EZNNBARETEHXERA
AEMERZERBEMRESIAZBEBEN 2NLRS - B EAEEILEBHE -

MREETHRFENFREAMT - MESIEBSHELRBELMSE - B MBENEERHES
BEGERS - Zm—rmE - EmRFIDRERT AN —RREFEnENATA -

MREBNSANEFENERFRENEERE  TREBEE(CRE - MEASETEHRINENR - AR - &
BETHMEEERG A RBHEE R REEREHEERS -

Club Siena
s R

27



28

HKR International Limited
Annual Report 2010/2011

%PERATIONS REVIEW - HONG KONG

B - &

LFEER A
Market Recognition LE LY ™)
Thirty years on, the unique planning and comprehensive development
e
of Discovery Bay continued to win recognition from the market. In E T

October 2010, Hong Kong Resort Company Limited was given the

honor of “SEfFAJE o H1&T A [EREAZ 48" organised by Wen Wei Po
newspaper for development of the Discovery Bay project.

The Group has a 50% interest in Discovery Bay.

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT

The Group’s long-term commercial and industrial property investment portfolios continue to record strong
performance and generate stable rental revenue. As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s wholly-owned Joyce Building
in Wong Chuk Hang, CDW Building in Tsuen Wan and West Gate Tower in Cheung Sha Wan attained occupancy
rates of 100%, 93% and 93% respectively.

To further enhance its property investment portfolio, the Group acquired a seven-storey industrial building on Fui
Yiu Kok Street in Tsuen Wan for HK$140 million in October 2010. Redevelopment is being planned. Meanwhile,
the Group disposed of its 50% interest in Discovery Park Shopping Centre in Tsuen Wan in March 2011 for about
HK$1.41 billion. The Group will seek to generate more profits through strategic acquisition and disposal.

HANISON

Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (“Hanison”), the Group’s 49%-owned associated company engaging
primarily in construction business, interior and renovation business, supply and installation of building materials,
and property investment and development, delivered a positive performance and recorded an increase in profit
from HK$109.2 million last year to HK$156 million this year. This favourable result was mainly attributable to the
gain on change in fair value of investment properties and recognition of profit from sales of the remaining units of
One LaSalle, a 50%-owned luxury low-rise residential development in Kowloon Tong. Despite the fact that market
competition remains keen, Hanison will continue to control cost and identify businesses with good potential.
During the year, Sau Mau Ping South Estate, a construction project of Hanison, received a “Grand Award” of the
“Green Building Award 2010, jointly organised by the Hong Kong Green Building Council and the Professional
Green Building Council, under the New Buildings Category — Hong Kong for residential project. This award and
the awards Hanison have received throughout the years serve to recognise Hanison’s commitment to its core
businesses.
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DAZHONGLI PROJECT IN JINGAN DISTRICT, SHANGHAI
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The Dazhongli project in the Jingan district of Shanghai, scheduled for completion by phases from 2015
onwards, will become one of the most iconic and magnificent landmarks in Puxi in the 21st century, grabbing the
attention of the whole city.

The concept of the Dazhongli project is to create the most exclusive address and most stylish social hub in
Shanghai, blending business with leisure, entertainment with culture. With a planned GFA of approximately
323,000 square metres, the Dazhongli project comprises two super Grade-A office towers (168,000 square
metres), three luxury hotels (56,000 square metres) and a prime retail mall (99,000 square metres) where all
the high-end brands and famed restaurants are to be found. Few developments in Shanghai rival the Dazhongli
project in terms of scale, diversity and class. For the locals and visitors alike, the Dazhongli project will be the
place to be, to shop, to dine, to see and to be seen!

The Dazhongli project has access to superior transportation infrastructure and enjoys unparalleled connectivity
to the whole country and the world. Located in the very heart of the city centre, it is bounded on the north by
Nanjing West Road, on the west by Shimenyi Road (across the Four Seasons Hotel), on the south by Weihai
Road, and on the east by Qinghai Road (across the Shanghai TV Building). The Yan An Expressway and North-
South Expressway are just a stone’s throw away. What's more, it would connect seamlessly with Nanjing West
Road Station of Metro Line 13 and its affiliated facilities, construction works of which are to commence in June.
Meanwhile, Metro Lines 2, 12 and 13 will converge at an interchange to be built close to the site, linking the
Dazhongli project to all major transportation hubs and nodal points in Shanghai, including the two international
airports in Pudong and Honggiao, the high-speed railway and the freeway network.
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The Dazhongli project will also be a showcase project of the Jingan district’s vision to create a modern
commercial hub. It is considered by the local government to be a key development project that would contribute
significantly to the economic development of the city. We will spare no efforts to make it another signature project
of the Group. We have already submitted the Schematic Design of the development for approval. Foundation
works are planned to commence in the second half of 2011. In December 2010, a 13-year syndicated loan
facility was secured to fund construction and development of the project.

We are confident in the long-term economic growth of China and are particularly optimistic about the commercial
property market in Shanghai, which has remained buoyant in recent years. Market rent of comparable properties
in the vicinity is around RMB12 per square metre per day for prime office and RMB65 per square metre per
day for prime retail (ground floor). As an integrated commercial development in a class of its own, the Dazhongli
project would be able to fetch a premium in rental level. Target commercial clienteles would include world
famous consumer brands eager to tap the huge business potential of the Chinese market and multinational
corporations planning to set up headquarters in Shanghai. We expect that the Dazhongli project would perform
well when completed and would generate a strong and steady income stream for the Group in the years to come,
allowing us to share the economic growth of one of the largest economies in the world.

The Dazhongli project is jointly developed by the Group and Swire Properties Limited. The Group has a 50%
interest in the project.

Artist’'s impression of the Dazhongli project
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CHELSEA RESIDENCE, SHANGHAI

Renovation and upgrading works of Chelsea Residence, the deluxe property launched for strata-title sale earlier
on Huashan Road, were completed during the year. As of 31 March 2011, 111 of the 116 units (96%) were sold
and all of these units have been handed over to buyers subsequently.

THE EXCHANGE, TIANJIN

The Exchange, the Group’s 15%-owned investment property in Tianjin, comprises a retail mall, two office towers
and a hotel. With a total GFA of over 152,000 square metres, The Exchange continues to generate stable rental
income for the Group. During the year, the average occupancy rates of the retail mall, the office towers and the
hotel were 100%, 87% and 59% respectively.
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The Sukhothai Residences [ &
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REAL ESTATE

Construction works of The Sukhothai Residences, the Group’s high-end freehold residential development in
Bangkok, are targeted for completion in the third quarter of 2011 and the handover of units to flat owners will
commence in the fourth quarter.

As at 31 March 2011, 139 units of this ultra luxury 41-storey condominium tower were sold, representing 71% of
the 196 units, at an average selling price of Thai Baht 226,494 per square metre (approximately HK$5,400 per
square foot). The remaining units are scheduled for sales relaunch around end of 2011.

Meanwhile, a joint-venture company was set up by the Group and its Thai partner to acquire a piece of freehold
land on Wireless Road in Bangkok at a consideration of about Thai Baht 2.5 billion (approximately HK$651.7
million). With a site area of about 12,666 square metres, the land will be held for future development of high-end
residential projects.

The Group continues to explore new investment opportunities in Japan in order to add values to its investment
portfolio in Asia. During the year, the Group bought two investment properties in Tokyo, namely Horizon Place
Akasaka (a 94-unit apartment building in Akasaka) and Homat Sun (a luxury low-rise development with
18 units in Roppongi). Together with DIA Palace Sapporo Higashi Actio (a 39-unit residential building in Sapporo)
acquired earlier in Sapporo, the three properties generated a steady rental income for the Group.
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HOSPITALITY

The tourism industry of Thailand had been hard hit by the political unrest since March 2010. The Group’s
hospitality business in Bangkok however picked up gradually as the city became calm again in late May 2010.
During the year, The Sukhothai hotel and Siri Sathorn serviced residences recorded average occupancy rates
of 49% and 52% respectively. Their performances are expected to improve continuously as long as the political
situation remains stable.

The Sukhothai hotel

The Sukhothai hotel, renowned for its unparalleled service quality, continued to receive numerous accolades in

spite of the unfavourable operating environment. It was named one of “The 50 Best Hotels in the World” by the
Daily Telegraph UK in January 2011, and was ranked 17th in “The World’s Best Hotels 2010” by the Institutional
Investor magazine in December 2010. It was also voted by readers of Conde Nast Traveler magazine as one of “The
Top 100 Hotels in Asia” in the “Readers’ Choice Awards” in November 2010 and one of the top hotels on the “2011
Gold List” in January 2011.
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In Singapore, the hospitality sector remained robust due to the strong market demand for accommodation.
Although the hotel room supply in Singapore had surged by more than 10% since the beginning of 2010 and
competition had intensified, The Sentosa Resort & Spa, the Group’s luxury spa resort in Singapore, managed to
deliver a strong performance during the year. It attained an average occupancy rate of 72%, representing a 15%
increase year-on-year.

The Sentosa Resort & Spa

The Sentosa Resort & Spa also clinched a number of awards during the year. It was named one of the “Best
Hotels — Resorts” in “The Best of Singapore 2011” award organised by Singapore Tatler magazine in November
2010. Spa Botanica, Singapore’s first garden destination spa, won the prestigious titles of the “Best Luxury Resort
Spa” and “Best Luxury Destination Spa” in the “World Luxury Spa Awards 2011” in April 2011. It was also
voted the “Best Spa” in the “I-S Magazine Annual Readers’ Choice Awards 2011" in March 2011 and the “Best
Getaway” in the “Harper’s Bazaar Spa Awards 2011 in February 2011.
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HEALTHCARE

With its leading position in the private healthcare sector, GenRx Holdings Limited (“GenRx"), the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiary, continues to grow its business by capitalising on the rising demand for quality private medical
services in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Southeast Asia. Its comprehensive service network comprises cancer
centres, dental clinics, diabetic and cardiovascular centres, and multi-specialty outpatient centres. During the year,
GenRx further expanded its medical service network as the number of patients/customers increased. A new clinic of
Qualigenics, a subsidiary specialising in diabetes treatment, was opened in Tsuen Wan in October 2010. “Greenbelt
5” clinic, the seventh branch of Healthway Philippines, another subsidiary of GenRx, opened in Makati City of the
Philippines in April 2011. Turnover for the year was reported at HK$409.4 million, similar to the result of last year.
Strategic reorganisation of certain clinic business in Mainland China was carried out to reduce operating costs and
allow the management focusing on the majority of the well performing operations in Hong Kong and Manila.

SANITARYWARE

The financial tsunami coupled with a shortage of skilled labour, especially in the casting sector in the southern
part of Mainland China in early 2010, caused a slowdown in production of Imperial Bathroom Products Limited
(“Imperial”), the Group’s sanitaryware unit. However, with the situation gradually improving in the second half of
2010, Imperial resumed to deliver a positive result during the year.

SECURITIES INVESTMENT

During the year, the Group recorded a net profit of HK$14.9 million for its investment in securities, comprising
interest and dividend income, as well as gain on disposal of certain unlisted equity securities.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had 10,265,500 shares in Sino-Ocean Land Holdings Limited. The investment
is classified as available-for-sale financial asset.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had a total
of 3,268 employees in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and overseas. In view of its business
diversification and expansion in new markets,
the Group revisited and updated its Vision,
Mission and Values during the year to ensure
that its corporate objectives and directions are
accurately captured and clearly conveyed to
all staff. The move would also help strengthen
the Group’s employer brand.
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The Group continued to adopt best practices in human resources management to attract, develop and retain
talents. An Account Management System was launched to allow Human Resources Account Managers to gain
a more in-depth understanding of the needs of various business units, making it easier for them to find the right
person for the right job. In May 2011, as a result of a candidate experience survey using “mystery shopper”
approach conducted by HR Magazine, the Group won the award of “Best Performer in e-Recruitment 2011” for
its outstanding online recruitment system.

To ensure leadership continuity, the Group cascaded the Succession Planning and Talent Review process to
business unit level so as to identify and develop high-potential employees throughout the Group. A series of
competency-based training workshops, such as on coaching, influencing skills and supervisory management,
was also designed to equip employees with the right skills to achieve business objectives.

On talent retention, the Group is committed
to enhancing its total rewards and promoting
employee well-being. During the year, a 5-day
work week was introduced and the medical
scheme was upgraded. A series of seminars
under the theme of “Creating a Happy
Workforce” was organised and a Caring
Programme was also launched to provide
comprehensive on-boarding support to new
recruits at senior staff level.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group continued to enhance its competitiveness and operational efficiency through utilisation of information
technology during the year.

In April 2011, the Group’s Unwired Defect Tracking System, won the “Certificate of Merit” in the “Hong Kong
ICT Awards 2011" organised by Hong Kong Wireless Technology Industry Association and the Hong Kong
Productivity Council. The System, which runs on the latest handheld devices with touch-screen technology,
would enable the inspectors of a property developer to mark up defects, take photos and draw on the floor plans
off-line on site as these devices would synchronise with the office system when a wireless connection is available.

The Group also won an award for its online recruitment system as mentioned under the Human Resources
section above. Meanwhile, the Group is in the course of launching the eMarketing System and Event
Management System which will facilitate the design, update of web contents, and provide an effective and
affordable way to communicate with customers and other target audience. The systems also allow participants of
events organised by the Group to submit their entries and register on-line.

The Group will continue to enhance the commitment control and contractors pre-qualification workflow system
to cater for new acquisition and business development. This new workflow system will be extended to include an
automation of the tendering procedure and will help minimise the manual processing time.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has been active in reaching out to the needy and serving the community. During the year, its
corporate volunteer team HKR Care & Share organised a number of events to bring joys and love to the less
fortunate, focusing on the needs of children.

In recognition of the Group’s continued contribution to the community, the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
in March 2011 awarded the Group the “Caring Company” logo for the sixth consecutive year. The Social Welfare
Department also awarded the Group the “Gold Award for Volunteer Service” in December 2010.

GHOSTLY FUN @ DISCOVERY BAY (October 2010)
HKR Care & Share brought about 60
underprivileged children from the T.W.G.Hs
Residential Child Care Services and the Social
Services Division of Hong Kong Outlying Islands
Women'’s Association to Discovery Bay, giving
them a unique opportunity to experience the
festive joy and spooky fun of Halloween in the

friendly and multi-cultural community.

WINTER FUNFEST (December 2010)

HKR Care & Share visited Evangel Children’s Home (ECH) and threw a Christmas party for over 30 children. ECH
children are mostly from families that are unable to provide them with sufficient care due to family problems or
crises. HKR Care & Share volunteers teamed up with the children to participate in group games and competed
for wonderful prizes at the party.

HONG KONG ARTS FESTIVAL SPONSORSHIP (March 2011)

The Group sponsored the Programme Opening Performance of Riccardo
Chailly and the Leipzig Gewandhaus Orchestra at the 39th Hong Kong Arts
Festival in order to help raise the public’s interest in arts and culture, and to
bring world-class performances to Hong Kong.

YUMMY EASTER CARNIVAL (April 2011)

Riccardo Chailly

In celebration of the Easter, HKR Care & Share hosted a party for around 25 . NlEREiAeE

5Pt

underprivileged children from the T.W.G.Hs Residential Child Care Services.
At the party, an award-winning chef from Discovery Bay Residents Club
showed the children how to prepare and garnish a dessert dish — a yummy
rabbit made from marshmallow, and the children were assisted by about 20
HKR Care & Share volunteers to prepare the dessert.

VISITS TO THE BOUNTY

The Bounty, a 42-metre European tall ship replica which resides in Discovery Bay, welcomed a number of groups
from schools and charitable organisations during the year. The Bounty will continue to help the needy and spread
the spirit of love and care to the community.
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CHAIRMAN

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson
JP, DSSc (Hons) (Aged 68)

Mr CHA was appointed executive director in 1989, the
deputy chairman in September 2001 and the chairman of
the Company on 15 May 2007. Since 1995, he has been the
managing director of HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd, a subsidiary
of the Company and is now in charge of its operations and
management. He has also been serving as director of a number
of other subsidiaries of the Company since its inception in 1977
and has over 40 years experience in property development.
Mr CHA is the chairman and non-executive director of the
Company’s associated corporation, Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited, and an independent non-executive director
of New World Development Company Limited, both of them
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). He is an independent non-executive
director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited, manager
of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust which is listed
on the Stock Exchange, an independent non-executive
director of Hong Kong International Theme Parks Limited,
owner and operator of Hong Kong Disneyland Resort, the
chairman of Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”) and a director of
Asia Television Limited (“ATV”). Mingly is, and ATV was once,
under the control of members of Cha Family. Mr CHA is also
a committee member of the Eleventh National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). He is a brother of
Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor
and Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson and an uncle of Mr CHA
Yiu Chung Benjamin who are also directors of the Company.
Mr CHA is also a director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited and
LBJ Regents Limited, both are substantial shareholders of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFO") and together whose interests in the Company represent
the substantial interests of Cha Family in the Company.
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DEPUTY CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING
DIRECTOR

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor
BA, MBA (Aged 61)

Mr CHA was appointed executive director in 1989, the
managing director in September 2001 and the deputy chairman
of the Company on 15 May 2007. He was also appointed the
joint managing director of HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd in 1996 and
has been serving as director of a number of other subsidiaries
of the Company with the earliest appointment back to 1978.
Mr CHA is responsible for the overall and day-to-day
management of the Group. He has been involved in textile
manufacturing and real estate businesses for over 30 years.
He is an independent non-executive director of SOHO China
Limited, an alternate independent non-executive director of
New World Development Company Limited, both companies
are listed on the Stock Exchange, and a director of United
Nigerian Textiles PLC which is listed on The Nigerian Stock
Exchange. Mr CHA is also a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Committee of Zhejiang Province. Mr CHA
is the father of Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin, a brother of Ms
WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson and
Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson who are also directors of the
Company.

R 3 R SHfe 2 T MR A B

BA, MBA (615%)

BRANRIBIFEEZERARBIHITE
= WH2001F9 AHERRRIEEL
IR BER2007 5 A5 EBEARR
BIBIERE - BRI FEZEASD
BEETDKERAF ZHEEE B
kEB1978FREEEANRIEMET
MBARIZES -EXERBELREHE
CEBVHEEETIE - HRHMEE
MEMWEXBEBIOFER - BAES
SOHOF R ERAB ZBIIEMITES
Mt RERBR AR ZERELIEH
TES  ZMERXARHREERA LT R
BRERFEEHFRZ ST £ 2 United
Nigerian Textiles PLCZ & % » &L £ N
ARBEARBAGESEMNIEEZES
LB -BRERERPEEZREBRT
EERERL  EHBLEREMELE
2B BENRBARGIES -



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin
BA, MBA (Agcd 37)

Mr CHA was appointed executive director of the Company in
September 2010. He is also head of the Asia Pacific business
unit and director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
He joined the Group in 2002 and has been with the Asia
Pacific business unit, involving in the Company’s investment,
development and asset management of projects in Thailand,
Singapore, Hong Kong, Shanghai and Japan. Mr CHA is also
a non-executive director of Hanison Construction Holdings
Limited, an associated corporation of the Company listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr CHA started his career in real estate and
hotel development with the development division of Mandarin
Oriental Hotel group. Mr CHA is a non-official member of the
Business Facilitation Advisory Committee and the Harbourfront
Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “HKSAR Government”). He holds
a bachelor degree in international politics and economics
from Middlebury College and a master degree in business
administration from the Stanford Graduate School of Business.
Mr CHA is the son of Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor and a nephew of
Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson, Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson and Ms
WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, all of them are directors of the
Company.
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Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham
FCPA (Aged 65)

Mr CHUNG was appointed executive director of the Company
in 1994 and is also director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr CHUNG has been serving in the Group since
1978 and is the head of finance office responsible for oversight
of the Group’s finance and treasury, accounting, tax functions
and information technology department. He is a certified public
accountant (practising), a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
He has over 35 years experience in financial management and
property development in Hong Kong.

Mr TANG Moon Wah
BA (Arch Studies), BArch (Aged 57)

Mr TANG was appointed executive director of the Company in
December 2004 and is also director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. He has been serving in the Group since 1985
and is the head of China business unit and head of projects
responsible for project management of real estate development
in Hong Kong and the PRC and for oversight of master planning,
conceptual and major designs and technical advice on
acquisitions. Mr TANG has over 30 years extensive experience
in property development. He has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Architects since 1981, Authorised Person since
1982 and Registered Architect since 1991.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI
GBM, CVO, GBS, OBE, JP (Aged 72)

Mr ARCULLI was appointed director in 1989 and has been
an independent non-executive director of the Company since
1993 before he was re-designated as non-executive director
in June 2005. He is the senior partner of King & Wood.
Mr ARCULLI is the independent non-executive chairman of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an independent
non-executive director of Hang Lung Properties Limited and
SCMP Group Limited, and a non-executive director of Power
Assets Holdings Limited, Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited, Sino
Hotels (Holdings) Limited, Sino Land Company Limited and
Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited, all of them are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director
of Shanghai Century Acquisition Corporation, listed on the
New York Stock Exchange, from 2005 to 2008. Mr ARCULLI is
currently a non-official member of the Executive Council of the
HKSAR Government, a member of the board of directors of The
Community Chest of Hong Kong, a member of the Consultation
Panel and a board member of the West Kowloon Cultural District
Authority. He also holds directorships in other public and private
companies in Hong Kong and overseas.
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Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson
BA, MBA (Aged 59)

Mr CHA was appointed director in 1989 and re-designated as
non-executive director of the Company in December 2004.
He has been serving as director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company with the earliest appointment back to 1978.
Mr CHA is also a non-executive director of Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited, an associated corporation of the Company
listed on the Stock Exchange, an independent non-executive
director of Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited and director/
non-executive director of a number of other public and private
companies in Hong Kong and China, and is active in many
non-profit organizations. Mr CHA has over 30 years experience
in investment management. He is a brother of Ms WONG CHA
May Lung Madeline, Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson and Mr CHA
Mou Zing Victor and an uncle of Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin
who are also directors of the Company. Mr CHA is also a director
of LBJ Regents Limited which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company under Part XV of the SFO and whose interest in
the Company forms part of the interests of Cha Family in the
Company.

Mr CHEUNG Tseung Ming
BSc, MBA, MAcc, MICE, MI Struct.E, CPA (Agcd 69)

Mr CHEUNG was re-designated as non-executive director of the
Company upon his retirement from the Group with effect from
1 November 2010. Prior to his retirement and re-designation,
Mr CHEUNG was an executive director of the Company since
September 2001 responsible for the management of the
Company’s hospitality subsidiaries and related investments in
the Asia Pacific region. He is a member of the Institution of
Structural Engineers and the Institution of Civil Engineers in the
United Kingdom and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia.
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Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
BSSc, JP (Aged 63)

Mr CHEUNG was appointed independent non-executive director
in January 2006 and re-designated as non-executive director of
the Company on 4 December 2008. He was the chief executive
of Hong Kong Telecom from 1994 to 2000. Mr CHEUNG is an
independent non-executive director of China Unicom (Hong
Kong) Limited and Taikang Life Insurance Co. Ltd., the former is
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr CHEUNG is also the chairman
of the board of directors of HKU School of Professional and
Continuing Education.

Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline
(Aged71)

Ms WONG was appointed director in 1989 and re-designated
as non-executive director of the Company in December 2004.
She has been serving as director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company since its inception in 1977. Ms WONG is also
director/non-executive director of a number of other public
and private companies in Hong Kong and overseas, including
Hon Kwok Land Investment Company, Limited and Chinney
Investments, Limited, both are listed on the Stock Exchange,
and United Nigerian Textiles PLC which is listed on The
Nigerian Stock Exchange. Ms WONG is a sister of Mr CHA Mou
Sing Payson, Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor and Mr CHA Mou Daid
Johnson and an aunt of Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin who are
also directors of the Company. Ms WONG is also a director of
CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited and LBJ Regents Limited, both are
substantial shareholders of the Company under Part XV of the
SFO and together whose interests in the Company represent the
substantial interests of Cha Family in the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry
GBS, BA, MBA, DBA(Hons), LLD(Hons) (Aged 64)

Dr CHENG was appointed director in 1989 and re-designated
as independent non-executive director of the Company in 1993.
Dr CHENG is the managing director of New World Development
Company Limited, chairman and managing director of New
World China Land Limited, chairman of NWS Holdings Limited,
chairman and non-executive director of New World Department
Store China Limited, chairman of International Entertainment
Corporation and non-executive director of Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited, all of them are listed on the Stock Exchange.
He resigned as the chairman and executive director of
Taifook Securities Group Limited, which is listed on the Stock
Exchange, in January 2010. Dr CHENG is also director of a
number of private companies in Hong Kong and overseas. He
is the chairman of the advisory council for The Better Hong
Kong Foundation and standing committee member of the
Eleventh National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of the PRC. In 2001, Dr CHENG was
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government.

Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin
GBS, SBS, OBE, JP, DBA (Hons) (Aged 63)

Dr CHEUNG was appointed independent non-executive director
of the Company in September 2004. He is a fellow member
of both the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Dr CHEUNG is an independent non-executive
director of Hang Seng Bank Limited and HSBC Holdings plc
(“HSBC”), both are listed on the Stock Exchange with HSBC
also being dual listed on the London Stock Exchange. He ceased
to be an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and Sun Hung Kai Properties
Limited, which are listed on the Stock Exchange, in April 2011
and December 2009 respectively. Dr CHEUNG is currently a
non-official member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR
Government. Dr CHEUNG is also the chairman of Airport
Authority Hong Kong, chairman of the supervisory committee
of Tracker Fund of Hong Kong, chairman of the council of The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and member
of the Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal Panel. He was awarded
the Gold Bauhinia Star by HKSAR Government in 2008.
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Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta
FCIH (Aged 64)

Ms HO was re-designated as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 10 April 2010. Prior to
her latest re-designation, Ms HO was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in 1994 and re-designated as a
non-executive director on 10 April 2008 upon her retirement
of all executive roles in the Group. Ms HO is a fellow member
of the Chartered Institute of Housing, Asian Pacific Branch,
and has over 35 years experience in property development,
investment and management. She is currently a member of the
executive committee and chairman of remuneration committee
of the Hong Kong Housing Society.

Dr QIN Xiao
PhD Econ. (Aged 64)

Dr QIN was appointed as independent non-executive director of
the Company in July 2009. He is an independent non-executive
director of China Telecom Corporation Limited, which is listed
on the New York Stock Exchange and dual listed on the Stock
Exchange. He was appointed an independent non-executive
director of AIA Group Limited in late September 2010 which
securities were listed on the Stock Exchange in late October
2010. Dr QIN retired as the chairman of China Merchants
Group in August 2010 and ceased as the chairman and
non-executive director of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.,
which is listed on the Stock Exchange and dual listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, in September 2010.
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Dr QIN is a member of the Eleventh National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the PRC
and honorary chairman of Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises
Association, guest professor at the School of Economics and
Management of Tsinghua University and the Graduate School of
the People’s Bank of China. Previously, he served as president
and vice chairman of China International Trust and Investment
Corporation (“CITIC"), and chairman of CITIC Industrial Bank.
He was a deputy to the Ninth National People’s Congress of
the PRC, an advisor on the Foreign Currency Policy of the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange, and a member of Toyota
International Advisory Board. He also served as chairman of
Asia-Pacific Economic Corporation Business Advisory Council
for the Year 2001. Dr QIN is the author of several papers and
books in the fields of economics and management. He received
a PhD degree in economics from University of Cambridge.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr CHAN Chi Ming
BSc (Aged 54)

Mr CHAN joined the Group in 1980. He is the head of Hong
Kong business unit and head of development and marketing
responsible for oversight of the Discovery Bay operations
in transport, club and city management services; property
investment and development, sales, marketing, leasing and
management of real estate in Hong Kong and Pearl River Delta.
He is director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company and
has over 30 years experience in property development, sales
and marketing of real estate.
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DIRECTORS'

REPORT
CE

The directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of HKR
International Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to announce
the audited final results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out
in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
214 to 228.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 106.

The Directors have recommended the declaration of a final
dividend of HK11 cents (2010: HK12 cents) per share for the
year ended 31 March 2011 to shareholders whose names
appear on the registers of members of the Company on 16
September 2011. The proposed final dividend together with
the interim dividend of HK7 cents (2010: HK6 cents) per share
makes a total dividend of HK18 cents (2010: HK18 cents) per
share for the year. The proposed final dividend will be paid
on 29 September 2011 following approval at the 2011 annual
general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS

The main and branch registers of members of the Company
will be closed on 15 and 16 September 2011. During these two
days, no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2011, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on 14 September 2011.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 110to 112.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements on page 199.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were set out on page 54.

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta was re-designated from non-executive
director to independent non-executive director on 10 April
2010.

Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin was appointed as an executive
director on 15 September 2010.

Mr CHEUNG Tseung Ming was re-designated from executive
director to non-executive director on 1 November 2010.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association (the
“Articles”) and the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange, The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI, Mr CHA
Yiu Chung Benjamin, Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung
Marvin, Mr CHEUNG Tseung Ming, Mr TANG Moon Wah and
Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline shall retire by rotation at
the 2011 AGM. All the retiring directors, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election. Other remaining directors will
continue in office.
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None of the directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2011 AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

The non-executive directors including the four independent
non-executive directors of the Company were not appointed for
a specific term but their respective terms of office are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGMs of the
Company in accordance with the Articles. The rotation article
sets up a mechanism to ensure all Directors shall retire and
offer for re-election at least once every three years.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance therewith.

The Directors’ and Senior Management’s biographical details
are set out on pages 55 to 64.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 161 and 162.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2011, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules adopted by the Company were as follows:

(1) THE COMPANY
Long positions in shares of HK$0.25 each

HH AT - BB AR
IrZ Mt

MR201149F3A31H  EERARRRS
TBRABRBEESBZHBALRAR
A AERBEEE (TR REBHFERIE
XVES) 2B~ HERG RESHF - #
ERBEELFENEI2EBLAELETE
A RBARTIFARMA &
MR AIMEX 10T ETHEIT AE S BT
BHERZ SHEESTRI ([1ZESFRI]) 7850
GARRI MBI S ARIT

(1) Az
REIRENE 0.25 TN Z 4 &

Number of Ordinary Shares
LiERYA
Approximate
Percentage
of Issued
Share Capital
Personal Family Corporate Other hesiT
Name of Director Capacity Interests Interests Interests Interests Total  BAZEH
FE3 a4 BABE  FREZ  ADEE  EhEs L ARl
CHA Mou Sing Payson Beneficial owner, interests 3113113 - 2024600 633137861 638875074 4731
e of a controlled (Note a) (Note b)
corporation and (Mita) {ik1)
beneficiary of
discretionary trusts
ERBEA  XBEEERR
BEEEXEA
CHA Mou Zing Victor Beneficial owner and 760,253 - - 629498383 630,258,636 46.68
38 beneficiary of (Note b)
discretionary trusts {iR1)
ERABARBBREEXEA
CHA Mou Daid Johnson Beneficiary of - - - 62820088 628,200,885 4652
e discretionary trusts (Note b)
BBEAXEA (Wztb)
CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin Beneficiary of - - - 618895387 618895387 He
Bl discretionary trusts (Note b)
BiEEETEA (W)
WONG CHA May Founder and/or beneficiary - - - 627487463 627487 463 4647
Lung Madeline of discretionary trusts (Notes c&d)
1ExE MiEEEAAR / SXEA (WiEcka)
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Number of Ordinary Shares
LERSE

Approximate

Percentage

of Issued

Share Capital

Personal Family Corporate Other he®iT

Name of Director Capacity Interests Interests Interests Interests Total  BRAZEH

LA af BAER RS NGl e A s iy L

Ronald Joseph ARCULLI Beneficiary of a trust 241472 - - - 241 472 0.02
BiE EEXEA

CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham Beneficial owner 315,084 - - - 315,084 002
E0H ERAEA

HO Pak Ching Loretta Beneficial owner 85,600 - - - 85,600 001
fIfg ERkAA

TANG Moon Wah Beneficial owner 135,200 - - - 135,200 001
e ERBAA

Notes: B
(@) The shares were held by Accomplished Investments Q) ZEBRMHIYBEH‘RBLE S

(b)

Limited, a corporation 100% owned by Mr CHA Mou Sing
Payson.

The shares belonged to certain but not identical
discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
and LBJ Regents Limited were the corporate trustees, and
the relevant directors were among the members of the
classes of discretionary beneficiaries.

586,434,832 shares (changed to 577,842,756 shares
since 2 April 2011) belonged to certain but not identical
discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
and LBJ Regents Limited were the corporate trustees, and
the director was among the members of the classes of
discretionary beneficiaries.

The director was, under another discretionary trust of
which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited was the corporate
trustee, the founder and member of the classes of
discretionary beneficiaries thereof. Such trust was deemed
to be interested in 41,052,631 shares.

From 2 April 2011 onwards, the director was, under two
separate discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman)
Limited and LBJ Regents Limited were corporate trustees,
the founder and member of the classes of discretionary
beneficiaries thereof. Such trusts were deemed to be
interested in 49,644,707 shares in aggregate.

(b)

(c)

(d)

& ¥ B 2 A 7Accomplished
Investments Limited 356 °
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(2) ASSOCIATED CORPORATION - HANISON

CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED

Long positions in shares of HK$0.10 each

(2) AR B 25 0 — LB A 2 A BR 2 W)

FAEREEO.10/8TR I E

Number of Ordinary Shares
LERYE
Approximate
Percentage
of Issued
Share Capital
Personal Family Corporate Other hesi
Name of Director Capacity Interests Interests Interests Interests Total  BAZEA
EESL af BAER g Gl o iR ey ER
CHA Mou Sing Payson Beneficial owner, interests 668,830 - 53877 107836435 109,069,142 2237
Big of a controlled (Note a) (Note b)
corporation and (Mita) (k1)
beneficiary of
discretionary trusts
ERBEA  XBEEERR
BEEXEA
CHA Mou Zing Victor Beneficial owner and 163336 - - 107150201 107313537 2201
BN beneficiary of (Note b)
discretionary trusts (k1)
ERBEARBBREEXEA
CHA Mou Daid Johnson Beneficiary of - - - 107,150,200 107,150,200 2198
S discretionary trusts (Note b)
BEEEXEA (Hztb)
CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin Beneficiary of - - - 105150973 105,150,973 2157
BiEw discretionary trusts (Note b)
MiEETERAA (Wiztb)
WONG CHA May Lung Madeline Founder and/or - - - 1069%924 10699924 21%
T5%E beneficiary of (Notes c&d)
discretionary trusts (HfEcRd)
BEGEEEAR / SXEA
Ronald Joseph ARCULLI Beneficiary of a trust h1878 - - - b1878 0.01
B [EEREA
CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham Beneficial owner 8018 - - - 53,018 0.01
08 ERfAA
HO Pak Ching Loretta 11,690 - - - 11,690 0.002

s

eneficial owner
&

4B

B
g



Notes:

(@) The shares were held by Accomplished Investments
Limited, a corporation 100% owned by Mr CHA Mou Sing
Payson.

(b) The shares belonged to certain but not identical
discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
and LBJ Regents Limited were the corporate trustees and
the relevant directors were among the members of the
classes of discretionary beneficiaries.

(c) 106,996,924 shares (changed to 105,150,973 shares
since 2 April 2011) belonged to certain but not identical
discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
and LBJ Regents Limited were the corporate trustees and
the director was among the members of the classes of
discretionary beneficiaries.

(d)  From 2 April 2011 onwards, the director was, under
another discretionary trust of which LBJ Regents Limited
was the corporate trustee, the founder and member of the
classes of discretionary beneficiaries thereof. Such trust
was deemed to be interested in 1,845,951 shares.

Save as disclosed above and for certain directors holding
non-beneficial interests in the share capital of some of the
subsidiaries of the Company as nominee shareholders, as at
31 March 2011, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company or their respective associates had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporations (within the
meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, the interests of the Directors in businesses

which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the businesses of the Group as required to be

disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules were set out as follows:

1

(2)

(3)

The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI is an
independent non-executive director of Hang Lung
Properties Limited (“Hang Lung”) and also the non-
executive director of Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited
(“Hutchison™), Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited (“Sino
Hotels”), Sino Land Company Limited (“Sino Land”) and
Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited (“TST Properties”). The
businesses of Hang Lung, Hutchison, Sino Hotels, Sino
Land and TST Properties involve at least some of property
investment, property development, property management,
treasury investment and hotel management and
ownership. Hang Lung, Hutchison, Sino Hotels, Sino Land
and TST Properties are all listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson is the chairman and non-
executive director of Hanison Construction Holdings
Limited (“Hanison”), an associated corporation of the
Company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of New World Development Company Limited
(“New World”), and Eagle Asset Management (CP)
Limited (“Eagle Asset”), manager of Champion Real
Estate Investment Trust (“Champion”). The businesses of
Hanison, New World, Eagle Asset and Champion involve at
least some of property investment, property development,
property management, treasury investment and hotel
management and ownership. Hanison, New World and
Champion are all listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor is an independent non-executive
director of SOHO China Limited (“SOHQ") and the
alternate to Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson, an independent
non-executive director of New World. The businesses of
SOHO and New World involve at least some of property
investment, property development, property management
and hotel management and ownership. SOHO and New
World are both listed on the Stock Exchange.
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(4)  Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson is a non-executive director
of Hanison whose group’s businesses consist of
property investment, property development and property
management. Hanison is listed on the Stock Exchange.

(6) Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin is a non-executive
director of Hanison whose group’s businesses consist of
property investment, property development and property
management. Hanison is listed on the Stock Exchange.

(6) Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline is a non-executive
director of Chinney Investments, Limited (“Chinney”)
and Hon Kwok Land Investment Company, Limited
(“Hon Kwok”) whose groups’ businesses consist of
property development, property investment and property
management. Chinney and Hon Kwok are both listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Save for the independent non-executive directors and save as
disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in any
business apart from the Group’s businesses which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES ORDEBENTURES

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
3 January 2002, which was effected on 18 January 2002
(“2002 Scheme”), under which options may be granted, inter
alias, to Directors. Details of the 2002 Scheme are set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” below and note 34
to the consolidated financial statements on page 199.

There was no grant to, and hence no beneficial exercise by, the
Directors of any options under the 2002 Scheme during the
year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2011, the following persons (other than a
director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under

section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Company’s shares of HK$0.25 each

FHEF R

72011 F3 A31 B @ IRIBEARDRIRES
B 22 336 1R ERIFE 2 S MATa
B - TIAL (RRARIZESHIHERITH
ABRIN) AR KRR (A +
BB BESABIAT

AL &R E 18 0.258 7.2 R 17,2 4F
B

Approximate
Percentage of Issued

Number of Share Capital

Name of Shareholder Capacity Ordinary Shares HERITRAZ

BRAE 4 LiEREE BAE L

CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited Corporate trustee 560,153,905 41.48
EEZTEA (Note a)
(FfizEa)

LBJ Regents Limited Corporate trustee 106,137,275 7.86
EEZTEA (Note b)
(MzEDb)

Invesco Hong Kong Limited Investment manager/ 95,032,578 7.04
=B EEIEGR DA advisor of various (Note c¢)
accounts (Ffizxc)

REKE / HERF 2 BEH



Notes:

560,153,905 shares were held by CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
as corporate trustee of certain but not identical discretionary
trusts of which members of the classes of discretionary
beneficiaries comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming'’s issue.

106,137,275 shares were held by LBJ Regents Limited as
corporate trustee for certain but not identical discretionary trusts,
of which members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries
comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming’s issue.

The long position interest in 95,032,578 shares were held by
Invesco Hong Kong Limited as investment manager and/or
advisor of various accounts.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, no other

interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of

the Company were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the 2002 Scheme as required to be disclosed

under the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) SUMMARY OF THE 2002 SCHEME

(a) Purpose

The purpose is to provide the participants who have
been granted options under the 2002 Scheme to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in
the Company and to encourage the participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.
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(b)

Participants

All directors (including independent non-executive
directors), full-time employees and consultants of
the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its associated
companies are eligible to participate in the 2002
Scheme.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

A maximum number of 115,737,802 shares of the
Company may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted or to be granted under the 2002 Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including both exercised
and unexercised options) under the 2002 Scheme
or any other share option scheme (if any) adopted
by the Company in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of
the Company.

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would
result in the shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted to such person in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of the grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue; and

(d)
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(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant in
excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior approval
of the shareholders of the Company who are not
connected persons of the Company as defined in the
Listing Rules.

Period within which the shares must be taken up under

an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from
the date on which it is granted or such shorter period
as the Board (or the relevant committee thereof) may
specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must be

held before it can be exercised

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board (or
the relevant committee thereof) must specify the
minimum period(s), if any, for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and amount

payable upon acceptance

The offer of the grant of an option (of which the date
of grant must be a Stock Exchange business day)
must be accepted within 14 days from the date on
which the offer letter is delivered to the participant
and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid upon
acceptance.
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(2)

(h)  Basis of determining the subscription price of an option

The subscription price of an option shall be no less
than the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five Stock Exchange business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

(ii)  the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of grant.

(i) Remaininglife

The 2002 Scheme has a life of 10 years and
will expire on 3 January 2012 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the terms of the 2002
Scheme.

DETAILS OF OPTIONS GRANTED AND
AVAILABLE FOR GRANT

No option was granted under the 2002 Scheme since
its adoption. The total number of shares in the Company
available for grant of options under the 2002 Scheme is
115,737,802 shares which represents 8.57% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of this annual
report (i.e. 22 June 2011).

(2)
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PROPOSED ADOPTION OF THE 2011
SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Board has passed a conditional resolution to early terminate
the 2002 Scheme. The early termination of the 2002 Scheme
is conditional upon the passing of an ordinary resolution by
shareholders of the Company at the 2011 AGM to approve the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme”) as
proposed by the Board. Details of the proposed 2011 Scheme
are set out in a circular to be despatched to the shareholders of
the Company in due course.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Particulars of the zero coupon convertible bonds due 2010 (the
“Bonds”) which have been fully redeemed in April 2010 are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements on page
198.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group entered
into the following transactions which constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

2010 CONSTRUCTION AND RENOVATION
SERVICES FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

The Company and Hanison entered into the Construction and
Renovation Services Framework Agreement dated 20 January
2010 (the “2010 Agreement”) which governs the outline
terms upon which members of the Group and Hanison and its
subsidiaries (the “Hanison Group”) proposed to be engaged in
various construction projects (the “Construction Transactions”)
and various interior and renovation projects (the “Renovation
Transactions”) during the three financial years ending 31 March
2013 with total values in terms of revenue recognition to be
subject to the following annual caps:
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Annual caps:

the total value of the Construction Transactions in terms of
revenue recognition shall not exceed the following:

1 April 2010 — 31 March 2011 HK$600.0 million

1 April 2011 - 31 March 2012 HK$400.0 million
1 April 2012 - 31 March 2013 HK$400.0 million

the total value of the Renovation Transactions in terms of
revenue recognition shall not exceed the following:

1 April 2010 — 31 March 2011 HK$50.0 million
1 April 2011 - 31 March 2012 HK$50.0 million
1 April 2012 — 31 March 2013 HK$50.0 million

The Directors are of the opinion that the 2010 Agreement
represents business that is in the ordinary and usual course of
the Group and reflects normal commercial terms that are arm’s
length and are fair and reasonable so far as its shareholders
are concerned and are in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The 2010 Agreement, the terms thereof, the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the annual caps on the total
values of Construction Transactions and Renovation Transactions
(as set out above) were approved by an ordinary resolution
passed by the independent shareholders of the Company at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 9 March 2010.

In the event that the total value of the Construction Transactions
or the Renovation Transactions exceeds the relevant annual
cap amounts set out above for any year, such transactions
will be subject to review and re-approval by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the next following AGM or at
extraordinary general meeting convened for the purpose.
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In accordance with rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the
Directors have duly approved, and the independent non-
executive directors of the Company have reviewed the internal
auditor’s report and the independent auditor’s letter pursuant to
rule 14A.38 and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) were
carried out in accordance with the following principles:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable
than terms available to (or from) independent third parties;
and

(c) in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing the Continuing Connected Transations on a fair
and reasonable basis and in the interest of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

The Board has engaged the independent auditor of the
Company to report on the Continuing Connected Transactions
for the year ended 31 March 2011 pursuant to rule 14A.38 of
the Listing Rules. The independent auditor of the Company has
provided a letter to the Board confirming that-

(a) for the year ended 31 March 2011, the aggregate amount
paid and payable by the Group in respective of the
Construction Transactions in terms of revenue recognition
did not exceed the annual cap of HK$600.0 million as
set out in the previous announcement dated 20 January
2010; and

(b) for the year ended 31 March 2011, the aggregate amount
paid and payable by the Group in respective of the
Renovation Transactions in terms of revenue recognition
did not exceed the annual cap of HK$50.0 million as
set out in the previous announcement dated 20 January
2010.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER RULE 13.21 OF
CHAPTER 13 OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the continuing obligation set out in rule
13.21 of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, the following are the
details of the loan agreement with covenants relating to specific
performance on the controlling shareholder of the Company as
at 31 March 2011 pursuant to rule 13.18 thereof. There exists
no reporting obligation by the Company under rules 13.17 and
13.19 of the Listing Rules accordingly.

The Company is the borrower of a loan agreement entered
into on 18 September 2007 (the “Loan Agreement”) for a
transferable revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$2,500.0 million with final maturity date falling five
years after the date of the Loan Agreement.

The Loan Agreement provides that the existing controlling
shareholder of the Company as defined below as Cha
Family, being a single largest shareholder (direct or indirect
shareholding) in the Company on the date of the Loan
Agreement together with his associate(s) shall be the Company’s
single largest beneficial shareholder at any time until the final
maturity date and/or so long as the loan remains outstanding.
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As at the date of the Loan Agreement, CCM Trust (Cayman)
Limited, LBJ Regents Limited and CDW Holdings Limited (all
being substantial shareholders of the Company within the
meaning of the SFO), Mingly Asia Capital Limited (not being
a substantial shareholder within the meaning of the SFO)
and Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson, Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor,
Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson and Ms WONG CHA May Lung
Madeline (all being directors of the Company) together had
an aggregate interest in 686,284,267 shares in the Company,
representing approximately 50.83% of the issued share capital
of the Company and collectively treated as a single controlling
shareholder of the Company under the term “Cha Family”. The
term Cha Family extends to include the interest of Mr CHA Yiu
Chung Benjamin after he became a director of the Company in
September 2010.

As at the date of this report, Cha Family holds an aggregate
interest in 672,789,146 shares representing approximately
49.83% of the issued share capital of the Company and it
remains a single largest beneficial shareholder of the Company.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER RULE 13.22 OF
CHAPTER 13 OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the requirements of rule 13.22 of Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules, the following are the details of financial
assistance and guarantees given for facilities granted to affiliated
companies of the Company as at 31 March 2011 pursuant to
rule 13.16 thereof.

(1) Asat 31 March 2011, the Group advanced to Tung Chung
Station Development Company Limited (“TCSDCL”) an
aggregate amount of HK$878.9 million.
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TCSDCL is engaged in the development of Tung Chung
Station Package Il Project in Lantau Island, Hong Kong
in which the Group has 31% interest. The last phase of
the development was completed in 2009 and TCSDCL
is currently interested in the commercial and retails
premises. The advances were provided by the Group in
the form of subordinated shareholders’ loans in proportion
to the Group’s shareholding interest in TCSDCL, for the
purpose of funding the working capital requirements
of TCSDCL. The advances are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayments.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group advanced to Dazhongli
Properties Limited and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli
Group”) an aggregate amount of HK$4,424.7 million.

Dazhongli Group is engaged in the development of certain
properties in Jingan District, Shanghai, the PRC in which
the Group has 50% interest. The advances were provided
by the Group to Dazhongli Group in the form of equity and
loans in proportion to its shareholding interest therein, for
the purpose of financing the development expenditure
of Dazhongli Group. The advances are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayments.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group also advanced to several
affiliated companies an aggregate amount of HK$348.2
million.

As at 31 March 2011, the aggregate amount of advances

provided to and guarantees given for these affiliated companies
by the Group amounted to HK$5,651.8 million and represented
41.6% of the consolidated net tangible assets of the Group of
HK$13,571.7 million as at 31 March 2011.

The financial information of these affiliated companies at
31 March 2011 are set out in notes 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 174 to 180.

(2)
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

The Company has fully redeemed the Bonds in April 2010. The
redeemed Bonds were cancelled and de-listed from the Stock
Exchange automatically.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the total value of the Group’s
turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the total value of the Group’s
purchases.

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or shareholders
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the changes in the investment properties and property,
plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out
in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively on pages 165 to 172.
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER
DEVELOPMENT, SALE AND
INVESTMENT PURPOSES

Details of the changes in properties held for/under development
for sale purposes of the Group during the year are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements on page 189.

A summary of major properties held for/under development,
sale and investment purposes is set out on pages 234 to 239.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to approximately HK$3.0 million (2010:
approximately HK$2.0 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2011, the total number of employees of the
Group in Hong Kong and overseas was 3,268 (2010: 3,257).
The Group has always regarded human resources as one of
the most important assets. It aims to provide a quality working
environment that attracts, retains and develops the right
people and to build a talented workforce with capabilities and
commitment to support our business growth. For key initiatives
during the year, please refer to pages 48 to 51.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is
set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements on
page 213.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
although there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to information available to the Company, the
percentage of the Company’s shares which are in the hands
of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued shares.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set out on
pages 88 to 98.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 233.
This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements.

REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL REPORT BY
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2011
has been reviewed by the audit committee established in
compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the relevant
provisions of the CG Code.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the 2011 AGM of the Company
to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, being eligible and
offering themselves for re-appointment, as the independent
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
REREEE

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

HIZ [ E FARIEIE
BN

Hong Kong, 22 June 2011
%8 2011F6H22H
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The Board is pleased to present its corporate governance report
for the year ended 31 March 2011.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company acknowledges the importance of good corporate
governance practices as a core element towards success and
it has been the Company’s policy to manage the affairs of the
Group in accordance with appropriate regulatory standards and
practices on good corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions of the Code of
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange during
the year ended 31 March 2011, save for the deviations with
considered reasons stated in the following relevant paragraphs.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as currently set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (including amendments
as effected from time to time) as its own code of conduct to
regulate securities transactions by directors of the Company
(the “Model Code”). All Directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
from 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2011 (both days inclusive).

The Model Code has been extended to and has become
equally applicable to dealings in the securities of the Company
by members of senior management and relevant employees
who are likely in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information in relation to the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BOARD COMPOSITION

Save as disclosed below, the Company had at all time during the
year ended 31 March 2011 maintained a balanced board with
strong independent element. The Board currently comprises
fourteen directors with nine non-executive directors (“NEDs”),
four of whom are independent. The members of the Board as
at 31 March 2011 and up to the date of this report were set
out on page 54. Each Director possesses skills and experience
appropriate to the business of the Group and particulars of
the Directors and Senior Management are duly set out in the
paragraph headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 55 to 64.

On 10 April 2010, Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta was re-designated
from NED to Independent Non-executive Director (“INED")
of the Company. On 15 September 2010, Mr CHA Yiu Chung
Benjamin was appointed as Executive Director (“ED”) of the
Company and Mr CHEUNG Tseung Ming was re-designated
from ED to NED of the Company with effect from 1 November
2010.

During the year under review, the Company has met the
requirement of rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules with at least one
of the INEDs possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the INEDs has provided to the Company an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of them
continue to be independent in accordance with the terms of
the guidelines set out in the relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Save for Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson, Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor,
Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson, Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin and
Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline who are family members,
all other Directors have no relationship with each other.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND
ATTENDANCES

During the year under review, four board meetings were held
and thirteen sets of written resolutions were passed by certain
board committees. The audit committee of the Company held
two meetings while the remuneration committee of the Company
held two meetings and exchanged three rounds of electronic
communication during the year. The agenda and accompanying
board papers were sent to all Directors or committee members
at least three days (or such other period as agreed) before the
intended dates of the meetings. Directors’ attendance in the
board meetings, audit committee and remuneration committee
meetings are set out below:

ER R SR E YRS

REBEFERN  EFSLETIRNER
FBHETESFZESERBISEEMARE
R-NFER > ARAZERZBGRTT
T2REH  AHFMEESRTT2RE
FMIRAET T AEHRIBAR - B
NN EEE XN RETT
SHEHRL3B (EMBTHE) A
BEATHEESEEXALREENB - EF
Ll EFees FERZBEEER
RFMEEeER 2 HFEXRHIIMT

Remuneration

Audit Committee
Board Committee = Meetings/Circulated
Meetings Meetings Communication
Name of Director EEE® EXZEE TEEE
EEEE L=k L=k & EEEM
The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI * IRESiE - 4/4 1/2 -
Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson ERELE 3/4 - -
Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor * ERRRR e 4/4 - 5/5~
Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson BRI E 4/4 - -
Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin © EHRPEES 2/2 - -
Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry ** BR@WEL " 2/4 2/2 4/5~
Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin ** sRi=EfE+ **  3/4 2/2 4/5~
Mr CHEUNG Tseung Ming RERTE 4/4 - -
Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus ** SROKFREAL T 4/4 2/2 5/5~
Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham EOREE 4/4 - -
Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta AR a2+ 3/4 - -
Dr QIN Xiao ** B 3/4 1/2 5/5~
Mr TANG Moon Wah BUmE R L 4/4 - -
Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline FEXERL 2/4 - -
* members of audit committee *EEREEEKS
* members of remuneration committee I S e S
~ BREMR SR = KB

~ comprising 2 meetings and 3 rounds of circulated communication
@ appointed as ED during the year on 15 September 2010

C ERRO0I0EI H 15 HELILAHTEE



CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of chairman, deputy chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company were exercised by two different
individuals who are brothers. Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson is the
chairman and Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor is the deputy chairman
and managing director of the Company.

There is no written responsibilities setting out for the chairman
and chief executive officer, the division of responsibilities of the
two roles of chairman and chief executive officer is established
as a norm by the Board with core duty of the roles duly set out
in the Company’s articles of association (“Articles”). The Board
may consider to divide the responsibilities in much detail and
set out in writing the roles and duties of chairman and chief
executive officer in the future if there is a need.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has set out level of authority and express terms of
reference of the relevant board committees and reserves the
rights to oversee all other matters not delegated, in particular,
major acquisitions or disposals, and connected transactions for
its decision.

The Board also delegates certain management and
administration functions to management as it considers
appropriate from time to time, with directions as to the powers
of management including circumstances where management
shall report back and obtain prior approval from the Board.
The Board may revisit such delegations as from time to time
to ensure clear directions and powers are given and proper
reporting procedures are followed.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the management of the Company,
which includes formulating business strategies, directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs. Executive directors are
in charge of different businesses and functional divisions in
accordance with their respective areas of expertise.
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Upon appointment, every Director is given comprehensive
documentations of the business operation of the Group and
regulatory and statutory requirements as director together with
briefing meetings with senior executives and department heads
of the Group.

Directors are also provided with continuous updates on the
latest changes or material development in statues, the Listing
Rules, corporate governance practices relating to the duties and
responsibilities of directors and are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development seminars to update their
knowledge for discharging directors’ responsibilities.

NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION
AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not set up a nomination committee and the
Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of new
directors. However, the Board may on need basis establish
committee comprising board members to look for the right
candidate to fill any vacancy in the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, no committee has been
set up for the aforesaid purpose. Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta was
re-designated from NED to INED on 10 April 2010. Mr CHA Yiu
Chung Benjamin was appointed as ED on 15 September 2010
and Mr CHEUNG Tseung Ming was re-designated from ED to
NED on 1 November 2010.

The Articles have provisions for rotation and re-election of all
Directors. As required by the Articles, at each AGM, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and any Director appointed by the Directors
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of
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the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the
next following AGM (in the case of an addition to the Board) and
eligible to offer for re-election. Accordingly, six directors, namely
The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI, Mr CHA Yiu Chung
Benjamin, Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin, Mr
CHEUNG Tseung Ming, Mr TANG Moon Wah and Ms WONG
CHA May Lung Madeline shall retire and stand for re-election at
the forthcoming 2011 AGM.

All NEDs and INEDs of the Company were not appointed with
specific term, but are subject to the aforesaid rotation clause in
the Articles.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Directors’ remuneration (save for directors’ fees which are
subject to shareholders’ approval at general meeting) is
determined with reference to market terms, their respective
duties and responsibilities in the Group and the Group’s
remuneration policy. Under the terms of reference of the
remuneration committee, the remuneration committee should
make recommendation to the Board on the policy and it has the
delegated responsibilities to determine the specific remuneration
package of the executive directors and the senior management.

The executive directors are entitled to salary and discretionary
bonus which are subject to individual and the Company’s
performance and contribution to retirement scheme under
each of their respective employment contracts as an executive
of the Company. The non-executive directors are entitled to
a director’s fee for their service which was determined by the
Board, pursuant to the authority given by the shareholders at
general meeting from time to time, with reference to their duties
and responsibilities in the Company and the prevailing market
situation. Currently, a sum of HK$100,000 per annum being the
basic fee for acting as a non-executive director and additional
fees of HK$100,000 per annum will be paid to each member of
each of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company.
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In general, the managing director recommends proposals of the
remuneration of other executive directors for due consideration
and approval by the remuneration committee. However, he
abstains from voting when his remuneration is considered by the
remuneration committee. His remuneration is recommended by
the chairman and reviewed and determined by the remuneration
committee. No director will participate in the discussion and
review of his own remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended
31 March 2011 are disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 161 and 162.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up the remuneration committee, audit
committee and other executive committees and all of them have
duly adopted respective clear terms of reference. The Board
will from time to time review the terms of reference of such
committees and reform and renovate some of them to align
with better corporate governance standard. The composition of
each board committee will also be reviewed and updated upon
changes of personnel. Each of the board committees is entitled
to seek independent professional advice, at the Company’s
expenses, if it considers necessary in order to perform its duties.
The Board will from time to time on need basis pass resolutions
to set up special executive committees with clear terms of
reference to deal with the business of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company was established
on 2 December 2004 and is regulated by the terms of reference
approved by the Board from time to time. The full text of the
terms of reference of the remuneration committee is available
for viewing at the Company’s website.
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The terms of reference of the remuneration committee require,
inter alias, the composition of the members of the remuneration
committee to comprise the managing director and four NEDs of
the Company with a majority of the committee members being
INEDs. The current members of the remuneration committee
are Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor, Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry,
Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin, Mr CHEUNG
Wing Lam Linus and Dr QIN Xiao with Dr CHENG takes a lead
role as chairman thereof.

The principal role and function of the remuneration committee
is to exercise the powers of the Board to review and determine
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management members, including salaries, bonuses,
benefits in kind, share options and other plans. Such factors as
remuneration paid for comparable positions, time commitment
and responsibilities of the executive directors and senior
management members as well as the Company’s remuneration
policy will be considered.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee
held two meetings and exchanged three rounds of electronic
communication to review and approve proposals in respect of
(a) the 2010/2011 and 2011/2012 pay increase(s) for executive
directors and senior management; (b) one-off project completion
bonus for Nassim Road development; (c) revised ex-gratia
payment for an executive director and senior management;
(d) 2010/2011 bonus proposal for the Company including the
executive directors and senior management; and (e) extension
of the employment contract of the executive role of an executive
director. The attendance records of the remuneration committee
meetings held and circulated electronic communication during
the year are set out in the above section headed “Board and
Committee Meetings and Attendances”.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company was established on
17 July 1998 and is regulated by the terms of reference
approved by the Board from time to time. The full text of the
terms of reference of the audit committee is available for viewing
at the Company’s website.

The terms of reference of the audit committee require, inter
alias, the composition of the members of the audit committee
to comprise NEDs with a majority (including the chairman)
being INEDs of the Company. The current members of the
audit committee are The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI,
Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry, Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin
Tung Marvin, Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus and Dr QIN Xiao
with Dr CHENG takes a lead role as chairman thereof.

The principal role and function of the audit committee is to
assist the Board in meeting its responsibilities for ensuring an
effective system of internal controls and compliance, and in
meeting its external financial reporting objectives.

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings together
with senior management and independent auditor and had
considered the independent auditor’s projected audit and non-
audit services fees, their independence and the nature and
scope of the audit, reviewed and discussed the continuing
connected transactions and internal controls, the interim and
final financial statements together with the management’s
findings and responses and the independent auditor’s reviews
and reports before submission to the Board for approval. The
attendance records of the audit committee meetings held during
the year are set out in the above section headed “Board and
Committee Meetings and Attendances”.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is the independent auditor of the
Company. The remuneration for audit services provided by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu to the Group for the year under
review was estimated at HK$7.6 million (2010 (actual): HK$6.6
million). In addition to the audit fee, the Company had appointed
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for the interim results review and the
other non-audit services particularly for tax compliance which
amounted in an appropriate amount of HK$3.5 million (2010
(actual): HK$2.5 million) for the year under review.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal controls, which includes financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions. The
Company has an internal audit department which is responsible
for performing independent reviews on the effectiveness of the
Group’s system of internal controls and reports audit findings to
the audit committee and the Board regularly.

During the year, the internal audit department carried out
reviews on (a) operation of manufacturing companies, (b)
residential clubs in Discovery Bay, (c) tendering mechanism
of continuing connected transactions, (d) operation of dental
service group, (e) operation of some companies for property
management, (f) operation of medical unit in Shanghai, (g) a
human resource system for staff management and (h) other
business units with audit follow-up. With the implementation
of follow-up measures after the reviews, the effectiveness in
area with irregularities gradually improves. Findings on the
reviews and the relevant recommendations were presented to
and accepted by the audit committee in November 2010 and
June 2011. The Company has adopted an internal audit charter
to formulate the processes and procedures of internal audit
function for strengthening of the control framework.
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The Board, through the work of the audit committee and the
internal audit department, has conducted an annual review
of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Company and its subsidiaries and considers that the Group’s
internal control system for the year ended 31 March 2011 was
effective and adequate.

REASONS FOR DEVIATIONS FROM CG
CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange except for
certain deviations from the code provisions A.2.1 (division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
officer be clearly established and set out in writing), A.4.1 (NEDs
be appointed for a specific term).

Since the issue of the Company’s interim report for the six
months ended 30 September 2010, there has been no other
deviation from the CG Code.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011 which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2011, the Directors have (i) selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; (ii) made
judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and
(iii) prepared accounts on the going concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s independent auditor about
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2011
is contained in the independent auditor’s report on pages 104
and 105.
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2011 2010
For the year ended 31 March HE3A31BLEE HK$'M HK$'M
Results E¥ BEAET BEATT
(Restated)
(&%)
Turnover SRR 1,800.7 1,839.8
Profit attributable to owners RARHEE AR
of the Company 1,647.9 1,890.8
Dividends paid 2R E 256.5 81.0
Earnings per share (HK cent) BRRAEF OBI) 122 140
At 31 March W3 A31H HK$’'M HK$'M
Financial Position B AR BHEBET BEBTT
Total assets BEHLE 21,333.9 18,121.5
Total liabilities BERRE 6,457.1 5,179.7
Equity attributable to RAEEA AEEER
owners of the Company 13,571.7 11,784.3
Net assets value per share (HK$) EREEFE(ET) 10.1 8.7

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE (HKS)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

As at 31 March 2011, the shareholders’ funds of the Group
increased by HK$1,787.4 million to HK$13,571.7 million (2010:
HK$11,784.3 million (restated)). The increase was mainly due
to an upward fair value revaluation of investment properties,
disposal of certain investment properties and profit contribution
from operating units. The overall gross profit margin for the
Group was 28.5% (2010: 28.1%).

MAJOR CASH FLOWS TO/FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group acquired two residential investment
properties located in Tokyo, Japan for a total consideration
of HK$693.0 million. The Group also made an investment of
HK$331.1 million in a property development project in Thailand,
in which the Group has a 49% interest. In Hong Kong, the
Group also acquired an industrial building located in Tsuen Wan
at a total consideration of HK$140.0 million.

In addition, Tung Chung Station Development Company Limited,
in which the Group has 31% interest, repaid HK$86.8 million
shareholders’ loan to the Group during the year.

MA]JOR CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The sales of residential units located in Discovery Bay, Hong
Kong and that of The Sukhothai Residences in Bangkok,
Thailand contributed approximately HK$36.6 million and
HK$2.8 million cash respectively to the Group during the year.

During the year, disposal of the 50% interest in Discovery Park
Shopping Centre, Tsuen Wan was completed and brought
HK$1,372.3 million cash to the Group.
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The Group also sold certain residential investment properties
located in Discovery Bay and other areas of Hong Kong that
contributed HK$92.8 million cash to the Group. In addition,
the sales of Chelsea Residence in Shanghai, the PRC, brought
HK$17.6 million cash to the Group.

All the investment properties of the Group generated
approximately HK$266.4 million operating cash during the year.

MAJOR CASH FLOWS TO FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

On 26 April 2010, the Group fully redeemed its zero coupon
convertible bonds due 2010 (the “Bonds”) in the principal
amount of HK$647.0 million for a redemption price of
HK$834.3 million as a result of the maturity of the Bonds.

FINANCIAL LIQUIDITY

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had total cash and securities
investment of HK$2,590.4 million (2010: HK$2,527.5 million)
whilst total bank borrowings and other loans were HK$3,523.1
million (2010: HK$1,570.6 million). The major changes in bank
borrowings and other loans were reflected in the redemption of
the Bonds, capitalisation of certain development projects and
acquisitions of properties located in Hong Kong, Thailand and
Japan.

GEARING

The Group’s gearing ratio maintained at a level of 8.4% (2010:
2.4%) as calculated by the Group’s consolidated net borrowings
to the shareholders’ funds as at 31 March 2011.
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BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had adequate internal cash
and banking facilities, both secured and unsecured, to finance
its development projects and operations. As at 31 March 2011,
the unutilised credit facilities stood at approximately HK$3,420.3
million (2010: HK$5,141.1 million).

The maturity profile of bank borrowings and other loans were
43.2% (2010: 10.8% (restated)) falling within one year, 47.7%
(2010: nil) falling between one to two years, and 9.1% (2010:
89.2% (restated)) falling between two to five years as at 31
March 2011.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has centralised treasury functions and adopted
a conservative approach for its treasury management. With
majority of assets and liabilities denominated in HK dollars and
US dollars, the Group has limited exposure to foreign currencies.
To manage foreign currency exposure in certain investments
overseas, the Group has maintained naturally hedged positions
and made currency swap arrangements. The Group’s banking
facilities are principally on floating rate basis and interest rate
swaps will be employed to manage interest rate risk for its short
to medium term borrowings when appropriate and necessary.

It is the policy of the Group to restrict the use of financial
derivatives for speculative purpose.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had pledged property, plant
and equipment with a carrying value of HK$9.2 million (2010:
HK$9.1 million) and bank deposits of HK$2.9 million (2010:
HK$59.3 million) to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group. No property under development (2010: HK$104.9
million) was pledged for the aforesaid purpose as at 31 March
2011.

National Asset Limited, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary,
had subordinated an inter-company debt due from one of its
fellow subsidiaries in the amount of HK$40.2 million (2010:
HK$35.6 million) as at 31 March 2011 to secure banking
facilities granted to that particular subsidiary.

HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd, Beaufort Holdings Limited and
Sathorn Park Co Ltd, the Company’s subsidiaries, had also
subordinated certain inter-company debts due from one of their
fellow subsidiaries respectively in the amount of HK$16.9 million
(2010: nil), HK$273.6 million (2010: nil) and HK$176.0 million
(2010: nil) as at 31 March 2011 to secure banking facilities
granted to that particular subsidiary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s contingent liabilities relating to a corporate
guarantee given, to the extent of the Group’s proportionate
share, in respect of banking facility granted to an investee
company, increased by HK$6.9 million to HK$160.4 million as
at 31 March 2011 (2010: HK$153.5 million).

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have other
contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010.
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AUDITOR’ S REPORT
R G &

Deloitte.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
FEAEXEFEBRFRAR

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HKR
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 106
to 232, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2011, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
=g e FEMRAERENIT
Certified Public Accountants
PESIED

Hong Kong, 22 June 2011
&% 2011F6 A22H
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

el

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #2011 % 3 A 31 H1FF/E

2011 2010
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
BdsE BEET BEAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Turnover SRR 5 1,800.7 1,839.8
Cost of sales SHE KA (1,287.7) (1,322.9)
Gross profit EH 513.0 516.9
Other income H U 6 94.1 126.1
Administrative expenses THFAZ (431.8) (400.4)
Other gains and losses B as K 18 7 94.3 399
Change in fair value of SEYENTEEZE
investment properties
Realised gains on disposals HE 2z EER R 11,15 640.2 611.3
Unrealised gains REIF Wz 11 750.8 479.9
Finance costs %8R 8 (42.2) (82.2)
Share of results of associates SaK (B] AN e 19 150.1 116.8
Share of results of DG HEEGIEEEE
jointly controlled entities 20 79.3 780.2
Profit before taxation BRA AT A 9 1,847.8 2,188.5
Taxation 18 10 (63.9) (236.1)
Profit for the year RE G A 1,783.9 1,952.4
Attributable to: TRl
Owners of the Company RREHER A 11 1,647.9 1,890.8
Non—controlling interests eI 2 136.0 61.6
1,783.9 1,952.4
Earnings per share BRAF 14
— Basic (HK cents) — BEARCBW) 122 140
— Diluted (HK cents) — 858 (B 122 134
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
a2l R

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #Z 2011 %3 A 31 H1FF/Z

2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEET BEAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit for the year IS 5 F 1,783.9 1,952.4
Other comprehensive income (expense): Hibh2mEUkz (B ) -
Exchange differences arising from BMERINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations MR ZER 228.3 164.4
Share of reserves of associates DMEEE QR Z G 0.8 0.4
Share of exchange reserve of DMEREIESIEE
jointly controlled entities bE i 207.2 7.3
Available—for—sale financial assets: A ESREE :
Fair value changes during the year FRNRAFEEE) (19.1) 65.4
Reclassified to profit HEREFHEEER
or loss upon disposal (9.2) (63.3)
Deferred tax arising NFEEHEEZ
from fair value change EREFLIE (0.4) (0.9)
Revaluation gain on land T RAETF R I B Y R
and buildings upon transfer to EEZEHKE
investment properties = 4.6
Reclassification of exchange reserve HEBEARREFHHE
to profit or loss upon fEH FEEER
disposal of an associate = (0.3)
Other comprehensive income AEEFEHMEERE
for the year (net of tax) (HBrFiIEE ) 407.6 177.6
Total comprehensive income AEEZHKRREE
for the year 2,191.5 2,130.0
Total comprehensive income T EE Y=
attributable to: 48
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIE 2 =N 2,043.9 2,066.8
Non—controlling interests PR 147.6 63.2
2,191.5 2,130.0

107



108

HKR International Limited
Annual Report 2010/2011

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

G 0 MBS L

At 31 March 2011 R 201143 H31 H

31.3.2011 31.3.2010 1.4.2009
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
B sE BEET BEBT BEBT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
Non-current assets FEREEE
Investment properties BEME 15 6,133.1 5,298.6 5,367.3
Property, plant and equipment M - BE KEE 16 2,460.1 2,410.8 2,597.6
Prepaid lease payments Tt ER 17 35.8 34.4 34.0
Goodwill S 18 - = 9.2
Interests in associates FH NI Ty 19 514.1 3719 320.1
Interests in jointly controlled entities HEEGIEE R 20 6,011.2 49185 41204
Amount due from an associate FE MBS & R R FRIR 19,26 104.2 - -
Held—to-maturity investments RHEIHIRE 21 84.2 52.4 21.8
Available—for—sale financial assets AREESHEE 21 60.6 79.2 108.8
Other assets Hih g 22 129.4 53.2 94.0
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 28 7.6 3.2 2.7
15,540.3 13,222.2 12,675.9
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =g 23 160.7 134.7 145.1
Properties held for sale RIELEME 17.5 30.6 121.3
Trade receivables FEME FERF 24 110.8 92.2 286.3
Deposits, prepayments &~ BRHIEA
and other financial assets MEMERMERE 26 180.4 287.3 213.2
Properties held for/under BIELECBR/
development for sale BRAYE 25 2,727.4 1,735.1 1,173.3
Amounts due from associates g AN P 19, 26 91.1 211.5 476.4
Amount due from a jointly U L R P I B B
controlled entity FRIE 26 36.3 18.2 259
Taxation recoverable AR B 23.8 1.7 12.8
Held-to-maturity investments HEEHKRE 21 62.6 1355 23.7
Available—for—sale financial assets AEESHEE 21 - 9.2 =
Financial assets at fair value RO EF ABR
through profit or loss LERMBE 21 0.2 128.6 7417
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER 26 2.9 59.3 58.9
Bank balances and cash RITREBRRR 26, 37 2,379.9 2,055.4 1,903.5
5,793.6 4,.899.3 5,182.1
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade payables, provision B HERN - BiE
and accrued charges NEFTE R 27 919.8 933.4 849.0
Deposits received Bl e K EAD
and other financial liabilities SRIEE 32 621.2 694.5 548.6
Amount due to an associate FE{SEsE & R RIFRIB 32 5.5 10.0 2.2
Taxation payable FEfHHIE 58.6 43.6 103.9
Bank and other loans —FNE|H 2 R1T
due within one year REAMER 29 1,521.1 169.6 1,022.1
Other liabilities due within one year ~ —FREHEIZEMAERE 30 6.3 47 189
Convertible bonds AR ES
— liability component - BEHS 31 - 830.5 =
3,132.5 2,686.3 2,544.7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
GaMBERIE

At 31 March 2011 R 201143 H31 A

31.3.2011 31.3.2010 1.4.2009
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
B sE BE#ET BEBT BEBT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
Net current assets mENEESE 2,661.1 2,213.0 2,637.4
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 18,201.4 15,435.2 15,313.3
Non-current liabilities FRBaE
Bank and other loans —FR BB 2 RTT
due after one year MEAMEFR 29 2,002.0 1,401.0 2,360.0
Convertible bonds AR ES
— liability component — BEH 31 - 777.3
Other liabilities due after one year —FRIBM EMERE 30 1,177.9 886.4 945 4
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 28 144.7 206.0 3375
3,324.6 24934 4,420.2
14,876.8 12,941.8 10,893.1
Capital and reserves BARRFE
Share capital R 33 337.5 3375 337.5
Reserves & 13,234.2 11,4468 9,461.0
Equity attributable to owners RRFHER A
of the Company FE(EHER 13,571.7 11,7843 9,798.5
Non-controlling interests FEIE R R 1,305.1 1,157.5 1,094.6
14,876.8 12941.8 10,893.1

The consolidated financial statements on pages 106 to 232 were

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

22 June 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

F 106 EEF 232 EFTEGR A TBHRRE
KEEEAR201146 A 22 BRI

TI% - WH TIESREKRRSE

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director

CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham
Executive Director

BT JE F#EFAETE HITEE
B E= 0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
G HE i A B R

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &%= 20114 3 431 A1 F/Z

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FAAREARE
Investment Convertible
property Asset Investment ~ bonds Capital Non-
Share Accumulated revaluation  General ~ Share revaluation revaluation equity Distributable  Exchange redemption controlling
capital  profits  resene  reseve  premium  resenve  resewe  resenve  resewe  resene reseme Total  interests Total
BENE BE  BE WHRES TEAR E5RE
Rk BHEH EREE SEEE RBEE EMEE ENEE RERE  BE ERBE  BE  OF fBREE 4%
HKSM  HKEM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM
AE%n AEAT BERT ASAT AEAT BEET ASAT ARAT BART ABET AEET BEET AEAT ABET
(notea) ~ (note ) (notec) (note d)
(Wita)  (Mitb) (Hike) (Mizka)
At 1 April 2009 RA0F4A1AR
- as originally stated - BAE5 375 66819 - B3 15319 1294 573 345 4507 378 31 96984 10647 107831
- change i accounting policy - Sk 28 N (11} - - - - - - - - -l 09 100
- s restated - Ej R[5 67820 - 83 15319 194 573 345 4507 B8 31 97985 1096 108931
Profitfor the year RERAT - 18%08 - - - - - - - - - 18908 616 1924
Exchange diffrences arising HERINEREL Y
from translation of foreign operaions Eizg - - - - - - - - - 1652 - 1652 (08) 1644
Share of reserves ofan associte AMBERF L - - - - - 04 - - - - - 04 - 04
Share of exchange reserve of AELRBHEEZ
a ointy controlled enty (note &) B8 (Hie) - - - - - - - - - 73 - 73 - 73
Fair velue chenges on avalable-for-sale THLECHERY
financil assels ATEED - - - - - - 653 - - - -3 01 654
Reclasified to profit or loss upon disposal of i ETHHESHEAER
avallable-for-sle financiel assels EfNEEER - - - - - - (633) - - - - (633 - B3
Deferred taxarising fom fairvaue changes.— ATREESHARNTE
on avallable-for-sal financial assets ROMEL EERA - - - - - - (09) - - - - (09) = (09)
Revaluztion gain on and and buidings LHRETEERENEE
upon transfer to investment properties EEVERNE - - B - B 23 B - - - B 23 23 46
Reclassfication of exchange resenve fo LERENTRENIE
proftor loss upon disposalof an associate EiGEzES - - - - - - - - - 03) = 03) = 03)
Total comprehensive income fo the year TERRENREE - 18%8 - - - 27 11 - - - 20668 82 21300
Transferto accumulated profts BN ERERE
on the expiryof the conversion opton Zitiafl - Wb = - - - - (39) - - - - - -
Transferto investment property revaluation FRERERANE
resenve during the year B
- relatng to et ai valle change - EENEATEERY
in previous periods - 370 w0 - - - - - - - - - - -
- relating o net fair value change - EEERATSEEY
during the year - (L0578) 10678 - - - - - - - - - - -
Interim dividend paid B - 80 - - - - - - - - - @B - @
Acquistion of additional interestin asubsidiary  SEEMBARIER - - - - - - - - - - - - 03) 03)
At 31 March 2010 (Restated) R210%3A318(Z5]) R[5 7215 14048 783 15319 1321 584 - 407 500 31 17843 11575 129418
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
G0 HE fn 5 B Wk

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &% 201143 5 31 A1 F/Z

Attributable to the owners of the Company

KBNS
Investment
property Asset  Investment Capital Non-
Share Accumulated revaluation  Generall  Share revaluation revaluation Distributable  Exchange redemption controlling
capital  profits  resee  reseme  premium  reseme  resee  reseme  resene  reseme Total  interests Total
BENE KE  RE THAK E5RE
RE  RiEH ERRE LERG ROBEE ERRE EMRE  BE ERRE  BE  OF fRREE 0 4%
HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKS'M  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKS'M  HKSM  HKSM
BEAT FERAT FEET EEET ARAT EEER AEAT ERAT EERR EEAT RRAR EERR EEAR
(notea)  (note b) (note ) (note d)
(Wxa)  (Mah) (M) (H&d)
At 1 April 2010 (Restated) RO10E4A18(E5) 3375 72215 14048 783 15379 1321 584 4507 5600 31 117843 11575 12,9418
Profit for the year FERET - 16479 - - - - - - - - 16479 1360 17839
Exchange differences arising from RESIEREL
Hranslaton of foreign operations Eizg = = = - - - - - 267 - 267 116 2283
Share of exchange resenve of associates AMBENELRE = = = = = = = = 08 = 08 = 08
Share of exchange reserve of ontly PELREHERZ
controlled entites (note ) EGE(Hite) = = - - - - - - A2 - A2 - A2
Fair value changes on avaiable-for-sale TREESREEL
financial assets AHERS - - - - - - 190 - - - (190 - 190
Reclassfed to proft orloss upon HETRNESREER
disposal of avalable-for-sele EfifERER
financial assets - - - - - - 9.2) - - - 9.2 - 9.2)
Deferred tax arising from fair value
changes on avallable-for-sale
financial assets - - - - - - 04 - - - 04 - 04
Total comprefensive income for the year AEERENGEE - 16419 - - - - () - 4u7 - 20439 1476 21915
Transfer to investment property FRRERATETNG
revaluation reserve relaing fo ERELEYS
unrealised net air vale gain EfkRfE (WFL0)
during the year (Note 11(i)) - (8104) 8104 - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer from investment prperty FRERATETNG
revaluation reserve relaing fo net ERELEYS
fairvalle gain realised during EfiE (1)
the year (Note 11(i) - (1265 1265 - - - - - - - - - -
Dividends paid ERRE - (2565) - - - - - - - - (2565) - (2565)
Transfer upon disposal of a subsidiary HENBARRES - 6583 - (183 - (1293 - (407) - - - - -
At 31 March 2011 RO1E3A318 3375 83343 23417 - 15319 28 27 - 9847 31 135717 13051 148768
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
5 oo HE £ 2 B W ok

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &%= 201143 A 31 A1 F/Z

Notes:

Investment property revaluation reserve represents the Group’s
accumulated post-tax unrealised net fair value gain on the
investment properties of the subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities and associates recognised in profit or loss. Upon the
relevant investment property being disposed of and the fair value
gain becoming realised, the relevant net fair value gain will be
transferred to accumulated profits. Following the early adoption
of HKAS 12 (Amendments) “Income taxes”, the net amount of
transfer of investment property revaluation reserve during the
year ended 31 March 2010 was restated to reflect the change of
deferred tax charge upon revaluation of investment properties.

General reserve mainly represents reserve created by way of
capital reduction in a scheme of arrangement of the Group under
its former listed vehicle namely HKR Properties Limited pursuant
to a special resolution passed at the Extraordinary General
Meeting (the “Scheme of Arrangement”) in 1988. The general
reserve was transferred to accumulated profits upon disposal of
DP Properties Limited (formerly HKR Properties Limited) during
the year.

Distributable reserve was arisen from the cancellation of
the share capital and the share premium account of HKR
Properties Limited in the year of 1989/1990 under the Scheme
of Arrangement. The distributable reserve was transferred to
accumulated profits upon disposal of DP Properties Limited
during the year.

Capital redemption reserve is the amount equivalent to the
nominal value of the shares cancelled upon repurchase of the
Company’s shares which was transferred from accumulated
profits. The reserve may be applied by the Company in paying
up its unissued shares to be allotted to members of the Company
as fully paid bonus shares in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company and the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands.

Share of exchange reserve of jointly controlled entities during
the year included an amount of HK$49.9 million (2010: HK$1.7
million) arising from translation of interest in jointly controlled
entities and an amount of HK$157.3 million (2010: HK$5.6
million) exchange gain arising from loans that form part of net
investment in foreign operations.

!
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FEHemER

For the year ended 31 March 2011 2 2011 4 3 5 31 H1FF/Z

2011 2010
NOTE HK$'M HK$'M
BIsE BEBT BEATT
(Restated)
(&%)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES HIEETR
Profit before taxation BRA A& A 1,847.8 2,1885
Adjusting items, net FHEEIE B F R (a) (1,541.8) (1,845.5)
Operating cash flows before RETAEEE SR 2

movements in working capital KEHREME 306.0 343.0
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (8%m)md (17.0) 23.4
Decrease in properties held for sale e EWER D 13.1 90.7
(Increase) decrease FEUSE ZRRFK (3L 10 ) B

in trade receivables (16.3) 202.6
Decrease (increase) in deposits, e - FENFZUEREA

prepayments and other TRVEER A (3E00)

financial assets 117.4 (66.4)
Increase in properties held BELEZBE /ZRT

for/under development for sale LESEYI (931.2) (444.7)
Decrease (increase) in amounts JE W BSs R B 5RIE

due from associates A (1) 9.5 (36.1)
(Increase) decrease in amount FEU AL EIEHIE 88

due from a jointly controlled entity FRIE (1800 ) Bk (18.1) 7.7
Decrease in financial assets BAFERAERZZ

at fair value through profit or loss DRLEER D - 694.8
Decrease in mortgage e W iZiE o AR FOR A

instalment receivables 9.2 9.6
(Decrease) increase in JERTE ZER - BN

trade payables, provision FEETE A (R ) 1

and accrued charges (29.2) 39.1
Increase in deposits received Bz e REMEF

and other financial liabilities B &N 48.0 146.0
(Decrease) increase in FE{S B & A RIFRIR

amount due to an associate R ) 140 (4.5) 7.8
Decrease in derivative AR T AR

financial instruments (1.4) (3.2)
Cash (used in) generated from Zi&(FTA) FIiSRE

operations (514.5) 1,014.3
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BENBEBNER (36.3) (44.9)
Overseas tax paid EEINMEIE (35.2) (382.3)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED &iEX%%#% (EfH) Fid

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEFH (586.0) 587.1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

v]“ =] IE%IJ;LE%%

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #Z 201143 A 31 A1 F/Z

2011 2010
NOTE HK$'M HK$'M
BIsE BHEETT BEATT
(Restated)
(&%)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Proceeds from disposal of HE—RWBARZ

a subsidiary FriSsaa 15 1,372.3 -
Redemption of BORFEIHRE

held—to—-maturity investments 170.8 46.7
Proceeds from disposal of HERATERFABR

financial assets at 2 e B EMSHKIE

fair value through profit or loss 128.4 =
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYE 2 FSHKIE

investment properties 101.0 1,440.4
Repayment of loans N aEEER

from an associate 70.9 355.0
Decrease (increase) SRR ITIER

in pledged bank deposits A (350) 56.4 (0.4)
Interest received 2HFE 26.1 11.7
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - KEKEE

property, plant and equipment Z TS 508 13.6 12.3
Redemption of available—for—sale B HEEeREE

financial assets 9.2 30.1
Decrease in other assets H &R 0.1 -
Option fee refunded EROREEE 0.1 0.1
Capital contribution B T HEEGIE S

to a jointly controlled entity (6.3) -
Dividends received from associates & UHE 4 A &A% R 9.0 8.7
Capital contribution to an associate & FHt< A A (72.7) =
Additions of property, REME  BERZE

plant and equipment (124.6) (122.1)
Additions of held—to-maturity NBEFEINEEE

investments (126.9) (189.1)
Loans to jointly controlled entities BERTHEIEHIER (799.9) (10.6)
Additions of investment properties ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%% (1,026.4) (165.5)
Decrease in long term deposits RiRTT 2 REFEZUR

with a bank = 23.4
Proceeds from disposal of interests &S N FHERS 2

in associates PS5 sk - 69.8
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED # & %% (FrH ) Fig

FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFHE (198.9) 1,510.5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH EL_OWS
GABIAHER
For the year ended 31 March 2011 &% 201143 5 31 A1 F/Z

2011 2010
NOTE HK$'M HK$'M
BdsE BEET BEAT
(Restated)
(&%)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B
New bank borrowings raised FTIRRITEER 3,189.6 834.6
Advance from (repayment to) 278 (BRT)
non-controlling shareholders FEIERR AR R 284.8 (77.0)
Club debentures issued HEERES 4.5 5.1
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITEE (1,406.8) (2,649.1)
Redemption of convertible bonds HE o] AT AR (E 5 (834.3) -
Dividends paid EfIRE (256.5) (81.0)
Interest paid ERFLE (25.5) (13.8)
Repayment of obligations EERERERIE
under finance leases (1.5) (1.2)
Club debentures redeemed BOemES - (6.0)
NET CASH GENERATED BHE XS (ERA)
FROM (USED IN) FINANCING HEFH
ACTIVITIES 954.3 (1,988.4)
NET INCREASE IN CASH HeRH&%EEER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Z RS 169.4 109.2
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHZRER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR H&%EER 2,055.4 1,903.5
EFFECT OF FOREIGN ExEFHzE
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 155.1 427

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZEER
AT END OF THE YEAR Re%EHERB 37 2,379.9 2,055.4
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CONSOL!DATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HABeRER
For the year ended 31 March 2011 &%= 201143 A 31 A1 F/Z

2011 2010
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
BdsE BEAET BEABTT
(Restated)
(&)
Note: Bt
(a) Analysis of adjusting items, net (a) AREBEBBEZM
Change in fair value of WEWMHE 2 N TEE
investment properties (750.8) (479.9)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RE AR 2 Was 15 (634.1) -
Share of results of associates Akl = NCIE (150.1) (116.8)
Reversal of provision for loans BERARARELHRER
to an investee R 7 (85.3) =
Share of results of jointly controlled DG LRI B A
entities (79.3) (780.2)
Interest income FEUA 6 (26.1) (11.7)
Net gains from financial CREE / BEFHE
assets/liabilities 7 (7.8) (86.6)
Gain on disposal of HEREYZHE 2 W
investment properties 15 (6.1) (611.3)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - BE MRE
plant and equipment 2 518 9 0.5 139
Release of prepaid lease payments FENAENRED 9 1.2 1.1
Net allowance for doubtful debts REEBEFE 9 4.0 25
Impairment loss recognised BRERREEE 7 10.0 75.3
Interest expense FERX 8 29.3 638.9
Depreciation of property, Wz -~ BE MEE
plant and equipment ZITE 9 152.8 153.7
Gain on disposal of an associate L EBE AR 2 W - (74.4)
(1,541.8) (1,845.5)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the development, management and
provision of essential and recreational services for residential
housing and leisure projects in Discovery Bay, Lantau Island,
other property development, property investment, hotel
operation, manufacturing, securities investments and provision
of healthcare services.

The Group’s associates and jointly controlled entities are
principally engaged in property development, property
investment and construction.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 &%= 201143 A 31 A1 F/Z

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(@) In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

2. WERIWAT Al ieuT A i
B e st el

@ RAFE  AKEECERTIHEE
BRI AR R ] REERT
BRI BRI 2R ([ #75] RAE(E
RIEBMBIREER]) o

(“HKICPA™).
HKFRS 2 Group cash-settled share—
(Amendments) based payment
transactions
HKFRS 3 Business combinations

(as revised in 2008)

HKAS 27
(as revised in 2008)

Consolidated and separate
financial statements

HKAS 32 Classification of rights issues
(Amendments)

HKAS 39 Eligible hedged items
(Amendments)

HKFRSs Amendments to HKFRS 5 as
(Amendments) part of Improvements to

HKFRSs issued in 2008

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs

(Amendments) issued in 2009

HK(IFRIC*) — INT 17

HK—INT 5

Distributions of non—cash
assets to owners

Presentation of financial
statements — Classification
by the borrower of a term
loan that contains a
repayment on demand
clause

* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee

(formerly known as the International Financial Reporting

Interpretations Committee).
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(2008 4
LIEET )
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$£3258
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%395
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(1BETA) AR 2008 &

B2 BB
R ERE 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The adoption of these new and revised standards has
resulted in the following changes and impact on the results
and financial position for the current year. The adoption of
the other new and revised HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current
and prior accounting periods have been prepared and
presented.

AMENDMENT TO HKAS 17 LEASES

As part of Improvements to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued in 2009, Hong
Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 17 “Leases” has
been amended in relation to the classification of leasehold
land. Before the amendment to HKAS 17, the Group was
required to classify leasehold land as operating leases
and to present leasehold land as prepaid lease payments
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
amendment to HKAS 17 has removed such a requirement.
The amendment requires that the classification of
leasehold land should be based on the general principles
set out in HKAS 17, that is, whether or not substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased
asset have been transferred to the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in
the amendment to HKAS 17, the Group reassessed the
classification of unexpired leasehold land as at 1 April
2010 based on information that existed at the inception
of the leases. Leasehold land that qualifies for finance
lease classification has been reclassified from prepaid
lease payments to property, plant, and equipment
retrospectively. This resulted in a reclassification of
prepaid lease payments with a previous carrying amount
of HK$65.1 million and HK$109.1 million at 31 March
2010 and 1 April 2009, respectively, to property, plant and
equipment that are measured at cost model (see Note 2(c)
for the financial impact).
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As at 31 March 2011, leasehold land that qualifies for
finance lease classification under the amended HKAS 17
with the carrying amount of HK$63.5 million has been
included in property, plant and equipment. The application
of the amendment to HKAS 17 has had no impact on the
reported profit or loss for the current and prior years.

HONG KONG INTERPRETATION 5
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS — CLASSIFICATION BY THE
BORROWER OF A TERM LOAN THAT
CONTAINS A REPAYMENT ON DEMAND
CLAUSE

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of financial
statements — Classification by the borrower of a term loan
that contains a repayment on demand clause” (“HK-
INT 5”) clarifies that term loans that include a clause that
gives the lender the unconditional right to call the loans
at any time (“repayment on demand clause”) should be
classified by the borrower as current liabilities. The Group
has applied HK-INT 5 for the first time in the current year.
HK-INT 5 requires retrospective application. In order to
comply with the requirements set out in HK-INT 5, the
Group has changed its accounting policy on classification
of term loans with a repayment on demand clause. In the
past, the classification of such term loans were determined
based on the agreed scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements. Under HK-INT 5, term loans with
a repayment on demand clause are classified as current
liabilities. As a result, bank loans that contain a repayment
on demand clause with the aggregate carrying amounts
of HK$10.3 million and HK$0.6 million have been
reclassified from non—current liabilities to current liabilities
as at 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2009 respectively. As at
31 March 2011, bank loans (that are repayable more than
one year after the end of the reporting period but contain a
repayment on demand clause) with the aggregate carrying
amount of HK$333.9 million have been classified as
current liabilities. The application of HK-INT 5 has had
no impact on the reported profit or loss for the current
and prior years. Such term loans have been presented in
the earliest time band in the maturity analysis for financial
liabilities (see Note 36 for details).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HKFRS 3 (REVISED) BUSINESS
COMBINATIONS AND HKAS 27 (REVISED)
CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group applies HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business
combinations” prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after 1 April 2010. The
requirements in HKAS 27 (Revised) “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” in relation to accounting
for changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary after
control is obtained and for loss of control of a subsidiary
are also applied prospectively by the Group on or after
1 April 2010.

As there was no transaction during the current year in
which HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27 (Revised) are
applicable, the application of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS
27 (Revised) and the consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs had no effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting
periods.

Results of the Group in future periods may be affected by
future transactions for which HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS
27 (Revised) and the consequential amendments to the
other HKFRSs are applicable.

Up to the date of approval for issuance of these
consolidated financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs which are
not yet mandatorily effective for the current accounting
period. The Group has not early adopted any of these
standards, with the exception of the amendments to
HKAS 12 titled “Deferred Tax: Recovery of underlying
assets”. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012, but as permitted
by the amendments, the Group has decided to adopt the
amendments early.
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EARLY ADOPTION OF HKAS 12
(AMENDMENTS) INCOME TAXES

The change in policy arising from the amendments to
HKAS 12 has had a material impact on the current and
prior accounting periods. As a result of this change
in policy, the Group now measures any deferred tax
liability in respect of the Group’s investment properties
with reference to the tax liability that would arise if the
investment properties were disposed of at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date, unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. Previously, where these
properties were held under leasehold interests, deferred
tax was generally measured using the tax rate that would
apply as a result of recovery of the assets value through
use. This change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively by restating the opening balance at 1 April
2009 and 1 April 2010, with consequential adjustments to
comparatives for the year ended 31 March 2010 (see Note
2(c) for the financial impact).

This change in accounting policy has resulted in an
increase in the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company and non-controlling interests of HK$126.5
million and HK$16.4 million, respectively, for the year
ended 31 March 2011, and an increase in the interest
in associates, non—controlling interests and investment
property revaluation reserve of HK$24.7 million, HK$59.0
million and HK$276.0 million respectively, and a decrease
in deferred tax liabilities of HK$310.3 million as of 31
March 2011.

The investment properties of a jointly controlled entity are
held with the objective to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. Accordingly, the
amendment to HKAS 12 has no impact on the share of
results of jointly controlled entities for the current and prior
accounting periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as issued in November
2009 and revised in November 2010) introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets and will be effective from 1 January
2013, with earlier application permitted. This standard
requires all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement” are subsequently measured at either
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. The directors
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 will affect the
classification and measurement of the Group’s available—
for—sale financial assets and may affect the classification
and measurement of other financial assets.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new, revised or amended
standards and interpretations will have no material impact
on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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The following table is a summary of the impacts on the (c)

T%%*EﬁELT‘" B/ P RNFTRT R4

results and financial position after adoption/early adoption EETERI| B S48 MR B FSAR I 2 oo 28
of the new and revised standards:

Effect of Effect of
As adoption of adoption of Effect of
previously amendment amendments adoption of As
reported to HKAS 17 to HKAS 12 -INT 5 restated
RMEE RN
EiHER  gRtER
%£17% $£12%  RNE#E
ZBETAR  zZ#BEA REBESH
KR bd-% ZEE b4 % | L]
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBL HEAT BEAT BEBT BEAIL
Consolidated income statement HE2010F3A31H
for the year ended 31 March 2010: IEEE 2fralissk
Share of results of associates HMEHE D REE 111.0 - 5.8 = 116.8
Taxation HIE (282.4) = 463 = (236.1)
Profit for the year AEERA 1,900.3 = 52.1 = 1,952.4
Attributable to: TFIEL :
Owners of the Company V/NEIE 2PN 1,841.4 = 49.4 - 1,890.8
Non-controlling interests IR 589 - 2.7 = 61.6
Eamings per share TREAF
— Basic (HK cents) — BEAR () 136 = 4 = 140
— Diluted (HK cents) — #58 (O8(l) 130 = 4 - 134
Consolidated statement of financial R2010F3A3182
position as at 31 March 2010: FAMBMRR
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERE 2,345.7 65.1 - = 2,410.8
Prepaid lease payments BAAERR 99.5 (65.1) = = 344
Interest in associates NG Fy 356.9 - 15.0 - 3719
Bank and other loans due within —FREEZRTR
one year HER (159.3) - - (10.3) (169.6)
Bank and other loans due after *ﬁfﬁ 'Jﬂﬂzﬁﬁﬁ&
one year HiEm (1,411.3) - - 103 (1,401.0)
Deferred tax liabilities EREHIEAR (383.1) = 177.1 = (206.0)
Non-controlling interests S 1,1149 - 426 - 1,1575
Investment property revaluation reserve RENESMREE 1,255.3 = 1495 = 1,404.8
Consolidated statement of financial R2009F48182
position as at 1 April 2009: AR
Property, plant and equipment mE - BER&HE 2,488.5 109.1 = - 2,597.6
Prepaid lease payments BARERR 143.1 (109.1) - = 340
Interest in associates NI Ty 311.0 = 9.1 = 320.1
Bank and other loans due within —FREZRITR
one year Hih &R (1,021.5) - - 06)  (1,022.1)
Bank and other loans due after —FRIBIRITR
one year HER (2,360.6) - - 06 (23600
Deferred tax liabilities ELREAE (468.4) - 1309 - (337.5)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 1,054.7 = 399 - 1,094.6
Accumulated profits Z:DEF 6,681.9 = 100.1 = 6,782.0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra—group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising from an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the cash—-generating units (or groups of cash—generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

G0 B R I

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &% 201143 5 31 A1 F/Z

3. HAEHEIBUR

REMBBRRDRRELSSAMASH
BT BT B RE LR o L5 -
HEMBBRRBEMIAES LHRA
KERRBURDIRE 2 EREE -

BRETYWELRGRIARAFESE
SN - SR A MR MR TIRIRE L AR E A
e WESIN TIEFTBERNA

ERA R

HEMBHRREEARAREEZEH 2B
B (EWBAR) 2MBHRRE - 1EHlFEAR

7

RRAERNEEREB M B R EEK
R RMZERELEEE -

FREBARBEZHBRAREE DR
mEBERBEEREELEEME I (A
BRERE )T AGZE SR -

HEFE - HBAR M BHRR T IAH
B BEESHBRREAASERMBKER
RAFTRAEER 2 °

SEARBRMZAAERS - Mk
BERRE KRB REBEH

B 8 A A) 2 FRIE A ot B AN SR [ 2
DHRZ5 -

[y
WIERISRTEL 2 BB TN GRS MR
ARPEXABRRETRERBE (105 ) 78

V2R

BEENAMS  AELIRERHEE
REAHMELEHRANEZZ BRBRTE
HEEREURZERECELE

125



126

HKR International Limited
Annual Report 2010/2011

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
50 W B R W

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &%= 201143 A 31 A1 F/Z

A cash—generating unit (“CGU”) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising from an acquisition in a reporting period,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associates. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long—term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that associate.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
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(higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to
the Group.

JOINT VENTURES

Jointly controlled asset

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint venture
arrangements directly, constituted as jointly controlled asset, the
Group’s share of the jointly controlled asset and share of any
liabilities incurred jointly with other ventures are recognised in
the consolidated financial statements and classified according to
their nature. Liabilities and expenses incurred directly in respect
of interests in jointly controlled asset are accounted for on an
accrual basis.

Income from the sale or use of the Group’s share of the output
of the jointly controlled asset, together with its share of any
expenses incurred, are recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to/
from the Group.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled
entity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entity
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investment in jointly controlled entities are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the jointly
controlled entities. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly
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controlled entity (which includes any long—term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled
entity.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly controlled entity.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount, any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled entity,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the jointly
controlled entity are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the jointly
controlled entity that are not related to the Group.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amount receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties.

When a development property is sold in advance of completion,
profit is only recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to this stage are
included in current liabilities.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised as services are rendered.
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Hotel operation income is recognised upon the provision of
services and the utilisation by guests of the hotel facilities.

Dividend income from investments excluding financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") is recognised when
the Group’s right to receive payments has been established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset excluding financial assets at
FVTPL is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes other than construction in progress
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than properties under
construction less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner—occupied

purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production
or for administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease
payments provided during the construction period is included
as part of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management).

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE ASSETS
OTHER THAN GOODWILL (SEE THE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES IN RESPECT OF
GOODWILL ABOVE)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined as if no impairment loss had been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

INVENTORIES

Properties held for/under development for sale

Properties held for/under development for sale are classified
under current assets and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs relating to the development of the
properties include land cost, construction cost, borrowing costs
and other direct development expenditure. The properties
are transferred to properties held for sale upon completion of
construction.
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Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are
classified under current assets. They are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Other

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rate that
has been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40
“Investment property”, such properties are presumed to be
recovered through sale. Such a presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale. If
the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets for such investment properties are measured in
accordance with the above general principles set out in HKAS
12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the properties
will be recovered).
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LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy on
borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the lease term. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term
on a straight line basis.
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Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight line basis, except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating leases, in which case the
entire lease is classified as an operating lease.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non—monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non—
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation,
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non—monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non—-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

in which case, such exchange differences are

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (the exchange reserve), and reclassified
to profit or loss at the time when the foreign operation is
disposed of.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.
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All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments (including
all fees or points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income from debt instruments and interest expense
are recognised on an effective interest basis, other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income
is included in net gains or losses.
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Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the four
categories, including financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables, held-to—maturity investments and available—for—
sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non—derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables, other assets, other financial assets,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, amounts due
from associates and amount due from a jointly controlled entity)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held—to—maturity investments are non—derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held—to—
maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Available—for—sale financial assets

Available—for—sale financial assets are non—derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables or held—to—maturity investments.

Available—for—sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available—for—sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and other financial assets, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.
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The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and other financial assets, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade receivables
and other financial assets are considered uncollectible, they
are written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit
or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses were recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available—for—sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified
into other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities other than derivatives (including bank loans,
trade payables, deposits received, other financial liabilities and
other liabilities) are subsequently measured at amortised costs,
using the effective interest method.
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Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both liability
and conversion option components are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition. Conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.
Derivatives embedded in non—-derivative host contracts are not
separated from the relevant host contracts when the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are closely
related to those of the host contracts. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component is determined using
the prevailing market interest of similar non—convertible debts.
The difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the embedded call option for the
holder to convert the bonds into equity, is included in convertible
bonds equity reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, representing the option to
convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity reserve until
the embedded option is exercised, in which case the balance
stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will be transferred
to share premium. Where the option remains unexercised at
the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be transferred to the accumulated profits. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible bonds
using the effective interest method.
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Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect is
material).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes/
state—managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as expenses when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Management had made the following estimations that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.

FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 31 March 2011 at their fair value of
HK$6,133.1 million (2010: HK$5,298.6 million) (Note 15). The
fair value was based on valuation of these properties conducted
by independent firms of professional valuers using property
valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions of
market conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties and corresponding adjustments
to the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
income statement.
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A jointly controlled entity obtained the land title certificates of
two pieces of land out of three. The management considers
there is no material legal impediment for the jointly controlled
entity to obtain the land title certificate of the remaining one.
The valuation of the three pieces of land which are classified
as investment properties under construction held by the jointly
controlled entity was conducted by independent firms of
professional valuers which was derived by making reference
to recent comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant property market (on the assumption that all the land
title certificates have been obtained at the valuation date),
and has also taken into account the estimated costs to be
incurred to attain the vacant clear site including future land
costs for obtaining land title certificate, which are deducted in
order to arrive at the value of the partially completed project.
The valuation involves certain assumptions and estimation of
future cost to be incurred. The changes of these assumptions
and estimation would result in changes in the fair value of
the investment properties under construction held by a jointly
controlled entity. As at 31 March 2011, the fair value of the
investment properties under construction held by the jointly
controlled entity amounted to HK$11,166.6 million (2010:
HK$9,799.1 million) (Note 20) and the Group’s share of the
value of the investment properties under construction amounted
to HK$5,583.3 million (2010: HK$4,899.6 million).

PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s properties
held for/under development for sale amounting to HK$2,727.4
million (2010: HK$1,735.1 million) (Note 25) with reference
to current market environment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
may exceed its net realisable value. Appropriate write—down
for estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised in profit and
loss when the net realisable value is below cost. The estimates
of net realisable value are based on the evidence available at
the time the estimates are made of the amount the properties
held for/under development for sale that are expected to realise.
Actual realised amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a
decrease in the net realisable value of these properties held for/
under development for sale and additional write—down may be
required.
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PROJECT INVESTMENT UNDERTAKEN BY A
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

The Group has a 50% equity interest in a jointly controlled entity,
Dazhongli Properties Limited (“Dazhongli”), which is engaged in
the development of certain properties in Shanghai, the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”). In considering the recoverability of
the Group’s loans to Dazhongli amounted to HK$4,388.4 million
(2010: HK$3,916.9 million) (Note 20), management takes into
consideration the recoverable amount of the underlying assets
of Dazhongli which is determined by reference to the costs to be
incurred to complete the development of the properties and the
future rental income to be generated therefrom. In this regard,
management considered that no impairment is necessary in
respect of the loans to Dazhongli.

IMPAIRMENT OF AMOUNT DUE FROM AN
ASSOCIATE

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position
at 31 March 2011 is an amount of HK$878.9 million (2010:
HK$930.7 million) due from an associate, Tung Chung Station
Development Company Limited (“TCSDCL”), which is engaged
principally in property development activities (see Note 19). In
determining whether an allowance for the amount due from the
associate is required, the management takes into consideration
the recoverable amount of the underlying assets regarding the
amount due from the associate and the likelihood of collection.
Specific allowance is only made for the amount that is unlikely
to be collected from the associate. The management is satisfied
that no impairment is considered necessary in respect of the
amount due from an associate.

el E R 2 JHE B E

REBHE —BHEEIZEFHERBRATEY
EBRAR ([ KFE]) Z250%8k A4
W RRAREREAREME ([ ])
EBREETYMEZER - ZEAEE
WEIN AR E 2 ERA43884EBETT
(20104 : 3916.9EB&EL) (MFE20)
2Nk EREBATERBEEY
AEEBEFAZEREZ  MzeBED
DRENVMEZREEEE ZHARK
RESWAEE - LIS BEEER
EHREGE T AR EZ BIRELRIE -

B M Wi 2 vl gk ok L

B MN2011F3 8318 %4 & B8 % &
S ER ET A FE UK Bt & & ®] Tung Chung
Station Development Company Limited
(ITCSDCL)) <z X 1E8789 /A & % T
(20104 : 930.7 A& B L) ° Z Al E
EREVEBREB (AMNFE19) B
EERBMAGTERKEESARHBEE
A EISEE - PR %ESE 2 AT OE
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DEFERRED TAXATION

As at 31 March 2011, no deferred tax asset was recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
in relation to the estimated unused tax losses of HK$574.5
million (2010: HK$517.5 million) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future taxable profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future taxable profits generated differs
significantly from the expected, a material recognition may
arise, which would be recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the period in which such recognition takes place.

5. TURNOVERAND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into seven operating divisions:
property development, property investment, services provided
(clubs operation, provision of professional property management
and transportation services to the residents of Discovery Bay),
hotel operation, healthcare (provision of medical and dental care
services, comprising cancer centres, dental clinics, diabetic and
cardiovascular centres and multi-specialty outpatient centres),
manufacturing (manufacturing and sales of bathroom products)
and securities investment. Operating segments are identified on
the basis of internal reports about divisions of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision maker
in order the allocate resources to the segment and to assess
its performance. Each of the operating divisions represents an
operating segment.

G0 B R I

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #Z 2011 %3 A 31 A1 F/Z

HE 2 1 IR

R2011463 A31H + B FEER K &=
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results LA BiEIELE DO A EEAE R
by operating segments for the year: ZIMA R SELE
Property Property Services Hotel Securities
development  investment provided  operation  Healthcare Manufacturing  investment Total
NEBR  PERE  RERE  EEREF  BERE B BHRE gt
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BE#T EHRER FEEET EEERT  HREn  EBERT  HEERT  BRER
For the year 31 March 2011 BZ201153R31ALEE
TURNOVER BER
Segment revenue - sales ABIA - AEBR
to external customers derived NG I
by the Group and associates ZHEB 810.2 465.5 3975 344.1 409.4 227.1 92  2,663.0
Excluding turnover of associates B N P2 (752.9) (85.5) - - - - - (838.4)
Excluding sale proceeds of investment  EABRARE 2R EME
properties located in the PRC Zfﬁﬁﬁﬂ—gﬁ - (14.7) - - - - - (14.7)
Excluding sale proceeds of REFREZHE
securities investment Pﬁi%ﬁ - - - - - - 9.2) 9.2)
Consolidated turnover, as reported FREEE MEH 57.3 365.3 397.5 344.1 409.4 227.1 - 1,800.7
RESULTS E+
Results - total results of the Group, £15 - 156 BEDAR
associates and jointly controlled LEEHEE 2E0T
entities (note 1) (BizED) 116.3 923.5 49.1 15.5 (42.8) (15.9) 14.9 1,060.6
Excluding results of associates RRIREEAEHEDAR
and jointly controlled entities HRZHIER XA
not shared by the Group (66.4) 14.2 - - - - - (52.2)
Segment results attributable TEEREDHEE
to the Group 49.9 937.7 49.1 15.5 (42.8) (15.9) 14.9 1,008.4
Unallocated corporate expenses FARAAER (99.7)
Finance costs and corporate level HBERRARER
exchange difference ZERET (32.1)
Net unrealised gains RENEATER
on fair value change of LRETMRFE
investment properties (note 2) (HtE2) 750.5
Net unrealised gain TEERGARIGERR
on fair value change of BENFANRENFER
investment properties attributable ZATEEE)
to the Group's interest in jointly AERWEFE -
controlled entities and associates, MBI
net of deferred tax 156.8
Profit for the year TEEER 1,783.9
Non-controlling shareholders' share FERBEAMEAER BF
of profit for the year (136.0)
Profit for the year attributable ARHER AE(S
to the owners of the Company RERRT 1,647.9
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Property Property Services Hotel Securities
development  investment provided operation  Healthcare Manufacturing  investment Total
WERE  WERE  RERE  OEEEE  BERRE 2 EFRE 5t

HK$'M HKSM HK$M HKSM HKS'M HKS'M HKSM HK$'M

BEAT RSPt FEEET  BEAT  ASST  BEAT  BEAT  AESR

For the year 31 March 2010 BZE201053A31BLEERE
TURNOVER EXE
Segment revenue - sales AHRA - REER

to external customers derived HERARAENMIEP

by the Group and associates ZHER 14785 1,7374 3796 290.0 496.9 2231 %89 47044
Excluding tumover of associates AL UNGIPA-E (1,270.0) (849) - - (849) - - (14398
Excluding sale proceeds of investment MR TRE 2R ENE

properties located in the PRC ZHERFHR - (1359 - - - - - (1359
Excluding sale proceeds of RRBEHREHE

securities investment S - = - - - - (989) (989)
Consolidated turnover, as reported GREXE MER 2085 3266 3796 290.0 4120 2231 = 1,8398
RESULTS E4
Results - total results of the Group, ¥ - 15E BEAAR

associates and a jointly controlled HEEHER RE0E

entty (note 3) (H23) 179.0 7282 460 125 276 (70.1) 892 10124
Excluding results of associates ARFAREAEHERRR

and a jointly controlled entity HERHER 5E

not shared by the Group (106.2) (5.4) - - - - - (111.6)
Segment results attributable REBEED HEE

to the Group 728 7228 46.0 125 21.6 (70.1) 89.2 900.8
Unallocated corporate expenses RABRAER (75.5)
Finance costs and corporate level HEERRARER

exchange difference ERER (80.2)
Net unrealised gains RENEATEEY

on fair value change of CAERNEFE

investment properties (note 4) (MizE4) 390.3
Net unrealised gain REAEEARAHERR

on fair value change of BERARRENF s

investment properties attributable LATHERE

to the Group's interest in a jointly LRETMRFE

controlled entity and associates, MBRETHE

net of deferred tax 817.0
Profit for the year M@éﬂ 19524
Non-contralling shareholders’ share FERREAEAER B F

of profit for the year (61.6)
Profit for the year attributable PNGE 72N

to the owners of the Company TEERF

1,890.8
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Notes:

(1)  The segment results of property investment business for year
ended 31 March 2011 included realised gains on fair value
change of investment properties of HK$640.2 million, deferred
tax credit on disposal of investment properties of HK$5.1 million,
and recognition of current tax upon disposal of investment
properties of HK$4.3 million.

(2) The net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment
properties for year ended 31 March 2011 of HK$750.5 million
represented the unrealised gain on fair value change of
investment properties of HK$750.8 million net of the deferred tax
arising from change in fair value of HK$0.3 million.

(3) The segment results of property investment business for the
year ended 31 March 2010 included realised gains on fair value
change of investment properties of HK$611.3 million, deferred
tax credit on disposal of investment properties of HK$214.3
million, recognition of current tax upon disposal of investment
properties of HK$315.3 million, and withholding tax on
undistributed profits of a PRC subsidiary of HK$27.6 million.

(4)  The net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment
properties for the year ended 31 March 2010 of HK$390.3
million represented the unrealised gain on fair value change of
investment properties of HK$479.9 million net of the deferred tax
arising from change in fair value of HK$89.6 million.

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external
customers.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating
segments is disclosed as they are not reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker nor otherwise regularly provided to the
chief operating decision maker for review.

!

(1) #BZE201143A31BILFE  WER
BEB D HEEBRREMELTE
BB ERRKR6402FEET - H
EREMERBRELERIRLIAEE
TRHEREYMEREZNIHIEALI
BEBTT

(2) HZE201153A31HIEFE - KEY
ERNTEEPH 2 ARBHEKEFIRT750.5
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BYzm7508BEAET - MKELQFE

EPMEL JELERFE0IEEAT °

(3) EZ=2010F3A31HIFE @ WEK
BEB2HOBEEDEREMERNTE
B BRWH6IIIFEBT 1
EREMEERBRELEFIBE2143 88
BT HEREME R BRI IE
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OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
For the year ended 31 March 2011
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B A o I At

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &% 201143 5 31 A1 F/Z

Ho Al 43 36 B
BZ2011 43831 HLEE

Property Property Services Hotel Securities  Unallocated
development  investment provided  operation  Healthcare Manufacturing  investment amounts Total
WEBR  WERE  RERE  EERE  BERR HE  RERE  AOEEE &t
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
EL AL AL L AL L L L L L 2
Amounts included in the measure of STEATRTEEMOE
segment profit or loss: %
Revenue from inter-segment sales * P EE kG - (3.1) (5.2) - - - - - (8.3)
Depreciation il -] 21.8 105 30.5 50.6 23.7 121 - 3.6 152.8
Impairment losses on property, plant % - BEREIEED
and equipment recognised REEE - - - - 100 - - - 10.0
(Reversal of allowance) (BEEE) REAE
allowance for doubtful debts (0.6) - (L.1) - 5.0 0.7 - - 40
Reversal of provision for loans to aninvestee ~ BERAEREHS EF Al - (85.3) - - - - - - (85.3)
Net gains from financial assets/liabiliies SREE/ BETRE - - - - - - (7.8) - (7.8)
Loss (gain) on disposal of HENE - BE Rkt
property, plant and equipment Big (&) - 08 01 (0.4) - - - - 0.5
Realised gains on disposals of HEREMEEER NG
investment properties = (640.2) - - - - - - (640.2)
Interest income FEKA (1.0) (14.4) = (0.6) (0.2) = (0.2) (9.7 (26.1)
Interest expenses HERR - 28 - 0.1 0.1 08 - 384 42.2
Income tax expenses (credit) FEHES (84) 84 52.2 8.0 (6.8) 28 - - (0.7) 63.9
Share of results of associates PMBERA XA (799 23 - - - - - (72.5) (150.1)
Share of results of jointly controlled entties PELFEHESE 2 EE - 5.0 = = = = - (84.3) (79.3)
For the year ended 31 March 2010 HE2010FE3 A31HIEEE
Property Property Services Hotel Securities  Unallocated
development  investment provided operation  Healthcare  Manufacturing  investment amounts Total
NEER  MERE  RERE  BEEEE  BERR 2E FARE  ROELER oy
HK$M HKS M HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HKS M HKSM HKSM
BEAT EBEAn  BEBAn  BEBMn  BEAn  BEAn  BEAn BEAT  BEAn
Amounts included in the measure of SENTRTIREEN
segment profit or loss: 258
Revenue from inter-segment sales * P EERE - (33) (4.4) - - - - - (7.7)
Depreciation bk 218 88 307 46.8 305 114 - 37 1537
Impairment losses on property, plant % - BERkEEER
and equipment recognised HEBE - - - - - 60.6 - - 60.6
Net allowance for doubtful debts RERRTE - - 01 - 20 04 - - 25
Impairment loss on goodwil RERBEI BERESE
recognised in profit or loss - - - - 94 53 - - 14.7
Net gains from financial assets/liabilities SREE/ BETRE - - - - - - (86.6) - (86.6)
(Gain) loss on disposal of HENE - BE Rk
property, plant and equipment (W) BB 6.7) 03 104 6.0 38 01 - - 139
Realised gains on disposals of HEREME B 2R
investment properties - (611.3) - - - - - (611.3)
Interest income HEHA (0.2) (6.0) - (0.6) 01) - 33) (15) (11.7)
Interest expenses HEFE 20 19 - 03 - 13 - 76.7 822
Income tax expenses (credit) FEHRS (H4) 143 1406 53 @17 (2.4) - 104 896 236.1
Share of results of associates QTE BERA R (744) - = = - - - (42.4) (1168)
Share of result of a jointly controlled entity FEREHEE EE - (5.6) - - - - = (774.6) (780.2)
* Inter-segment sales are entered into in accordance with the & S ZEETIRIEREEZEXN G 2H

relevant agreements, if any, governing those transactions, in

which the pricing was determined with reference to prevailing

market price or actual cost incurred, as appropriate.

B (F ) #1770 RBERTY
BITMEXBREEKRAN (RYE

SUME ) BE °
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Turnover from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover from its
major products and services:

TR i B s 2 SR

KT AREBEBESRBE LB
o

2011 2010

HK$'M HK$'M

BHEET BEBTT

Sales of properties SHEMZE 57.3 208.5
Sales of goods HEEMm 227.1 223.1
Services rendered TR AR TS 1,145.2 1,066.6
Rental income e WA 371.1 335.0
Others Hip - 6.6
1,800.7 1,839.8

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

For each of the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010, the
Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, South East Asia,
Australia, PRC and United Kingdom.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on the
location of properties and goods delivered or services rendered
and location of properties in the case of rental income, and
information about its non—current assets by geographical
location of the assets are detailed below:

i [85  R

HZE2011F K2010F3A31 B L& F
B AEBZEEXEBURES - KB
g5~ BN - AR R o

AEBHRBINBES (ARNYELE R
SRR AR 2 & LA R WA 2 2 3 [
RER) 2Was MABEREEMIEGE
SN ZIERBEELZFIBTWT

Revenue from

external customers

Non—current assets

KEIMEBE P W ERBEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BER#Ex BE85T BEEBRT BEAT
Hong Kong BB 1,076.9 1,143.9 6,807.6 6,626.3
South East Asia R 486.2 458.2 2,471.1 1,263.7
Australia SEM 173.3 1755 3.6 3.1
PRC =5 34.9 28.4 5,871.8 5,140.8
United Kingdom R 29.4 33.8 0.2 0.3
1,800.7 1,839.8 15,154.3 13,034.2

Note: Non—current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred
tax assets.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The revenue from individual customer contributed less than
10% of the total turnover of the Group for both years.

(et - ERBDEETBREERM T ARRER
HEE -
HREEREPZER

R EAmEFE - REE@EETP 2 ¥
TEBANEEEEEERZ10%
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6. OTHERINCOME 6. HABUWA
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEATT
Other income includes the following: EMABE TIFIE
Bank and other interest income SR1T R E AT B UL A 26.1 11.7
Gain on disposal of an associate HEEE N F 2 W - 74.4
Other income EMUA 68.0 40.0
94.1 126.1
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HAtbUg s Kiesid
Other gains (losses) include the following: Hipezs (EiE) 85 & 1E -
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEATT
(i)  Net foreign exchange gain (i)  HNPERE s 11.2 28.6
(i) Reversal of provision for loans (i) BEFEERESRER
to an investee (Note 22) Z Bt (FizE22) 85.3 -
(i)  Impairment loss recognised (i) ERRREERE
Property, plant and equipment Yz -~ BRE R
(Note 16) (FI=E16) (10.0) (60.6)
Goodwill (Note 18) P (HiFE18) = (14.7)
(10.0) (75.3)
(iv) Net gains from financial (iv) &@éEE/ afEFhEs
assets/liabilities \
Net realised gains on BAVERFABSCSREE
financial assets at FVTPL BERZFERE - 215
Net unrealised gains on BAFEFABRZ SREE
financial assets at FVTPL KRB 7 ENES - 49
Net realised gains on A ESRARE
available—for—sale BEIR 2 F e
financial assets 9.2 63.3
9.2 89.7
Net losses on derivative AT A ZFEE
financial instruments (1.4) (3.1)
7.8 86.6
94.3 39.9
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8. FINANCE COSTS

8. WEEH

2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEAT
Interest on THIEIEZ T E
Bank and other loans wholly repayable ARRAFABHEER
within five years ZRITREMER 25.4 13.6
Other borrowings wholly repayable ARRAFABHEER
within five years ZEMEE 4.9 5.6
Convertible bonds — liability component ATk ES — BRAFA
wholly repayable within five years THEEZS %‘E‘ 152 3.8 53.2
34.1 72.4
Less: Amounts included in the cost of B ETARBERE 2
properties held for/under BE/BRTYME
development for sale A2 & %58 (4.8) (3.5)
29.3 68.9
Bank loans arrangement fees RITERLZEER 12.9 13.3
42.2 82.2
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. [ERLEIEEA
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEET BEAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit before taxation has been arrived BRI A& E R (FTA) -
at after charging (crediting):
Auditor’'s remuneration A Gl 7.6 6.6
Cost of inventories and developed properties 175 & 2 2R EK A
recognised as an expense BRAEEA 153.0 2482
Operating lease rentals in respect of THREF 2 KEHERS
land and buildings 46.5 44.8
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BREMEREZ
plant and equipment E518 0.5 139
Net allowance for doubtful debts (Note 24) REREEFRE (M15E24) 4.0 2.5
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) B TIRKA (BEEEME) 509.2 456.5
Release of prepaid lease payments TERTHEE R e 1.2 1.1
Depreciation e
Owned assets BEEE 152.4 152.7
Assets under finance leases BREHETCEE 0.4 1.0
152.8 153.7
Net rental income under operating leases on K& E 2 HE WA E5E
Investment properties REYZE (367.6) (329.9)
Other properties HinsE (3.5) (5.1)
Less: Outgoings D AR 22.9 185
(348.2) (316.5)
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10. TAXATION 10. BiIH
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEETT BEATT
(Restated)
(&%)
The taxation charge comprises: A HELE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated at 16.5% A& & (st FERBEF)
on the estimated assessable B R 16.5% :t &
profit for the year BBEFFH 35.9 40.0
Overseas tax calculated at rates prevailing EEERAERBERZ
in respective jurisdictions (note a) MEFTE 2 /8INMRIE (HiTa) 35.4 332.2
71.3 372.2
Deferred taxation for current year (note b) REFIRLERIE (H5Eb) (7.4) (136.1)
63.9 236.1
Notes: B =
(@)  The overseas tax charge for the year comprises: (a) AFEZEINEESHETE
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
(Restated)
(&%)
Land Appreciation Tax and Enterprise Income B HERIATE R E WM
Tax arising from disposal of investment EEAE 2 T HIIB AR R FT1SHR
properties in the PRC (“PRC Tax on ([ HEZREYZE 2 RBIFIE )
disposal of investment properties”) 4.3 315.3
Other overseas tax E A /GoNHIE 31.1 16.9
354 332.2
Taxation (credit) charge to profit or loss ELEREmZEm (5tA)
during the year arising from disposal of MBAFERSZFHRBENAT
investment properties is as follows:
PRC Tax on disposal of investment HEREMZE 2 REFIE
properties 4.3 315.3
Less: Deferred tax recognised in prior year B BEFERERELERIA
(Note 11) (FgaE11) (5.1) (214.3)
(0.8) 101.0
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(b)  An analysis of current year deferred taxation is as follows: (b) ANEEBELERBZOMAT :
2011 2010
HK$’'M HK$'M
BEET BEAT
(Restated)
(831)
Deferred tax charge arising during the year ~ RNEEREWHE N FEE
in respect of unrealised gain on fair value EERSHR W 2 RERIE
change of investment properties 0.3 89.6
Deferred tax credit on disposal of HEREMERER ZELEFIE
investment properties (5.1) (214.3)
Others HAtb (2.6) (11.4)
(7.4) (136.1)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated & /& F|75 TRETQEWIEFTE%EEE%%}%BT&
assessable profit for both years. FILFAEK 16.5% &

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT  iEEFR R P EFRER L ([ DEMRER
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax  J& |) R{CEMEBEAE RG] - HEH
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years. BARINGZREAEE 2= 525%

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates NEM R EEEES Z2HIBIZEER)E
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. BE 7T ERAE -

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends in BIBEMEMENE B2008F181H

respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January  #8 - B+ BB A 5T HEUEF 2 %

2008 onwards. Deferred taxation of HK$27.6 million (2011: nil) B /B&HTEMFE - REZE 201093 A 31

has been provided during the year ended 31 March 2010. HIFEE B/ERELERBEEE276H/
BHT (20114 &) -

157



158

HKR International Limited
Annual Report 2010/2011

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50 W B R W

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &%= 201143 A 31 A1 F/Z

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

AR ERIA AR S W R ARTA

taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows: A Z SRR
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEER BEAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit before taxation BR 5 Bl 4 A 1,847.8 2,188.5
Less: Share of results of associates B DREE R EIFER (150.1) (116.8)
Share of results of jointly controlled DG HEEESIEEEE
entities (79.3) (780.2)
Profit before taxation attributable to AARIREMB AT
the Company and its subsidiaries FE(E B B AT & A 1,618.4 1,291.5
Tax charge at the domestic income tax rate B TSI R 16.5% 51
of 16.5% Z B 267.0 213.1
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARMAZ BB 2
purpose (246.9) (92.5)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR AT 2 RIS 2
for tax purpose 28.2 43.7
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERTLIEE R 2 TS 2 12.4 21.9
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FARBERERZHIAEBE
recognised (3.1) (54.9)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REM R AR R & &
operating in other jurisdictions ZHBRARMERNR 22 0.7 21.7
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAMHERZ5E
differences not recognised 2GR 2.8 21.8
Effect of Land Appreciation Tax in the PRC PR £ i IR (E R 2 2.0 42.1
Deferred tax arising from withholding tax on R BIFfI B A 7] Z & 7 K 4 Fl
undistributed profits of a PRC subsidiary ZTETEA BRERIA - 27.6
Others EHAfth 0.8 (8.4)
Taxation attributable to the Company AARIREWBARENRN
and its subsidiaries for the year FE(LF7IE 63.9 236.1
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11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11. KA R A NREAS A B
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF i Al
THE COMPANY
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEET BHEBT
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit for the year attributable to RATIHB AEIEREE R
the owners of the Company BIE

comprises of:

() Netunrealised gains on change in (i) FREEMWELFEEH

fair value of investment AR W FRE
properties during the year
— The Group — A5HE 750.8 479.9
Less: Deferred tax R EERIE (0.3) (89.6)
Attributable to FEIEIR R = FE (L
non—controlling interests (96.9) (16.3)
653.6 374.0
— Jointly controlled entities, HEEHIEE -
net of deferred tax HBRIELET IR
(Note 20(a)) (F#EE20(a)) 84.3 774.6
— Associates, net of — Bt QR MRIELETIA
deferred tax 72.5 42.4
810.4 1,191.0
(i)  Accumulated net realised gains on (i) FRHEREYEZ K5t
disposal of investment properties B2 IR W F R
during the year
Gain on disposal of an & — BB W SEER
investment properties B ARz e
holding subsidiary 634.1 =
Realised gain on disposal of FALEHMEEDE
other investment properties 2 BERUES
for the year 6.1 611.3
Realised gain on disposal of HEREYSE
investment properties <2 BB W
(Note 15) (FfIsE15) 640.2 611.3
Accumulated (losses) gains BAFERRCHERE
on change in fair value of YN EEE) R5T
disposed investment (B8 ) W=
properties recognised in MBRIEER IR (95T )
prior years, net of
deferred tax (note) (126.5) 240.9
Taxation credit (charge) AFEERHIBE L (ZH)
for the year 0.8 (101.0)

514.5 751.2
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2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEABTT
(Restated)
(&%)
(i) Reversal of provision for loans (i) BEFEERESHRERZ
to an investee (Note 22) BE (MEE22) 85.3 =
(iv) Other profits attributable (iv) ARFRHEB AEGEEAER]
to the owners of the Company 111.2 189.5
Subtotal INET 1,521.4 2,131.7
Less: Accumulated losses (gains) B BAFEEERZLE
on change in fair value of KEWMERNTEE
disposed investment properties REtEE (k=) -
recognised in prior years, net of MBRIEER IR (HI5E)
deferred tax (note) 126.5 (240.9)
Profit for the year attributable KRB ANEEARFER R
to the owners of the Company 1,647.9 1,890.8
Note: Accumulated gains on change in Misk - BAFECDHERZEEREME
fair value of disposed investment NHEZE) R T WE (MiFE15)
properties recognised in
prior years (Note 15) 39.0 455.2
Deferred tax relating to fair value BEFEEERCHEREYE
change of disposed investment N EZ R 2 RLEBIE
properties recognised in prior years (FizE10)
(Note 10) (5.1) (214.3)
Accumulated losses on change BEFEERRCLERENSE
in fair value of a disposed 2 N EEUNEINS SR
investment properties holding REHEsE
subsidiary recognised in prior years (160.4) -
(126.5) 240.9
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 12. FHMNE KL AEETE
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID B 24

(D

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (D #HFEMSFEHOT :
ARE AS FOLLOWS:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the fourteen sk ER 144 (201045 : 134)
(2010: thirteen) directors were as follows: BEERAZHEHT -
For the year ended 31 March 2011 BE2011543A31HILEE

Cha Cha  Cheung  Chung  HoPak  Tang Cha  ChaYiu WongCha  Ronald  Cheng  Cheung  Cheung
MouSing MouZing  Tseung SamTin  Ching  Moon MouDaid  Chung MayLung  Joseph KarShun KinTung Wing Lam Qin

Pagson ~ Victor ~ Ming Abraham Loretta Wah  Johnson Benjamin* Madeline  Arculli ~ Heny ~ Manvin  Linus Xiao Total
ERE ERM REW EUR  fiRE BRE EEE R IEEE O EEE  BRM RBE R BB 4
HKSM  HKS'M  HKSM  HKSM  HKS'M  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKS'M  HKSM  HKSM  HKS'M  HKSM  HKSM
EEAT EEAn FEAT FREN FEMN EERT FEEAr FRAN DEAR BEEN EEAr REST FERR BEAT AEED

Fees Be - 03 0.1 - 0.1 - 0.1 - 0.1 0.2 03 03 03 03 21
Other emolumens Efie
Salares and ek
offer benefis At 44 47 2l 19 - 32 - 10 - - - - - - 113
Performance related s
incentive payment (note) (A& ) 54 6.1 66 06 = 15 = 12 = = = - - -4
Refiement benefis RIRER)
schermes contribution Rl -0 o1 ol - 02 - 0l S = - - - - 07
Total emoluments Heag 9.8 113 89 2.6 0.1 49 0.1 23 0.1 02 03 03 03 03 415
For the year ended 31 March 2010 BHZE2010F3A31HLEFE

Cha Cha  Cheung  Chung  HoPak Tang Cha WongCha ~ Romald  Cheng  Cheung  Cheung
MouSing MouZing ~ Teeung  SamTin  Ching  Moon MouDaid Maylung  Joseph KarShun  KinTung Wing Lam Qin

Pagson ~ Victor Ming ~ Abraham  Lorefta Wah  Johnson ~ Medeline  Arculi  Heny  Manin Linus Xiao Total
2 EER KSR EVE  fiRA BRE BEE TERE O BRR 3B R OBGR FB &
HKEM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM
BEAT REAT AERN BERT BERT REWT AEAT BERT BERT RERT AEAT REET BERL BEAT

Fees ok - 03 - - 01 - 01 01 02 03 03 03 02 19
Other emoluments Efoie
Salares and 2R
other benefis Attt 42 45 20 19 - R - - - - - - - B8
Performance related &
incente payment (note) (k) 15 45 05 04 - 14 - - - - - - -8
Retirement benefis RIMER
schemes contribution AEIES - 03 02 0l - 02 - - - - - - - 08
Total emoluments Heogs b1 96 2] 24 01 48 0.1 0.1 0.2 03 03 03 0.2 2638
Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined MizT : BERIETIREERNELSHLE - E
with reference to the operating results, individual BRI LA E IR EIERETE o
performance and comparable market statistics during the
year.
* The amount represents the remuneration since the date of @ e RREREREAES 2 HEE

appointment as director. 24 o
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(1D

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors as an inducement to join. No directors
waived any emoluments during both years.

EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the five highest
paid individuals of the Group included four (2010: four)
executive directors, whose emoluments are disclosed
above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2010: one)
employee are as follows:

(1D

RRER - ARETFERES N
e - RMFEAR - MEEEHET
NS -

1 B P <2

HZE2011F3A8318IEFE K
SEREZRFMAL Ef4df
(2010F : 4%) BMTES @ FF
ZBER EXEEE - 82T 14(2010
F:1R)EEZMEMT :

2011 2010

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEBT

Salaries and other benefits e REMETF 4.0 4.2
Retirement benefits schemes RIBEFIFT B

contribution 0.1 0.1

4.1 4.3
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13. DIVIDENDS 13. I8
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
HEET BT

HZE2010F3 A31 HILMBEFE 2
EIRNARERE — T 128

Final dividend paid
for the financial year ended
31 March 2010 of HK12 cents (B ZE200943 A31H1E
(financial year ended FHREE : &)
31 March 2009: nil) per share 162.0 -
HZE2011F3A31BILHMBEEZ

Interim dividend paid

for the financial year ended
31 March 2011 of HK7 cents
(financial year ended

BRI HRR B — B 7 B
(i ZE 20103 A31HIE
FREE : 6/8l)

31 March 2010: HK6 cents) per share 94.5 81.0
256.5 81.0

Proposed final dividend BREZE 201143 A 31 HIEFK

for the financial year ended FEZARPRE — SR11EWL

31 March 2011 of HK11 cents (BZ201063A31H1E

(financial year ended BRFEE - 12781)

31 March 2010: HK12 cents)

per share 148.5 162.0
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

14. BB & A

AATEE AR GREARR SR
TR T FIBE S -

2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEET BEAT
Earnings EF
Earnings for the purpose of calculating STESRERZN BT
basic earnings per share (profit for (RAREE AEIL
the year attributable to owners of REZ @)
the Company) 1,647.9 1,890.8
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BEBETH ST E LB
Interest on convertible bonds ATHMRES 2 FIE 3.8 53.2
Earnings for the purpose of calculating STESREERN 2 BT
diluted earnings per share 1,651.7 1,944.0
2011 2010

Number of shares

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of calculating the basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
relating to convertible bonds

PR

SAEERERARZ
Ealie {=

ARBESA AR
EEEYE TR

1,350,274,367

7,563,245

1,350,274,367

105,885,434

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share

AAEESREERTZ
Lol B2

1,357,837,612

1,456,159,801
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. HEW*E
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEET BEAT
FAIR VALUE VARG
At beginning of the year F1] 5,298.6 5,367.3
Currency realignment B 78.7 185
Additions NE 1,026.4 165.5
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss AEZRFER 2 A EE S
— Realised gain on disposals — HEZEER W 6.1 611.3
— Unrealised gains — RER W 750.8 479.9
Disposals k= (101.0) (1,440.4)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHB AR
(see note below) ( B TBEE) (926.5) —
Investment properties under construction M -~ WEKEEEN
reclassified from property, plant DEETRIREYF
and equipment = 91.5
Transferred from property, plant and HEEBME  BEREE
equipment - 5.0
At end of the year FR 6,133.1 5,298.6

Investment properties of the Group held at the end of the HRIREHAR - REFIEA ZIREWMERT

reporting period are situated on land as follows: R Z BT
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEAT
Freehold outside Hong Kong R BB AIMEE 2 K A 4 917.7 201.0
Long leases outside Hong Kong R BB LAIME R 2 KHATE LY 123.0 131.9
Long leases in Hong Kong U REB KEAD 761.6 343.2
Medium term leases in Hong Kong M REB 2 R EIFEA 4,330.8 4,622.5
6,133.1 5,298.6

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$1,026.4 K KNEBEFEEZEL 102647 &8 T
million (2010: HK$165.5 million) on the acquisition of (20104 : 1655 B & &0 ) WAL A B

investment properties located in Tokyo, Japan and Hong Kong. RNERNEEZILEYEE o
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The Group disposed of certain investment properties duringthe &R » KAEFBHEE FIHEYE - HE

year and the details of the disposals are as follows: B/
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEET BEAT
Sales proceeds received B E P15 5IE 101.0 1,440.4
Original cost of acquisitions Wi 2 R ANE (55.9) (373.9)
Accumulated gains on change in fair value BAFEEERZATE
recognised in prior year (Note 11) BE)Raties (MIEE11) (39.0) (455.2)
Realised gain on disposal recognised FAHERFER 2 FR Y=
during the year 6.1 611.3
Realised gain on disposal of investment ERLENBRARILNE
properties through disposal of a subsidiary KEME 2 2 ERI =
(see note below) ( B TCHRE) 634.1 -
Total realised gains on disposals of HEREYEZ

investment properties (Note 11) EER B (1) 640.2 611.3
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Note:

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 10 December 2010, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third party to dispose of its entire interest in a wholly
owned subsidiary, DP Properties Limited (formerly HKR Properties
Limited). DP Properties Limited owns 50% interest in the Discovery
Park Shopping Centre, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong (the “Property”) and
owns 50% of each of two associates, Discovery Park Commercial
Services Limited (“DPCSL"”) and Discovery Park Financial Services
Limited (“DPFSL"). DPCSL and DPFSL provide estate management
and leasing services in respect of the Property and second mortgage
loans to purchasers of residential units in the residential tower blocks
located above the Property respectively. The Group’s interest in the
Property, was accounted for as a jointly controlled asset of the Group.
The transaction was completed on 22 March 2011.

The consideration and net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

G0 B R I

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &% 201143 5 31 A1 F/Z

B EE
H A [T g 2 )

R2010F 12108 - AEEBEE=F %

—NEBENZ HEEZ2ERBZHNER
&) DP Properties Limited (RifEE S (9
%) BRAR) 22 I o DP Properties
Limited B BB E RS TR EDRES ([ Z
YIE |) B0% 2 fEmm A R E & A7 (B
SHWEERBEER AR ([DPCSL])) ks
WA RIS B BR A A (TDPFSLJ))%SO%Z
W% - DPCSL & DPFSL% Bst B B W) % 4=
HEHETERHERBERABELER L
MYEZEEAEFEEMEEERES

TIERBER  c AEBZZMERREFT AR
SEKEFIEHEE - 2R 5K 2011 F3 A22
AR °

HEZERZREREEFENT

HK$'M
BEBTT

Consideration received and receivable: B U EUARIE :
Cash received BlR e 1,400.4
Deferred cash consideration FEER S RE 10.5
Total consideration received and receivable B R R EERE 1,410.9
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22.3.2011
HK$'M
BEET

Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed of: HEEEMBBZOMWT :

Investment properties HEYZE 926.5

Interest in associates B\ )RS 1.5

Property, plant and equipment W - BB MEE 2.6

Amounts due from associates g NCIE 6.7

Bank balances and cash RITEHER LIRS 28.1

Deposits received and other payables BliES Rk E A ER IR (121.3)

Taxation payable FERTFRIR (6.9)

Deferred tax liabilities RETIBE B (60.4)
Net assets disposed of HER 2 EEFE 776.8
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RHBARZ IR

Consideration received and receivable B ERARE 1,410.9

Net assets disposed of B BEFE (776.8)
Gain on disposal recognised WEWMENTFEEH 2

as realised gain on change in fair value of B IR G B R R I e

investment properties 634.1
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HERNEEZHEEMAFRE :

Cash consideration received BYERSNRE 1,400.4

Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of B HERZIRITERKES (28.1)

1,372.3

The deferred consideration was settled in cash by the purchaser in May — JRIEAREBER 2011 E5 BB H BG4S -
2011.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the principal asset AN A &&= 525 DP Properties Limited 2 = Z
of DP Properties Limited is the investment properties and thus the BEVIEEDE  ANEHETIRGEERER
disposal was accounted for in the consolidated income statement as SHABEEYE T HE -

disposal of investment properties.
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The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2011 and 2010 have been arrived at on the basis of
valuation carried out by the following independent firms of
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group
who have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.
The valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence
of transaction prices for similar properties and by reference to
net rental income allowing for reversionary income potential
using the applicable market yields for the respective locations
and types of properties as the discount rates. The valuation
of investment properties under construction amounted to
HK$110.0 million (2011: nil) as at 31 March 2010 was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties, on the basis that the properties will be
developed and completed in accordance with the Group’s
latest development proposals, after taking into account of the
estimated construction costs to completion to reflect the quality
of the completed development.

G5 0 M ok I

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &% 201143 5 31 A1 F/Z

RNE&EBN2011 5 R 2010F3 H31H 2
BREMERFETRAT BN EEIL &
FREY BFEE BRI RER AR
HMZBUMEHELSRCBYLASERE
EAEMITETHEIEESE - &
ELNARYE ARSI N ER ZER
mIZWEERIRE - 2FRUMEK
REZTERERZEZFHEWANE
R BB AR 2 TEETT ° R 20104
3A31 HERKREYE ZHER1100A
BET (20114 : &) D2RE\ELMERZ
MERHERKE - LWOEHSRER
SECEMBERTRERETRASER
B EPEFTAMETRENN - AR
RETERBRAERCEE -

Location of BEME
Name of valuer investment properties {L{EED &8 FE% Z =
DTZ Debenham Tie Hong Kong and PRC BE2TAE AT EBKAH
Leung Limited
DTZ Debenham Tie Japan BERITARAH B
Leung Limited (note) (F3E)
N&A Appraisal Company Thailand N&A Appraisal Z=E

Limited

Note: DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited has engaged DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung KK, its member firm in Japan to carry out the valuation
of the Group’s properties in Japan.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

Company Limited

iz : MERTERARAEZEERBAZ
X & 72 & DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
KK - SRS BN AR Z YR ITHE -

AEERAKEHER MTHERIER
HIEEARTHERZ ZMEERRIRAR
FEENAE XD BERARINERE
E e
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

16. WI3& ~ W Bt

EQUIPMENT
Furniture, Plant, Ferries,
Commercial fitures  machinery  launches
Hotel ~ Freehold  Landand Construction and leisure  Leasehold and and  and motor
properties land  buildings inprogress facilitiesimprovements  equipment equipment  vehicles Total
KA HAR & it » B Ea
EENE  RELH IHREFT ERIE  RERE  WERE RERRG RERAGE RERRE it
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEET EBERT EBERT BEET  BEAT  BEAT  BEAT  BEAT  BEAT  BEER
(noteb) ~ (notec)
(MfEp)  (Bifzkc)
CosT R
At 1 April 2009 R009%F4A1R
- as original stated - FxE51 1,1596 2943 4808 562.4 6119 2025 2946 2618 4971 4365.0
- effect on changes in accounting policies - EHEREY TR
(Note 2(c)) (KizE2(0)) - - 1427 - - - - - - 142.7
- as restated - &5 1,1596 2943 6235 5624 6119 2025 2946 2618 4971 45017
Currency realignment ElaR 109.7 28 04 21 - 21 70 19 13 1543
Addtions HE 165 - - b1 15 184 178 06 137 1226
Properties under construction transferred ERMFERERENE
to investment properties - - (54.1) (493) - - - - - (103.4)
Disposalshwrie-of IHE /s (132) = (1) (6.4) - 79 @4 76 (32 (908
Transfer to property held forfunder ERRHELEY
development for sale R/ 4RTNE - (75.3) - - - - - - - (753)
Transfer to investment properties BEBRENE - - (38) - - - - - - (38)
Transfer E1 17.0 - 214 (693) - - 01 20 - -
At 31 March 2010 (Restated) R2010%3A318(E3) 12896 2488 5033 4936 6134 2151 299 2817 4789 45113
Currency realignment REAE 1236 176 16 17 - 23 85 83 16 1712
Additions AE 304 - 2.7 200 - 319 174 11 161 1246
Disposalsfwrite-off HE /s (14.5) (34) = (28) = 81) (134) = (38) (46.0)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 15) HE-TEHBAR (i 15) - - - - - 91 (14) - - (105)
Transfer e 127 = (43) (84) - - - - - -
At 31 March 2011 R2011435318 1,446.8 263.0 599.3 504.1 6134 232.1 308.0 2911 4928 47506
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT HERAE
At 1 April 2009 RA09%F4A1R
- a5 original stated - REE51 4582 - 1795 - 305.7 1309 1798 2340 3884 18765
—effect on changes n accounting policies - SihRE e
(Note 2 (c)) (HizE2() - - 336 - - - - - - 36
- a5 restated - &jl 4582 - 2131 - 305.7 1309 1798 2340 3884 1910.1
Currency realignment REAE 461 - 04 - - 13 57 15 09 59
Provided for the year AEEEE 401 - 191 - 147 %3 30 13 192 1537
Properties under construction transferred ERMFERZREANE
to investment properties - - (119 - - - - - - (119)
Eliminated on disposalsfrite-off HE /MRS (106) - - - - (55) (202) (59) 223) (645)
Impairment loss recognised (note ) ERRREEE (M) = - 345 = o o 12 %9 - 606
Transfer to investment properties ERERENE - - (34) - - - - - - (34)
At 31 March 2010 (Restated) 103 A31A (E5]) 5338 - 2518 - 3204 1530 1995 2558 382 21005
Currency realignment -t 484 - 52 - - 15 6.1 48 10 67.0
Provided for the year RERRE 49 - 150 - 142 33 314 59 181 1528
Eliminated on disposalshrite-off HE /iR (143) - - - - (5.2) (88) - (36 (L9
Eiminated on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 15) &~ AR3 (Wi 15) - - - - - (66) (13) - - (79)
Impairment loss recognised (note a) AR AR (fta) = = = = = = 100 = = 100
At 31 March 2011 R2011%3 5318 612.8 - 272.0 - 334.6 166.0 236.9 266.5 4017 2,2905
CARRYING VALUES RAEE
At 31 March 2011 R2011%3F31H 834.0 263.0 321.3 504.1 218.8 66.1 711 24.6 9.1  2460.1
At 31 March 2010 (Restated) R2010£3A31 A (EF)) 7558 2088 3415 4936 2930 62.1 974 209 927 24108
At 1 April 2009 (Resfated) R009E4 418 (E5]) 7014 2943 4104 5624 3062 716 1148 218 1087 25916
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Notes:

(@) In the opinion of the directors, certain of its property, plant
and equipment were impaired at 31 March 2011 as a result of
operating losses of an operation under the healthcare segment
(2010: manufacturing segment) in the PRC. The impairment
loss of HK$10.0 million (2010: HK$60.6 million) was recognised
based on the recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment accordingly.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment for the
healthcare (2010: manufacturing) operation was estimated based
on a value—in—use calculation and the calculation was based on
the budgeted cash flow approved by the management covering a
five—year period at a discount rate of 7.00% (2010: 6.66%).

(b)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s plant, machinery and
equipment included an amount of HK$0.5 million (2010: HK$2.7
million) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

(c)  During the year ended 31 March 2010, a ferry of the Group was
damaged by fire beyond repair and its carrying amount value
of HK$9.8 million was written off in the accounts. At 31 March
2011 and 31 March 2010, no account has been taken of any
insurance recovery in this connection as the amount cannot be
determined with any degree of accuracy.

ltems of property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are depreciated on a straight line basis, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land No depreciation

Hotel properties 30 - 86 years
Land and buildings, commercial

and leisure facilities 10 - 40 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 -5 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 5 - 15 years
Ferries, launches and motor vehicles 5 - 20 years

As at 31 March 2011, included in construction in progress was
interest capitalised of HK$13.8 million (2010: HK$13.8 million)
not yet transferred to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment.

G0 B R I

For the year ended 31 March 2011 #Z 2011 %3 A 31 A1 F/Z

(@) BEERA HRNBERFRRED (2010

ﬁiii“$)$¢liﬁzmégﬁ'

ETHWE - BERXBER2011F

3A31BHBRIE - REZFWE - B

Fe Ko sk s < PIIR B & BE AR < BB RS 1B

#10.0E 8Bt (20104 : 60.6 BES
JT) e

ZEBERRRE (2010F : &) XB2
YE - BE KRREZ AT E S8 T RE
REELETLHE  ZERAREEE
HERERFHRZ RS R RAE R
7.00% (2010% : 6.66%) &t & °

(b) AEEBEME - HERZEZFRAERE
BRBREREREREEEZEE0D
AEBL(2010F : 27 HBEBIT) ©

() MEZE2010F3HA3IHIEFE - ~&
Bz — MR E AN SRR - BAERE
HRM{E9.8 A BB LB N % = IAM
85 o 201143 A31 A K 2010563 H
318 - AR AESREEMEME
HIRERETE - MW ESLILETARRE -

W% - BE&ZRBEE (EZIRERIN)
RESEAMERT AMERFRINE -

KASEREL MY WEFE
Y ES 30E 864
THREF mAK

FRELTE N 102404
MEWERE 54
R~ HE R 3E5EF
WS RS AR BE 154
Eim - A RRE 5E204F
R2011F3 A31H @ stAEREZIREF 2

BREAMBEH13.8EEE T (20104 :
138BEBT) AABRENE - BEK
REEE R
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The carrying value of properties shown above comprises:

Hotel properties

BimEZEERERR

Freehold land

Land and buildings

EENE KAEELH TiRET
3132011 3132010 142000 3132011 3132010 142009 31.3.2011 3132010  1.4.2009
HKS$'M HKSM HKSM — HK$'M HKSM HKSM  HK$M HKSM HKSM
BBET EEST BEAT HE#T BEAT  BEST  HEBART BEEAT  BEAT
(Restated)  (Restated)
(E31) (E51)
Freehold outside Hong Kong R EBNIMIE
KA 209.4 1907 1766 263.0 2838 2943 = - -
Long leases outside Hong Kong R EBNIMIE
REED 624.6 565.1 5248 - - - - - -
Medium term leases outside REENIMEEZ
Hong Kong REEL - - - - = = 325 350 67.3
Long leases in Hong Kong WRERE 2 RERE) = - - - - - 105.9 107.9 110.0
Medium term leases in Hong Kong A& 782 E34) - - - - - - 175.0 182.1 2140
Short leases in Hong Kong IREE  BERL - - - - = = 139 165 191
834.0 758 7014 263.0 24838 2943 3273 3415 4104
17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. AT E R K
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEEZzBNBEENREIE :
31.3.2011 31.3.2010 1.4.2009
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HEETT BEBTT BEBTT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&E5)
Leasehold land in Hong Kong UREBZHE L H
Short leases FEHAFRAY 1.9 2.2 25
Leasehold land R BB AIMBIE 2
outside Hong Kong TE T
Long leases REIFEA 18.0 16.5 153
Medium term leases FRERFE 4 15.9 15.7 16.2
35.8 34.4 34.0

Leasehold interest in land is released over the terms of the
leases on a straight line basis.

Rtz HERSIRERAEREEL -
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18. GOODWILL 18. F2&
HK$'M
BEBTT
COST RE
At 1 April 2009 R2009F4 A 1H 26.6
Arising from acquisition of additional interests 3% i# &% 26 &
in subsidiaries of manufacturing segment BERIED S0 B
and healthcare segment NS FTE A 55
At 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2011 M2010563 31 HKX 201143 HA31H 32.1
IMPAIRMENT WA
At 1 April 2009 R2009F4 A 1H 17.4
Impairment loss recognised for the year FREERZREEE 14.7
At 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2011 #2010F3 A31HKX 201143 A31H 32.1
CARRYING VALUE EREE
At 31 March 2011 MW201143A31H -
At 31 March 2010 R 20103 A31 H -
For impairment test purpose, the recoverable CGU had REAFEmS WeELBEM Ak

been determined based on value—in—use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projection based on financial budgets
approved by the management covering a five—year period and
discounted to their present value. The discount rates used
for the year ended 31 March 2010 were 6.50% and 6.66%
for CGU of healthcare segment and manufacturing segment
respectively. No growth rate is assumed in the calculation.
Another key assumption for the value—in—use calculations is the
budgeted gross margin, which is determined on the units’ past
performance and management’'s expectation for the market
development.

The management of the Group determined an impairment
loss of goodwill of HK$9.4 million and HK$5.3 million for the
year ended 31 March 2010 (see Note 7) in respect of the
subsidiaries in the healthcare segment and manufacturing
segment be recognised in profit or loss, respectively.

BB NIRFERAEEFTEREAEE ° %
EHERENRALEREMERE
ﬂiﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁ“?E%'*ZfﬁﬁfﬁfﬁiﬁlJ 2
AR EREZFIRME - B E2010F3 A31
BEFEBEREIBREESHBZ
REeELEBEMDRRAZRES A
6.50% [ 6.66% ° 5T & B\ £ B 5% (£ {a]
BEXR - S—(EFHAEETE ExiZE
EBRIRBEEN - NERBEMA AR
EREEHMSER CTEHEE °

HZE201083A31HILEFE » AEBEE
BEETEREREYDREES I 2H
BRRYERERRESESRAILIEE
BILKESIFEEET (A7) » B8
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/ 19. W& A w22 / eI
AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES N ZRIE
31.3.2011 31.3.2010 1.4.2009
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BHEET BEBT ABEATT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&7)) (&7))
Cost of investment in associates REEE R A E 2 AR
Listed in Hong Kong RES LT 160.2 160.2 160.2
Unlisted LT 72.7 0.1 243
Share of post-acquisition profits, FEE W B R R A -
net of dividends received HIBR E WA B 280.0 211.2 135.3
Share of reserves FE(L R 1.2 0.4 0.3
514.1 3719 320.1
Amounts due from associates JFE A Bt 2 N B F0E
(Note 26) (BesE 26) 898.9 951.6 1,273.8
Share of post-acquisition JEMRRLRETTREZ
losses of an associate covered —fEBE AR EE
by binding obligation (note) (BfEE) (703.6) (740.1) (797.4)
195.3 211.5 476.4
Fair value of a listed investment —IB EmRE 2 AYE 260.4 234.6 76.0
Note: The Group is obliged to make good the net deficit of TCSDCL in MizE : REBBHIETCSDCLZ EEE @

proportion to its interest in TCSDCL. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group’s obligation in this connection amounted to
HK$703.6 million (2010: HK$740.1 million) and accordingly, the
same amount has been recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position and presented as a deduction from the
Group’s advances to TCSDCL.

Details of the principal associates of the Group as at 31 March
2011 are set out in Note 43.

PIRE R TCSDCLZ #E 2 » R & HA
R AEBEELFREEER7036
AEAT(20104F :740. lﬁgﬁﬂfﬁ)
ZESRENEE MBRRKRHER
MK E4 T TCSDCL Z B8y -

REFEN2011FE3A31 B ETEHMENR
A2 FIBHRHIEEA43 -
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The summarised financial information, taken into account the = K HE B @R FE 12585 K 2 =
effect of amendments to HKAS 12 in respect of the Group’s £ - HRAE B S Q[ 2 B 15 E B
associates is set out below: EEHIAT -
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAET BEATT
(Restated)
(&31)
Investment properties HEMH 958.5 852.8
Properties held for/under development BEHEZBE / BERPME
for sale 775.5 397.1
Sale proceeds held by stakeholders RE AFTEHHEEREIA 199.3 282.3
Bank balances and cash WITHRBRIRS 388.8 437.8
Other assets HEMEE 591.1 751.4
Total assets BEMBE 2,913.2 2,721.4
Other payables to shareholders H At AR R IR (2.8) (2.5)
Loans from shareholders BERER (2,890.0) (3,168.4)
Other liabilities HEmafE (1,030.1) (1,161.9)
Total liabilities BE®RE (3,922.9) (4,332.8)
Net liabilities BfEFE (1,009.7) (1,611.4)
Group’s share of net assets of associates REBE(LHE AR EEFE 525.8 383.5
Group’s share of net liabilities of associates REBEGE S ARBEFEE (706.0) (742.4)
(180.2) (358.9)
Unrealised profits REREF (9.3) (9.3)
(189.5) (368.2)
Turnover TR 753.1 1,270.0
Profit for the year NFEFE A 253.5 263.0
Group’s share of results of INEEFE(LBE S N 7]
associates for the year REZHEE
(net of unrealised profit of HK$0.9 million (IR EIRHEMNOOBEEETT
(2010: HK$1.3 million)) (2010%F : 1.3E&EAT) ) 150.1 116.8
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The Group had a 50% and 49% equity interest in Dazhongli and
City Grace Company Limited (“City Grace”), respectively and an
analysis is as follows:

20. ] 5 B 2 RS

7N &£ E A A & B K City Grace Company
Limited ([ City Gracel) % Bl # 5 50% &
49% BEARERS - HEoiTanT -

2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEET BEAT
Dazhongli (note a) AHE (Hfizka) 5,676.5 49185
City Grace (note b) City Grace (Hd7Eb) 334.7 -
6,011.2 49185
Notes: BsE -
(@)  Dazhongli (@) KRHE

Dazhongli and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli Group”) are engaged
in the development of investment properties and hotel properties
in the Jingan District of Shanghai in the PRC.

AP BREMBAR ([ RAPEEH])
HEBRRUNTELLEFRRIIREY
ENBEWE -

2011 2010

HK$'M HK$'M

BHEBT BEBTT

Cost of unlisted shares FE_ETRRAD 2 AR 0.1 0.1
Share of reserves (note i) FEfL AR (FIRED) 474.5 267.3
Share of post acquisition gains (note ii) FE(E IR Was (HIEEi) 813.5 734.2
1,288.1 1,001.6

Loans to Dazhongli BRFARE 4,388.4 3,916.9
5,676.5 49185

Further advances of HK$471.5 million (2010: HK$10.6 million)
were made during the year by the Group to Dazhongli to finance
its share of development expenditure.

FR AKERARKTEE - FBRK
47158 &% T (20104 : 10.6 B B8
TT)  EREDBZERANZES °



T s L [0 4 A PR ]
2010/2011 4Bk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50 MBS R W

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &% 201143 5 31 A1 F/Z

The loans to Dazhongli are unsecured, non—interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayments. The Group has no intention
to exercise its right to demand repayment of these loans within
the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
The directors believe the settlement of these loans is not likely to
occur in the foreseeable future as they are, in substance, a part of
the Group’s net investment in Dazhongli Group as the proceeds of
the loans have been substantially used by the Dazhongli Group to
inject as registered capital into its PRC subsidiaries. Accordingly,
the amount is classified as non—current asset and included in the
Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities for the purpose of
presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The summarised financial information in respect of Dazhongli

Group as at 31 March 2011 is set out below:

ERTAFENEER  2EREEE
B - AEEESNMEREF R
RI12ME A ArTEEERN - EREEET
ZER c AR AREEBE KERFF
ZHRIBEAEFBEE A RERZRE
N BREEZZFEFETERAIER
REREE  MZEFRERANEERAT
BEEZHSREFEE - Bt - BN
BEIRIEREBEEW AR EERN I
EZEH B 2w - MERERE IR
MEKZ2F o

AFEEER201143A318 281

BERBEZERT ¢

2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties under construction EEREYZ 11,166.6 9,799.1
Hotel properties under construction and EEBEMEREE
equipment 538.1 467.6
Other non—current assets EMIERENE E 142.8 183.4
11,847.5 10,450.1
Current assets MENEE
Bank balances and cash IRITEBR RIS 394.5 198.2
Other current assets EMREEE 77.7 72.9
472.2 271.1
Current liabilities mEaE
Loans from shareholders FRERE (8,776.8) (7,833.8)
Other current liabilities HivmgEhai (369.3) (366.9)
(9,146.1) (8,200.7)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBDARE 3,173.6 2,520.5
Non—current liability ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIAEE (597.4) (517.3)
Net assets FEE 2,576.2 2,003.2
Group’s share of net assets AEEELEEFE 1,288.1 1,001.6
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For the year ended

31 March
BEZ3HA31BHLLEE
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBTT
Change in fair value of investment properties TEZIRE W E N F(EEEF)
under construction 224.9 2,065.6
Other operating income less expenses H it 2B AR S (10.1) 11.2
Deferred taxation IEXERIE (56.2) (516.4)
Net profit after taxation for the year REEBRBIEFHF 158.6 1,560.4
Group’s share of result for the year AEBEGAFEFEE 79.3 780.2
Notes: [t

(i) The increase in share of reserves represents exchange
gains on translation during the year.

(i)  The increase in share of post acquisition gains in the
current year mainly represents the fair value gain on
investment properties under construction.

The investment properties under construction was
measured at 31 March 2011 at fair value at HK$11,166.6
million (2010: HK$9,799.1 million) which was based on
the valuation conducted by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, who have appropriate qualification and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. This gave rise to a fair value gain
of HK$224.9 million (2010: HK$2,065.6 million). The
attributable taxation in respect of the gain was HK$56.2
million (2010: HK$516.4 million). Thus the net fair value
gain after tax amounted to HK$168.7 million (2010:
HK$1,549.2 million) of which the Group’s 50% share was
HK$84.3 million (2010: HK$774.6 million).

(ii)

R s 6 RS DR 4B 4 P T 4
2 B H 3 o

25 5 PO B 1 M 8 0
SRR A LA TGS -

BIERBERITERAR (BERT
BRARER G B AR 2 RE
MEEBEIEEBEEERRE
sy ) T 2B EEEKRE
YIER 20113 A31HZAFE
£11,166.6 5 & % JT (20104 :
9,79.188HIL)  wEH2249
BEBT (20104 : 20656 B8
BIt) 2 AFERE - mlEZ
JE 5 B4 18 A 56.2 B & 38 7T (2010
F:5l64EBBEIT)  WHKRH
BrzAFEFKZAI8TE
B8 (20104 : 154925 8B
L) e AEBEEEEATEREZ
50% + B184.3 B & /BT (20104
7746 BBAT) °
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The capital commitments of Dazhongli at 31 March 2011 were as

follows:

AR ER2011F3 A31 B 2 & ANEE
o

2011 2010

HK$'M HK$'M

BHEBT BEBTT

Contracted but not provided for BRNEREE 1,279.1 164.4
Authorised but not contracted for BHUEEREL 7,292.5 859.1
8,571.6 1,023.5

The capital commitments of the Group’s interest in Dazhongli
which represent 50% of the above will be financed by
shareholders’ loan or direct borrowings of Dazhongli.

City Grace

During the current year, the Group has entered into a joint—
venture agreement with an independent third party to form a joint
venture company, City Grace, to acquire a piece of land located
in Bangkok, Thailand for Thai baht 2.5 billion (equivalent to
HK$651.7 million), for the development of residential buildings
for sale.

(b)

AEBRAF 2R o EARE (5L
M ER 2 50%) KRR ERE A+ E
ZEEEERNESR -

City Grace

EA$¢J+ NEBEBIE=HEINE

L% 0 B A & A Al City Grace * BA
5 EHk (HERESL.7EEET) K
BN RESAZ T - ARER
FENEELE -

2011
HK$'M
BE#ET

FEETARD Z B
B 7K F City Grace

Cost of unlisted shares
Loans to City Grace

6.3
328.4

334.7

Pursuant to the joint-venture agreement of City Grace, the
board of directors of City Grace decides on key financial and
operating matters on simple majority. The Group and the joint
venture partner each holds 50% of the voting right and hence
the directors of the Company consider the Group and the joint
venture partner exercise joint control over City Grace.

B % City Grace 2 & ‘& % + City Grace
LEEEUEEZHRAEEERNE

RISEEE - AEBREERHEHS
50% 2 & EHE - At AR RIEFRRAR
B NME EBHYCity Grace 1T £ [F
2 o
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The summarised financial information in respect of City Grace as

at 31 March 2011 is set out below:

City Grace? 20114 38 31 2 K&
PHREZE T

2011
HK$'M
BEET
Current assets MENEE
Property under development for sale BRPFFEYHE 665.3
Bank balances and cash IRITEBREIRS 7.7
Other current assets HivmEh&E 2.6
675.6
Current liabilities mENEE
Loans from shareholders ERE R (662.1)
Other current liabilities HEtmEhaE (0.6)
(662.7)
Net assets FEE 12.9
Group’s share of net assets AEBEEGEEFE 6.3
Net profit after taxation for the year REZRBIEFHF =
Group’s share of result for the year REEELEARFEREE =

The loans to City Grace are unsecured, denominated in Thai

baht, interest bearing at 3% per annum and have no fixed terms

of repayments. The Group has no intention to exercise its right to

demand repayment of these loans within the next twelve months

from the end of the reporting period. The directors believe the

settlement of these loans is not likely to occur in the foreseeable

future as the proceeds of the loans have been substantially used

by City Grace to acquire land for the development of residential

buildings. Accordingly, the amount is classified as non—current

asset and included in the Group’s interests in jointly controlled

entities for the purpose of presentation in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

B X F City Grace JHEME IR + A ZEKT
B  FAXRAEIERITEETENRS -
AEBEZNREHAREBITARKI2ME
ARTEERMNEREEZZTER -
A City Grace E B) B K285 B 3k A Uk
BIERREEEFZAH  HESH
1= KA R R 2R City Grace ™ X A e {E
BZEER - At - BEEAT SRR
Z2YME EHESEEIEERDE
E o WEt AREBR L RIEGIEE 2

o

\‘/
N

E
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21. B IR AT I 2 B

Fair value measurement
at 31.3.2011 using:
M20114%£3 A31H

STEATE
Level 1 Level 3
2011 E—IER E=IBR
HK$’'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEET BEET
Held—to—maturity investments FEIEEE
Unlisted debt securities (note a) I EMEBES (Miita)
Current nEh 62.6
Non—current JEmED 84.2
146.8
Available—for—sale financial assets A ESmEE
Equity securities: MR AN FE %
Listed, at fair value (note b) B AYE
( M7k D) 58.9 58.9 -
Unlisted, at fair value (note c) LT BATE
(FfzEC) 1.7 = 1.7
60.6 58.9 1.7
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REWMENZOWMAT -
Non—current FETED 60.6
Financial assets at FVTPL B ERAER
(held for trading) ZERMEE (FEEE)
Equity securities: RAFES
Listed equity securities TR AE S
(note b) (FMizEDb) 0.2 0.2 -
0.2 0.2 -
Market value of listed equity securities: ~_FHARARZE A 2 1A :
Listed in Hong Kong REB LT 49.6 49.6 -
Listed overseas RSN T 9.5 9.5 =
59.1 59.1 -
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Fair value measurement
at 31.3.2010 using:
R2010%F3 A31 H

SHEATE -
Level 1 Level 3
2010 E—[E EF=EH
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEET BEAT
Held—to—maturity investments FEREEE
Unlisted debt securities (note a) I EMEBES (Miata)
Current mED 135.5
Non—current JERED 52.4
187.9
Available—for—sale financial assets At ESREE
Equity securities: IRATES
Listed, at fair value (note b) W BRAEE
(Mi7EDb) 77.7 77.7 -
Unlisted, at fair value (note c) kLT - BAFE
(Mg3Ec) 10.7 — 10.7
88.4 77.7 10.7
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RERMEWZDTAT :
Current ED 9.2
Non—current JERBD 79.2
88.4
Financial assets at FVTPL BAERAERE
(held for trading) ZEREE (FIEEE)
Equity securities: RARFES -
Listed equity securities (note b) ETRAES
(FfFEED) 0.2 0.2 -
Unlisted managed investment FELEMEREE
funds (note d) Eo (MsEd) 128.4 = 128.4
128.6 0.2 128.4
Market value of listed equity securities: R AZEH 2 1A :
Listed in Hong Kong REB LT 70.4 70.4 =
Listed overseas BN ET 7.5 7.5 =
77.9 77.9 -
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The fair values hierarchy are classified into the following levels:

° Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities; and

° Level 3 — using valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Notes:

(@)  Held—to—maturity debt securities are measured at amortised cost
less any impairment losses. The fair value of the held—to—maturity
debt securities as at 31 March 2011 is HK$148.8 million (2010:
HK$189.4 million). The weighted average effective interest rate is
3.0% (2010: 2.6%) per annum.

(b)  The fair values of all listed securities are determined by reference
to the quoted market bid price available on the relevant
exchanges.

(c)  Unlisted equity securities include two investments in private
equities which are as follows:

(i)  As at 31 March 2010, the unlisted equity securities
included in current assets was a direct investment in
preferred shares of a private company at HK$9.2 million
which were measured using valuation techniques in which
significant input was not based on observable market data
at 31 March 2010. The Group disposed of the investment
with reference to a valuation as at 31 December 2009
during the year ended 31 March 2011.

(i)  An investment in a venture capital fund at HK$1.7
million (2010: HK$1.5 million) which are measured using
valuation techniques based on inputs that can be observed
in the market in addition to unobservable inputs such as
company specific financial information.

456 B ok I

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &% 201143 5 31 A1 F/Z

RNHERBRD BATHR -

(b)

(c)

F—ER - AEEEXREERR
ARG WE (EHE) « &

F_ER - AHEELRBEZBA
B HMRIBEABR 2S8R (3F
AIEREER) °

75 2 B BRE 15 75 55 T LA S5 A AN R (]
BEBEEMTE - HFEIPEBZEFL
20113 A31HZ2RAFEA14888H
E87T (20104 : 1894 BEET) ° 1IN
T EERFNEF3.0% (20104 :
2.6%) °

B ETESFZAFENZERERS
MEZEABRMETE °

FEEMARARZ S B4 T MBER AR
KA -

(i) 20103 A318  stARHE
EZIELETRAZES T —EHRTL
ARBIBERZEEREI2ES
BT THBRMERITEE - %
B iR 2 B AL E R 2010
FI3A3 AWFREBEABEEMS
BEMET - REE2011F3 A
31BILFE - REBELHR 2009 F
12 A3l B MEHERERE -

(i) —HEREIREAESZRELTA
E#7T(2010F:1.5888T) -
TERBERMEE - BRI
P2 AZBAREBEABENS
BB LA BRBBNAREE
MBERMEE °
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The movement in the unlisted equity securities are as follows:

JEETRRAE S EBhan T -

2011 2010

HK$’'M HK$'M

BEET BEBT

Balance at beginning of the year FHEER 10.7 1.5
Total gains in other comprehensive income  Efh & N zR 458 0.2 9.2
Proceeds from disposal HE TSR (9.2) -
Balance at end of the year FARER 1.7 10.7

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of HK$0.2
million (2010: HK$9.2 million) related to unlisted equity securities
held at the end of the reporting period and has been credited to
investment revaluation reserve.

(d) These investments represented funds placed in prior years to a
fund manager, who is a related party (see Note 44(A)(ii)), for the
purpose of making investments primarily on a joint basis with
fund-of—funds manager in a number of hedge funds. During the
year ended 31 March 2011, the Group completed the disposal of
the remaining investments in hedge funds with reference to the
valuation as at 31 December 2009.

AAEMEEREZ02E 8B Tk
(20104 : 9.2 BE&ET) B MHREH
AFBEZIIELTRAES  WEFHAR
BB -

ZEREENEFEFIRN —BESE

BrE®  BA—BEEAT (RHEE
44(A)i) - TEEHMNRHEESLIENS

B P ESIELRKRE - REZE2011
FI3A3IBLEFE - REEZ2E2009
F12A31 Bz EELERGg 2 HhE
@ o

The movement in the portfolio are as follows: WPABBNINT ¢
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET ABEAT
Balance at beginning of the year FHEER 128.4 344.5
Proceeds from disposals &S PTSE0R (128.4) (239.8)
Realised gain recognised in the consolidated FRRLRE WEHRRIER Z
income statement during the year BEEIA s = 18.7
Unrealised gain recognised in the FRARGFE NS RIERZ
consolidated income statement REIE W
during the year = 5.0
Balance at end of the year FRERR - 128.4
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22. HoAh &

2011 2010

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEET

Mortgage instalment receivables (note a) FEWUIR S 7 B 5k (Bifska) 8.1 17.3

Option fee refundable (note b) REREEE (MiEb) 7.8 7.6

Loans to an investee (note c) MAEEREHRER (H3Ec) 106.6 213
Unlisted membership debentures and FEMEEEFRHEMEE

other assets 6.9 7.0

129.4 5312

Notes:

’l
=
R

The mortgage instalment receivables represent the financing
provided to buyers of development properties of the Group. The
amounts bear interest at prime rate minus 1% and are receivable
by instalments over a period of not more than 20 years from the
sale of the relevant flats. The receivables are secured by a second
mortgage over the properties. The portion of mortgage instalment
receivables due within one year of HK$0.7 million (2010: HK$1.2
million) is included as trade receivables in current assets.

This represents an option fee of HK$14.0 million paid by the
Group to a related party, Castro Valley Properties, Inc. (“CVPI")
in 1996 pursuant to a proposed property project which was
subsequently not proceeded with.

Under the terms of the termination agreement entered into
in 1997, the amount is repayable by CVPI to the Group in
instalments, the amount of each instalment being based on the
gross income of CVPI each year with interest accruing at 1%
per annum on the outstanding balance. Based on information
provided by CVPI, the amount is expected to be fully repaid by
2031.

The balance outstanding at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010
represents (a) the fair value of the amount receivable determined
using the discount rate applicable at the date of inception of
4.51% per annum (“the adjusted outstanding principal”) and
(b) less repayments received attributable to the settlement of the
adjusted outstanding principal since that date.

(a)

fEWziE D KRR E T AR EY X
BRERZBE - IHFILREER =R
MIEFS  YEERRBEZEMEDR
B ERBE20F A0 B E - U 3
RIIAG B EIEE —IRBIER - N —
FREMZ BYIZB O HHR0TES
AT (20104 : 1.2 AEBT) Bt AR
MBEEZRKEZRAA -

It IB 5 AN £ B X 1996 FF AR 1 — 1A
EYETBE MR — & & A L Castro
Valley Properties, Inc. ([CVPI]) X ff
40BEEBTZRERE  %EEEH
B B ERETT o

BB 1997 F 5T Z R IE & 2 1§
' CVPIZED iR ASEEEKE
HEBBECVPITFRWAGEL 5
KEEBZHBRTF1I%TEFNE - 1B
ECVPIREZ &R - TERIRZEFEBRN
2031 FREERE -

MR201143 A31H KX201043 A31H
MARER e R @) FERRE R BB
MR REFEASI%EBEZRRESE
NEE ([EFHEREERS 1) RO
FEZAHBERARREERNS 2B
HUEFK ©
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Amounts received from CVPI are recognised as interest income
based on the discount rate of 4.51% per annum on the adjusted
outstanding principal and the balance is attributable to settlement
of the adjusted outstanding principal.

CVPI is a related party of a trust, the discretionary objects of
which include the issue of Dr CHA Chi Ming, the late Chairman of
the Company and some of them are directors of the Company.

() The Group owns a 15% interest in an unlisted company
incorporated in Singapore which holds a commercial complex
comprising a retail mall, two office towers and a hotel in the
city of Tianjin, the PRC. As at 31 March 2010, the Group had
outstanding loans to that company with carrying amounts of
HK$21.3 million, net of provision of HK$85.3 million. In view
of the recent completion of the commercial complex owned by
that company and the state of the property market in Tianjin, the
PRC, the Group has reassessed the recoverability of the loans
and reversed the provision for the loans of HK$85.3 million
made in prior years to reinstate the carrying amount of the
loans to HK$106.6 million as at 31 March 2011. The loans are
unsecured, interest—free and repayable on demand. The directors
determined that the Group might not demand for repayment
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period and
hence classified the loans as a non—current asset.

The directors consider the carrying amounts of the Group’s
mortgage instalment receivables, option fee refundable
and loans to an investee at the end of the reporting period
approximate their corresponding fair values.

23. INVENTORIES

ECVPIRER 2 S IR B FHEREE
RERFFA51%MBRERSTN S
A MBRERKEHEREESNS -

CVPIR—REFEZHEAL - HRIRFY
KRERARFCHRIFEEERELNHR
W WERBDR/ANRAES °

REE R — R I EM AL FE £
NAVGEHR 15% 2 #m - ZARRPER
RERFE-HRESEAE  BEEEBY
Bl MERAERERE—FEEE - ®
2010563 A31H - AKBEEAZ A A
ZABEESIREER/2213BEET
EHREESSIAERAT - ENZ AR
BAEZARGEBRIOHER - NP
BXZZMETSIRR - AEECEH
FHEZERZ AR EIRRE R 2011 4 3
A3l BB EFFELERRES.3H
BET  EXRREERMEDS106.6
BEET - ZRERREER - 8 MR
BREE - EFREAKERNH®E R
12 ARTEEREE - Atz ER
DERIERBEE -

EEZRA - RHREHRKR AEEZEK
RIB\D MK - AIRERBREE NAE
BAREHRERZEIEREEBEAT
BHE% -

23. BB

2011 2010

HK$'M HK$'M

BEBT BEAT

Consumables S 58.1 53.2
Raw materials R E 8.8 7.1
Work in progress - BURK 3.2 3.2
Finished goods SURK i 90.6 71.2

160.7 134.7
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The credit period allowed by the Group to its customers is
dependent on the general practice in the industry concerned.
For property sales, sales terms vary for each property project
and are determined with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. Sales of properties are normally completed upon
the execution of legally binding, unconditional and irrevocable
contracts and the sale prices are usually fully paid when the
properties are assigned to the purchasers. Deferred payment
terms are sometimes offered to purchasers at a premium.
Property rentals are receivable in advance. Payments for
healthcare, clubs and hotel services are receivable on demand.
The general credit terms allowed for customers of manufactured
goods range from 30 to 90 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented
on the payment due date at the reporting date:

456 B ok I
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24. FEWCE S ik

AEEGETERPZEENRFERN—
RIEPIEE - LMFEHEMS ~ HEK
FREWMEEAME  YREBEERHNR
BE  -WEHE-RNBLEEROR
h BERERTABEERKTK
EEMBERYEERTE I R2HH
- BERAREENRE - HEH
B - MEHSAREHN - BERE -
G P ROB 5 RT% 2 B AR B SRk AR
BN - RREEMmE TEPN—REER
HIH 30 2 90 K15 »

e

AT REWE ZERFNEE B iza i
KA RS D 2 BREk DT -

2011 2010

HK$'M HK$'M

BHEETT BEATT

Not yet due I R 2 2 39.5 24.5
Overdue: BIHR

0 - 60 days 0 — 60X 59.3 59.1

61 — 90 days 61 — 90K 5.2 4.5

Over 90 days hiE 90 X 6.8 4.1

110.8 92.2

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are
receivables with aggregate carrying amount of HK$71.3 million
(2010: HK$67.7 million) which are past due at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

AEBZERESERERBENRRERAE
B B9 1 AN 52 [ 30 oK BL R (B B 18 VB B
ZRWEREHEEREEA7IIEE BT
(20105 : 67.7B &%) - AEEW &
MZEEHRFREANERR -
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The Group has provided allowance for receivables overdue
beyond 120 days because historical experience is such that
receivables that are past due beyond 120 days are generally not
recoverable. Management closely monitors the credit quality of
trade receivables and considers the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality.

AEE D B8 BB 120 X 2 FE WK IE
RERE  HBARRBBRELR &%
FE B 120 R 2 RUYGRIR — R T
Am - BERERYERERE SRR
ZEEEE  YRRZELEBRIR
BZREESEFREERIFZEEER -

MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR SN I8 2 B2
DOUBTFUL DEBTS

2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEET BEAT
Balance at beginning of the year FUEEER 20.1 19.8
Impairment loss recognised on receivables FEWGRIBRER < BB & 18 5.7 2.6
Amounts recovered during the year FRURE Z ZIA (1.7) (0.1)
Amounts written off as uncollectible i H A B 2 FRIR (13.4) (2.5)
Currency realignment Bk 0.4 0.3
Balance at end of the year FRER 11.1 20.1

The fair values of the Group’s trade receivables at 31 March
2011 approximate the corresponding carrying amounts due to
relatively short-term maturity.

HRAEEZ KB ZRK 2ZIHH A
e WERFHREN 201143 A31H
Z A EEEERREERS
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25. PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER 25, Frfp i EZ Bt / Bt
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE LIE 2

2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEAT
Discovery Bay development project REEREIER 1,409.3 939.4
Other properties held for/under development ~ EBEINEMIFIELE 2
for sale outside Hong Kong BR/BRTME 1,318.1 795.7
2,727.4 1,735.1
The carrying value of properties shown EXFIRZMERRERRE :
above comprises:
Freehold KA SR 1,318.1 795.7
Medium term leases HR A 4V 1,409.3 939.4
2,727.4 1,735.1

At the end of the reporting period, total borrowing costs  HRIREHIK & 126.6 A& ST (20104 :
capitalised in the properties held for/under development for 1236 B &EE L) 2 BEE KA B E
sale were HK$126.6 million (2010: HK$123.6 million). The H{EHEZERE /BHERWE 2K ©
properties held for/under development for sale amounting to  871.6 & & i Jt (20104 : 1,015.7 8 &
HK$871.6 million (2010: HK$1,015.7 million) is expected to  #&70) 2 BEHELRE 73 E / HEDYETE
be recovered after twelve months from the end of the reporting  HRR SR HIZR 12 (& B2 W@ o

period.

26. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. HAh4:phE &

() AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES (I FEWERE 2 W3k JE
The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non— FEUWEG S A B IE JEIEH - 2 8
interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms. VA R i £ [E E i Z FRER o BRET AJER
Except for an amount of HK$104.2 million (2010: nil) EEZSFE104.2HEB T (2010
included in non—current assets, the directors expected F M) EEEHHESTEHR
the remaining amount will be settled within twelve months MEHAKRIEET I2@EBARNES » A
from the end of the reporting period and the carrying NZ 508 7 B B S &S - i)
values approximate their fair values due to relatively short— HEEmEHEE AN FLERE -

term maturity.
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(ID OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

The directors consider the carrying amount of the Group’s
deposits, other financial assets, amount due from a jointly
controlled entity and pledged bank deposits to secure
short—term bank loans at the end of the reporting period
approximate their corresponding fair value due to relatively
short—term maturity.

The pledged bank deposits and bank deposits carry
interest at market rates.

27. TRADE PAYABLES, PROVISION
AND ACCRUED CHARGES

Included in trade payables, provision and accrued charges are
trade payables of HK$226.7 million (2010: HK$164.3 million),
an aged analysis of which is as follows:

(1) Ho At < il 5 s

EERR RNBEHR  AKEK
T HiteREE - RKHKRFES
B RE A MR A E RIRTER
ZEERBTERCERREREAR
HEEE HHE - M A EIRY
HEEMRRAFERS -

B TR BB TR
SFI%E 8 -

27. WEAHE SRR ~ 1kt
w2 H

JENE SRR - BENMEABRATPAIE
JENE ZEREF226.7 B&BTT (2010 -
1643E&HBT) EREEOoTAT :

2011 2010

HK$'M HK$'M

BEBT BEAT

Not yet due e AR 2 BA 174.6 1215
Overdue: -

0 — 60 days 0 — 60K 39.7 27.7

61 — 90 days 61 — 90X 5.2 1.2

Over 90 days Hh3E 90 X 7.2 13.9

226.7 164.3

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.

The directors consider the carrying amount of trade payables at
the end of the reporting period approximate their corresponding
fair value due to relatively short—term maturity.

REES 2 PHRERBAOX -

EER5 RIMEHR dRENES
R BB R ERE - MERmEER
HigE AT ERSE -
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The trade payables, provision and accrued charges include
provisions for certain construction obligations of HK$234.1
million (2010: HK$280.0 million). In the course of the property
development activities, the Group is obliged to construct certain
common or public facilities within the development projects
in accordance with the development plans approved by the
relevant authorities. Provision for such construction costs
has been made when a reliable estimate can be made of the

456 B ok I

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &% 201143 5 31 A1 F/Z

ENESER  BERKEFTEARER
BT EEAEMERE2341 585 T
(20104 : 2800 B &HBIL) - XEEE
TYMERRES 2BRET - AREEH
EREZERE  RERIEE AE
BETARIRREZE - Al - A&KE
ERAIE LB FREEZ SBEL TS
HETEF - MR ERERSIELBE - 1t

amount of this obligation and the details of the movement of the IR 7 SR RIS E R
provision are set out below:
HK$'M
BEAET
Balance at 1 April 2009 R20094 4 A1 H 2 &k 310.0
Utilised during the year FRNEH (30.0)
Balance at 31 March 2010 R 2010F 3 A 31 H 2 &k 280.0
Utilised during the year FANEH (45.9)

Balance at 31 March 2011 W20114£3 A31 Hz&& 234.1
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28. DEFERRED TAXATION

28. WEIERUIH

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets BRERTERIENIE (BE) BEULKE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior — RIFITRBEBREE 2 &S0 -

reporting years:

Fair value Distributable
Accelerated  change of profits of
tax  investment Tax aPRC
depreciation  properties losses  subsidiary Others Total
—RHE
REWE ] NG
MEREHE AFEEH  HESE THRIKE Hits st
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT AEBT  AEAT  BEAT  ABAT  BAEAL
(note)
(BizE)
At 1 April 2009 R2009F481R
—as original stated — REZ5] (199.1) (296.6) 18.1 = 11.9 (465.7)
— effect on changes in accounting — SHRERE  HE
policies (Note 2(c)) (BiEE2(c)) = 1309 = = = 1309
- as restated — (199.1) (165.7) 181 - 11.9 (334.8)
Currency realignment BEAR (3.0) (03) 0.1 = - (32)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss STA (0% ) B2 38 1246 344 (27.6) 09 136.1
Credit to investment revaluation SIAREEREE
reserve - - = = 09 (0.9)
At 31 March 2010 (Restated) 1201063 A31H (£31) (198.3) (41.4) 526 (27.6) 11.9 (202.8)
Currency realignment BEAE 4.2) (16) 40 - 0.1 (17)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (1R ) st AEBa (05) 45 32 = 02 74
Credit to investment revaluation STAREERHE
reserve - - - - 0.4) 0.4)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 15) HE—RMEAR (K1) 434 = = = 17.0 60.4
At 31 March 2011 201153 A31H (159.6) (38.5) 59.8 (27.6) 28.8 (137.1)

Note: These mainly represent net deferred tax assets (liabilities) Bt :

recognised in relation to unrealised profit of certain property
development projects.

WHEEETRETHEERED AL

)i M FTRERR

S

ERERAEE (BE)
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For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
(after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

456 B ok I
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REMEAFBEMAERME - HTERE
MREBE;ABERAKE Z G BER
B - DT AARMBEE2HRE NIRRT
MIRAERR (IR ) DA -

31.3.2011 31.3.2010 1.4.2009

HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BHEET BEBTT BEBTT

(Restated) (Restated)

(Z=%1) (&%)

Deferred tax liabilities FEETIEAE (144.7) (206.0) (337.5)
Deferred tax assets LTI E = 7.6 3.2 2.7
(137.1) (202.8) (334.8)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$936.9 million (2010: HK$836.3 million) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$362.4 million (2010:
HK$318.8 million) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$574.5 million
(2010: HK$517.5 million) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. As at 31 March 2010, included in recognised tax
losses of approximately HK$47.1 million (2011: nil) would expire
in 2013. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$169.0 million (2010: HK$152.0
million) arising from impairment losses recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference
as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

RBEPRR  AEEBRFERREEEA
9369 B & T (20104 : 8363 A& B
7T) - ARAREER AT - AEEEH
Hh #3624 H & E T (20104 : 318.8
BEAT) EEERECHEELE  #
I 4 5 82 5857458 8 8 7T (20104 -
Sl75BEBB L) BRELHEEE -
JRE B EETE R AR HEFRA o 72010
F3A318 ;TACHERZHREAEERLY
471 B BBt (20114F « £) 12013
FEIEY - Hb R IBE B ER A -

RBEHR - AEBRADE - BEM&K
12 O HERR BB B 18 5| Bz AT HURL & i
ZRH169.0A8 & BT (20104 : 152.0
BEBIT) - WEMZS AR R Z5
ERRELCHREE  REARELBE
st A R SH A HURE Ay =88 o
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29. BANKAND OTHER LOANS

29. #RAT R Ath Bk

2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEATT
Bank loans (note 1) IRITER (MIFED) 3,203.5 1,570.6
Bonds (note 2) &% (MEE2) 319.6 -
Less: Amount included under current B ETARBAECSRE
liabilities (including bank loans with (BIER R EsREE
a repayable on demand clause) B2 IRITER) (1,521.1) (169.6)
Amount included under non—current liabilities s+ AZERBIBE 2 ©58 2,002.0 1,401.0
Bank and other loans IRITREMERA
are repayable: KT HAREE -
Within one year —FN 1,521.1 169.6
Between one to two years —FEMFN 1,682.4 -
Between two to five years WMEERFNA 319.6 1,401.0
3,523.1 1,570.6
Secured AR 571.9 158.7
Unsecured i 2,951.2 1,411.9
3,523.1 1,570.6
Notes: B 5T

(1) At 31 March 2010, the Group’s bank borrowings of HK$3.4 (1)
million (2011: nil) carried fixed interest at 4.7% per annum. The

Group’s remaining bank borrowings are variable-rate borrowings

which carry interest at an average margin of 0.51% (2010: 0.37%)
plus Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) or other

relevant interbank offer rates.

(2)  During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group issued two  (2)
floating rate specified bonds amounting to Japanese Yen 3.4

billion (equivalent to HK$319.6 million) to finance the acquisitions

of investment properties in Japan. The bonds carry interest at an

average margin of 1.6% plus relevant interbank offer rates.

MR201043 A31 8 - REBRTEE
34BEBEBIT (2011 F « &) LEEFF
KA4TEFE - REBERRITEEAR
ZEMEE - #051% (20104 :0.37%)
ZFER B RNBBBITREREER
HHEHABARITRIEREEGE -

REZE201163A31IALFE - AR
AT MBIRIF SR R B2 RIE
FRB34ERE (HER319.6BEE
7o) ARKRBERNREYE - EHE
16% 2 FHREEXRMEBRITRE

WEEEE -



The directors consider the carrying amount of the Group’s bank
and other loans at the end of the reporting period approximates

their corresponding fair value.

30. OTHER LIABILITIES
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EERA RBMEHRR - AEERTR
HitERz REEREREAFERS -

30. HAEA A

2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEATT
Advances from non—controlling shareholders — FFFEAS A% BR =~ A2 (BiEE)

(note) 320.0 30.4
Club debentures RS 863.8 859.3
Obligations under finance leases BB EAE 0.4 14

1,184.2 891.1

Less: Amount due within one year B FTARBAEZ
included under current liabilities —FNEIEFRIR (6.3) 4.7)
Amount due after one year —F & F|HIRIR 1,177.9 886.4

Note: The amounts represent advances from non-controlling MfsE :

shareholders of certain subsidiaries to finance operations of those

subsidiaries. As at 31 March 2011, included in advances from

non-controlling shareholders amounting to HK$285.0 million
(2010: nil) and HK$28.9 million (2010: HK$28.9 million) bear
interest at 3-month HIBOR plus 2.5% and a fixed rate of 7.0%
per annum respectively. The amounts are unsecured and are not

repayable within one year. The remaining balance is non-interest

bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand.

ZERBAR/ETWERE 2 R
RATIRMHEBR - AUBRNZEWNBER
A& EFE o M2011F3H31H -
TR R PR R B R B R R 8285.0
BEEIT (2010F : &) R289EBE
77T (20104F : 289 BB A T) * »
B3 (8 A HIE B RITRERE E 0
2.5% K Bl E FMET 0% B - %ZFE
FRASEBEMARBAR—FRER -
HRERIRRE - BEMREARBRE

B o
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Club debentures are redeemable:

SFFES AR TN HIHREERE

2011 2010

HK$'M HK$'M

BHEBET BEAT

Within 1 year —FR 6.0 3.7
Over 1 year but within 5 years —FA FERFNAA 45.3 52.2
Over 5 years and before 2047 FF A E K% 2047 F 2 B 13.7 14.2
In 2047 R 2047 & 798.8 789.2
863.8 859.3

These debentures are non—interest bearing, unsecured and
are issued to members of the following clubs operated by the
Group:

BEEFHR/REE - BEAKEITTT
JIHAREMEECEMNEER -

2011 2010

HK$'M HK$'M

BEER BEAT

Discovery Bay Golf Club BREEREKE 658.9 654.4
Discovery Bay Marina Club REEEE 61.4 61.5
Discovery Bay Residents Club BREREES 143.5 1434
863.8 859.3
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Obligations under finance leases:
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RhE S A -

Minimum
lease payments

Present value
of minimum
lease payments

=R E T =IREEMHZRE
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEET ©B8%T BBEERT BHEAT
Amounts payable under REREHRS
finance leases: e S5 -
Within one year —FN 0.3 1.1 0.3 1.0
In the second to fifth years F_EZFERF
inclusive (BIEEEWE) 0.1 0.4 0.1 0.4
0.4 1.5 0.4 1.4
Less: Future finance charges B BRI ER - (0.1)
Present value of lease obligations FAE&IE 7 IRE 0.4 14
Less: Amount due for settlement ¥ : —EE RN EIHA
within one year (shown B8 2 5IA
under current liabilities) (FERE
B8E) (0.3) (1.0)
Amount due for settlement —F 15 H
after one year B8 2 IR 0.1 0.4

The Group leases certain of its equipment under finance leases.
The average lease term is b to 7 years. For the year ended
31 March 2011, the average effective borrowing rate was
ranged from 4% to 7% (2010: 2% to 5%) per annum. Interest
rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into
for contingent rental payments.

The directors consider the carrying amount of the Group'’s other
liabilities at the end of the reporting period approximates their
corresponding fair values.

AEERERERERBESR T&RE -
FHEERESETEF - REZE201143
A31BIEFE  FHEBREBEFMNEN
FAEZE7E (20104 : 2EE5E ) - #
REAHBHETE - TEHAEHUERE
BRAEE WEITVEBEIABEZ
ZHE ©

EERS > RMEMKR  AEEHEME
Bz RmEREREA T ERS
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

In April 2005, the Company issued zero coupon convertible
bonds (the “Bonds”) at par in a principal amount of HK$1,410.0
million maturing on 26 April 2010. Unless previously redeemed,
converted or purchased and cancelled, the Bonds will be
redeemed at 128.948 per cent of their principal amount on the
maturity date representing a gross yield of 5.15 per cent per
annum calculated on a semi—annual basis.

On 26 April 2010, the outstanding convertible bonds were
fully redeemed and their listing on the Stock Exchange was
automatically cancelled on the same date.

The movement of the liabilities component of the Bonds for the
year is as follows:

31. Al MR 7

R200564 A RARREEHEITAE
21,4100 &%t 22010 4 A 26 H
FET R AR ES ([EH ) o BRIEX
AIEACRER - EMmo e - TR
EHFBREH B IRE AR SR 128.948%
BBO  HERNRYLFEEAEBFE

W A5.15% °

MR2010%F4 268 » KEMD
f&O - WHAE B B 3

BHEEEH
K PTERRE

FREFRERD AT

HK$'M

BESAT

Liability component at 1 April 2009 R2009%4 A1 Bz BEHD 7773

Imputed interest expense for the year FRFFAFERAZ 53.2
Liability component at 31 March 2010 K2010F3 A31 H XK

and 1 April 2010 20104 A1 HZ AEHn 830.5

Imputed interest expense for the year FARFTANERX 3.8

Redemption during the year FRIEE (834.3)

Liability component at 31 March 2011

R201143A31 Bz &EHS =

32. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the Group’s
deposits received and other financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period approximate their corresponding fair value due
to the relatively short—term maturity.

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, non—interest
bearing and has no fixed repayment terms.

32. HoAth 4l £
FERA - ARAERZEWRS RE

bR A E DB EERE - WRR
THR  ZEFFBECREEEEERRD
FEEE °

RSB E R RFRIBNERE - £ B RE
ElEEE -



T s L [0 4 A PR ]
2010/2011 4Bk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

456 B ok I

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &% 201143 5 31 A1 F/Z

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33, AR
2011 & 2010
Number
of shares HK$'M
A& BEBIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each S HEEO0.25/8 7T 2 Ti@A%
Authorised: JARE
At 1 April 2009, P2009F4A1H8 -
31 March 2010 2010F3 A31H
and 31 March 2011 K201143AH31H 2,000,000,000 500.0
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER :
At 1 April 2009, R2009F4A1H
31 March 2010 201043 A31H
and 31 March 2011 K201143A31H 1,350,274,367 337.5

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company currently has a share option scheme adopted on
3 January 2002 which permits the directors of the Company
to grant options to all directors (including independent non-
executive directors), full-time employees and consultants of the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or its associated companies to
subscribe for shares in the Company. No option has yet been
granted under this scheme.

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes long-term bank and other loans, short—term bank
loans and other borrowings as disclosed in Notes 29 and 30, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits.

34. S SBCHE ik

RARIRE 2 —BERER SR 2002 F
1 A3HEM @ ZAERHTARRESE
mARGE -« HBAR K/ HEBEER
RIZFIBES (BIEBYIENITES) -
2BEE REMR LA REAQRRG
ZIERRAE o PLETEIN AR IR AR -

35. B AR B 4 B

ARERAEEETSERAEEREL
Z AEBEHEBEAETER  WHERA
158 (5 75 M AR AN 3 B A = i A AR SR AR
T?Eji@#ﬁ REEERBRBKEESF
HRETE o

AEBZEAERBBRERFR (EFE
FEMTEE 29 N 30 P B < R EAIR1T M HoAtb
B3 EHSRITEREEMES - Mk
iﬁi&iﬁivﬁlﬁﬁ ) RARRRIEB A
s (BRERTRA  MELRS
) e
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The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a periodic basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy—backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ARREZTEHRATENERE - (FAR
WMZ—8n ERECEEEERALE
BEXRZMEERR - REEFZE -

AEEREBKMEE - %

13 H R -

BEEROAKRETHERXBERBREE

R RBATFEBEERERE -

36. R T H

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Sxih T H2Z FR
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEAT
Financial assets TRIEE
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) BATER AR
Held for trading BEEE 0.2 128.6
Held—to-maturity investments FEIERE 146.8 187.9
Derivative financial instruments, PTESRT A
at fair value BEAFE 0.1 0.1
Loans and receivables (including ER & EWHIE (21
cash and cash equivalents) ReMRESEEEE ) 3,008.2 2,652.7
Available—for—sale financial assets, AIEHESREE -
at fair value EAFE 60.6 88.4
Financial liabilities TRBE
Amortised cost BESHA AN 5,045.4 3,665.2
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include held—to-
maturity investments, available—for—sale financial assets,
financial assets at FVTPL, trade receivables, other financial
assets, amounts due from associates, amount due from a jointly
controlled entity, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade payables, deposits received and other financial
liabilities, amount due to an associate, bank and other loans
and other liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Currency risk

The Group does not have significant exposure to foreign
currency risk as majority of the Group’s sales and purchases
are denominated in currency which is the functional currency of
the respective group entities except for certain bank balances,
held—to—maturity investments and bank borrowings which are
denominated in foreign currency, other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as

456 B ok I
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<6 Tl JE i A L B B BOSRE

AEBITESRIABRERBERZIHR
B AHHESREE  RAFEA
BacEREE  RBEESER  Ei
TREE - BUEE RRIFR - BAH
FIEHIE R R - DHEMRITER - R
THRHEMRES - BENESER  BHK
e LHEMERAE - BB Z QRN
BROTREBEREEMAR - ZF
TR TAFBHNBBME - ZFR
TAMBRREET AR (BEERE -
M=ERMEMERRR) - FERBRIA
KRB ETRER - DRIEZFRR 2
HEHENTX - EEBEERERZS
R - AREGR KB R BRI TEE RS

i

BRETI|RITER  FEIHKRE RRTT
EEWIFARBEEERINEEEIIE
S REBAHDEBEONEHEEE
B2 ERIIE - MAEE L EAE
BERINETE R o

SEERBNMERAINEIEZEER
BEZREENT

follows:
Assets Liabilities
&E afg

2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
Currency g BEEErT BEfT EBERERT BAE5T
US dollar =TT 4,897.4 4,698.3 216.8 223.9
Singapore dollar $IT 6.0 53 - -
Thai baht BN 328.4 0.1 331.9 =
Others Efb 5.2 9.4 2.6 =
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Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of US dollar, ANEEEERZET - WL L RKESE
Singapore dollar and Thai baht. e o

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in the functional currency of the
respective group entities against the relevant foreign currencies.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnels and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. The analysis illustrates the impact for a
5% weakening of the functional currency of the respective group
entities against the relevant currency and a positive/negative
number below indicates an increase/decrease in profits for the
year and in exchange reserve. For a 5% strengthening of the
functional currency of the respective group entities against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profits for the year and exchange reserve.

TRFAVAEESNHEEEER 2D
BEE M HABRAINETE R TR E 5% 2 8K
RE ° 5% AR EEZEIE A 8 RNIFERIN
BIELBRRAMACHERE  TAEERE
HEXRA S 2 5ETH - HRAED
MEBRNINEFE 2 HAREEER IR
B WRFRABREBEUARMER 2
5% &g o Ty oMEMAREEERE Y
Re B S RBEINERES% 2 & - T
RIEH/ BERTAFEE & F RE S
wzEm/ - MEEEEEE 2
EEENBRERHIELR < HE - AlF
SHARFEEENRELFEEEKAR 2
1EE/§= o

Increase/(decrease) Increase in
in profits exchange reserve

i/ (R 2) BE 52 fak #5357
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBAT BHBET BEAT
US dollar ETT 38.2 279 195.7 195.8
Singapore dollar $IT 0.3 0.3 - =
Thai baht eSS (0.2) - - -

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

FRZER

ERERE  BRFRER
C B RAE DT AR E
BZINER ©

RN
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Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed—rate bank deposits and borrowings and fixed—rate advance
from non-controlling shareholders (see Notes 29, 30 and 37
for details of these deposits and borrowings). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable—rate
bank deposits and borrowings (see Notes 29 and 37 for details
of these deposits and borrowings) and mortgage instalment
receivables (see Note 22 for the receivables). It is the Group’s
policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR or
other relevant interbank offer rates arising from the Group’s
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non—derivative instruments at
the end of the reporting period. For variable-rate bank deposits
and borrowings and mortgage instalment receivables, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability and asset
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnels and represents management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s:

° profit for the year ended 31 March 2011 would decrease/
increase by HK$14.4 million (2010: HK$7.5 million). This
is mainly attributable to the Group'’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings and mortgage
instalment receivables.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased from prior
year due to increase in bank borrowing.
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BN

AEBAZEBRITERAREBEUAKRIE
ERRERIRE  E B BR (REEAKE
EHFIELRME29 30 %37) 2 AFE
FIRER - NEB AT FBIRITFER
kEE (ZEFRREEFBLAME
29 &k 37) M EWIRIE D B IR (R3S
28 M3x22) 2B RFEER - 8E
BLUZEF R BT AERB 2R - A
EEREAFEFERRER -

AEEAZTREEREBARIANE
Rl #BRHRAWERBECRRE
BEy ARBZRERMNERAREE
SETRBERITARKERLAEEHLZ
EEMEEZEMABARITRAZHFEXR
ME o

BURE DT

AT SRS DT TR B A 3R &5 B R JEDT
ETAZFERRRRMERE - g7 BRIT
GREEBEREWZBSBEHRIME -
ZAMINBERBRERARGFTEZEBER
BESENRBEFENAGEMRE -
MR 0 RER ARFEEEAR
REBIE R KRR AT 2 Sk E - Wik
EIBEBUF RO A B EE) 2 T o

HI S 80 / b 50 EIZES - AT &
M BT - B

e HE2011F3A31HILFE 2
A AR /I IN144BEBAE T
(2010F : 75B&HBT) - Wi E
EHRAEBGRETBRITEER
FEUIR 7 B R 2 FIRRBRFTER ©

AREEH N R 2 B E & T FEIE
B RERTTEEIEINFTEL -
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Other price risk

The Group is exposed to market price fluctuation through
its investments in both listed and unlisted securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
diversified portfolio. The level and volatility of the prices of
securities may be affected by general economic and market
conditions, such as interest rates, availability of credit, inflation
rates, economic uncertainty, changes in laws (including taxation
law), trade barriers, currency exchange controls, and national
and international political circumstances, if applicable.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to price of securities investments at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the respective securities investments had been
5% higher/lower:

° profit for the year ended 31 March 2011 would increase/
decrease by HK$0.01 million (2010: HK$6.4 million) as a
result of the changes in financial assets at FVTPL; and

° investment valuation reserve would increase/decrease by
HK$2.9 million (2010: HK$4.4 million) for the Group as
a result of the changes in fair value of available—for—sale
financial assets.

The Group’s sensitivity to available—for—sale investments and
held—for-trading investments has not changed significantly from
the prior year.

At A JEL

AEERER ETRIFLEHEFRZKE
MAETSERKB AR - EEESE
BEROHMEASERILAR - BHER
IR R R B AT BE 5% 21 BE B A8 7 A Th 35k
AT E - flmAx - FEAGEE 8
MR~ EETEARRNE  JEBIEE) (BFEH
BER) - EZRE - SRERES - A
REBRBERBRLS (ER )

GURE DT

AN BURE 2 T THIRIB A BB ¥R B HARE 55
BEZERERMET

HMAEBEFRE BB L/ THE5% -

a2 :

e HE2011F3A3BIFEZE
MABEAFEFABEZEMEE
BE)mAFIE M/ B 0.01 EEET
(2010F : 64EHEBTL) &

e REMEREFERAHLESMEE
ZAFEESmAGEM/ R 29FH
BB (2010F : 44 /BBT) ©

AEBHAHEERELBEREERE
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Credit risk

As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

° the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position; and

° the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed in Note 39.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow—up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

With respect to credit risk arising from amounts due from
associates, the Group reviews the recoverable amount at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The exposure to
credit risk is limited.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk in connection with held—
to—maturity investment is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings and corporates with strong
financial position.

Other than amounts due from associates amounting to
HK$195.3 million, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk over trade receivables. Trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread
across diverse industries and geographical areas.
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i B

MR2011F3A31H  REBRERRZSBEH
KREBITETULYBEREXAEE

BBEIAMES 2 EmEERE - TR
g :
o REBMBINAKRFTABEER

CREEZRmE: &

o MEIMEBEAEAEEEL 2
BRERNIAREEDRE -

AREARREEERR  AEEERE
EXY—XKh BEBEFEERSE

SEMZMEMEREF - UERLK
Bl 8 IR A REUBRETTE) © heoh - AN
EenmEHAREHSEENESER
Z PO B - DA R BL A AT UL [ 2R
EH D BERE - Bt s » A2F
EERR AREZEERBRD KER
g o

A JE B = R R SR 5l R 2 (R B RLR T
E'$El%ﬁ HiR e Al B &
B - DARECRTLAT R UL D S BR 1 H FE OB
EEE - AEEAZ 2 EERRER

AEERBEINMREAZ ZEERAR
BR - ARRSHFHREESERT
M2 RITRABRYABAR 2 RA]

BR A8 Bt 2 A B]50IR 195.3 B & TN
AEBREE SRR 2 EERER D BR

AREFRZETRATERMEBEZER
F o HAREERRERESRERTEEME

=&

A2 EEER -
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Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 March 2011, the Group has available
unutilised overdraft and bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$5.0 million (2010: HK$5.0 million) and HK$3,415.3 million
(2010: HK$5,136.1 million) respectively.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the board of directors, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long—term funding and liquidity management
requirements.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms except for the bank loans with a repayable on
demand clause. For non—derivative financial liabilities, the table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at
the end of the reporting period.

B 4 B

RERRPHECERMNE  AEEER
REFEEBRRBREARAEEEER
HESMHABERERKBTEZHEN
ReFEBERNKY BEEBERRITE
E2BRIBEN - WHERNTA SR -

AEBEBIRITEEEARDESCE
TR - 201143 A31H » A&EB %
BRI FEABRRARBAZEI RIRTE
FBEDRA5.0EEET (2010F : 5.0
BE#%Ir) &3,415.3FE&B T (20104
5136.1B88T) °

ExenndEcRREEAERRR
T REEAKREZEH PHERH
B MRBECERTRKEL—EEHE
ZRBEZE R ERER o

TRFEIA L BRI TE 1 SRR 2 F
HRAEMOHRceRAE (AJERERER
R ZBITEFERIN) 515 - BIEITESR
MEBEMS @ WIIKRDRAEEAIKE
KN FzHFEH  REBEZ KRR
REREIFNTESRAE - RPEE
MERAEZRER M EREFE
MEREFE - RURESBERBEHREHR
IR o
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Liquidity risk table FEEE LSRR
On demand
and Total Carrying
less than undiscounted  amount at
1 year 1-2 2-5 Over cashflows 31 March
REXR years years 5 years KRER W3A31H
Pi—f  —EWE ZERE  AENLE REGEE ZREE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT FAEET  HAEAn  HE#T  HEERT HEAT
2011 2011 %
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEfT4SRAE
Trade payables BB ZERR
and accrued charges RIESTER 246.3 = = = 246.3 246.3
Deposits received Blize REMERAR
and other financial liabilities 86.3 - - - 86.3 86.3
Amount due to an associate (R & A R 5.5 - - - 5.5 5.5
Bank and other loans fﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬁgm
- variable rate — %8 1,567.3 1,692.7 323.6 - 3,583.6 3,523.1
Other liabilities Hing i 326.4 14.3 27.5 816.0  1,184.2 1,184.2
Financial guarantee contracts HBERED 160.4 = = = 160.4 -
2,392.2 1,707.0 351.1 816.0 5,266.3 5,045.4
2010 20105
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEfi4 S EEE
Trade payables BB ZER
and accrued charges RIEFER 1785 = = = 1785 1785
Deposits received Blize REMERAE
and other financial liabilities 1845 - - - 184.5 184.5
Amount due to an associate e RS A RIFUIR 10.0 - - - 100 10.0
Bank and other loans fﬂﬂﬁﬁfﬁgm
— fixed rate - TE 35 - = = 35 34
- variable rate - 28 175.1 6.1 1,403.9 - 1,585.1 1,567.2
Other liabilities HinaE 35.1 7.1 455 803.5 891.2 891.1
Convertible bonds kES 834.3 - = = 8343 830.5
Financial guarantee contracts BBEERED 1585 - - = 1535 =
1,574.5 13.2 1,449.4 803.5 3,840.6 3,065.2

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in

AIBER 2 RERIERZRITEET AL

the “on demand and less than 1 year” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank
loans amounted to HK$333.9 million and HK$10.3 million,
respectively. Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans will be
repaid within 4 years after the reporting date in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
At that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
will amount to HK$337.4 million.

LH%H ST [REBR R DR—F | B
Mo Ed o B201143 A31 8 %2010
¢3H31E| hFIRITEE 2 ARBIRE
AEEH A A33BIBESETRI0IE
EATLT LEBAEBZUBMRR - &
%iTw%ﬁ TEAREITHEERNIFEE

RSy F”G REHNEEHE
ZREEEBRH  EFRRRITIEER
RBEERMNFRNEE - N #4128

EMBHRSRERHN/IZ7TABEET -
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The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non—derivative financial liabilities is subject

to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contract
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that no amount
will be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

FAIR VALUE

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded on active
liguid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices and ask prices respectively; and

o the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The consolidated financial statements include holdings in
unlisted shares which are measured at fair value (Note 21). Fair
value is provided by independent financial institutions or fund
managers. The valuation is generally based on the most recent
financial and market information of the underlying investee or at
cost as advised by the fund manager.
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37. ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

37. Bi& MBS E0E H 4568
S Hr

2011 2010

HK$'M HK$'M

BHEET BEBT

Bank balances and cash IRITHER MRS 2,379.9 2,055.4

Included in the bank balances and cash at 31 March 2011
were bank deposits with maturity within 3 months from the date
of placement amounting to approximately HK$2,374.1 million
(2010: HK$2,004.3 million).

The effective interest rate of the bank balances at 31 March
2011 were in the range of 0.01% to 2.60% (2010: 0.01% to
2.38%) per annum. The directors consider the carrying amount
of the Group’s bank balances and cash at the end of the
reporting period approximates their corresponding fair value.

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had pledged property, plant
and equipment with a carrying value of HK$9.2 million (2010:
HK$9.1 million) and bank deposits of HK$2.9 million (2010:
HK$59.3 million) to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group. No property under development (2010: HK$104.9
million) was pledged for the aforesaid purpose as at 31 March
2011.

National Asset Limited, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary,
had subordinated an inter—company debt due from one of its
fellow subsidiaries in the amount of HK$40.2 million (2010:
HK$35.6 million) as at 31 March 2011 to secure banking
facilities granted to that particular subsidiary.

HKR Asia—Pacific Pte Ltd, Beaufort Holdings Limited and
Sathorn Park Co Ltd, the Company’s subsidiaries, had also
subordinated their inter—-company debts due from one of their
fellow subsidiaries respectively in the amount of HK$16.9 million
(2010: nil), HK$273.6 million (2010: nil) and HK$176.0 million
(2010: nil) as at 31 March 2011 to secure banking facilities
granted to that particular subsidiary.

P201143A318 ' RTEBLRIR S
BIEAEHL23741BEB T (20104 :
200438 8HBm) R3EARNEHE 2R
TR o

IRITAEBRN 2011 F3 A31 A2 EEFIE
FEEFIE0.01 EE2.60E (20104 :0.01
[EZ238F) 2#HEAN - EFRRRT
BRI NS R 2 BRE (E E AR R
NEEE -

38. B Ak

MR2011F3A31H AEBEEBEE
02BE&BIL (2010F :9.1EHBEIL) Z
E - BEMRER29BEET (2010
F:593F8B L) 2RITFREER
B URGBETFTAEEZRITEE - ©
20114 3 A 31 BV 3R W S K
(20105 :1049B8BT ) tELtAZ -

R2011%F3 8318 ' ARAzE=EKB
72 @] National Asset Limited Ft B E —R
REMBARZARIMERELI2EEE
70 (20104 : 366 B &EB L) ERER
FIEARTEBRHNBRARZRITEE
AR o

MR2011F3A31H ' X2 &z KB
NAElBABEEDKNER AR - Beaufort
Holdings Limited } Sathorn Park Co Ltd
HEMEE—RRARMBRRZARRER
E169 8 BB T (20104 : &) - 2736
BEHBT (20104 : &) R176.0B &8
7T (20104 « &) (F2ERFE - 1ERAKT
BB AR ZRITEE 2EM -
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39. BRAREfH
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BERET BEBTT

Guarantees given, to the extent of the Group’s  LAZNE= B IS EL 7 & BR -

proportionate share, in respect of banking PITE R A ERRTT
facilities granted to an investee company EEELZER 160.4 153.5

No financial guarantee has been recognised as the fair value for ~ R EIEERZ AFLEIL B KX © I

the financial guarantee is insignificant. EIEREIER o
40. COMMITMENTS 40. 7KIE
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEAT
Contracted but not provided for in RENBHREAPEEL
the consolidated financial statements BREME
— capital expenditure in respect of — R EME
acquisition of investment properties BARHEYE - 420.6
— expenditure in respect of properties — BEHEZER / BEPR
held for/under development for sale W 2 I 755.3 1,326.8
— others — HAth 175.0 225
930.3 1,769.9
Authorised but not contracted for in REMBmEAREIE
the consolidated financial statements BREL
— capital expenditure in respect of — W EME L
acquisition of investment properties B AR 40.1 48.1
— expenditure in respect of properties — BEHEZER / BERP
held for/under development for sale W 2 e 137.6 162.2
— others — HEfb 67.5 52.2
245.2 262.5
1,175.5 2,032.4

In addition, the outstanding capital commitments in respect of  |tk4h » REBRAKHEER Z AT HE
the Group’s interest in Dazhongli is disclosed in Note 20. RAVED NHIE 20 R IR R
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41. LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
THE GROUP AS LESSEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and buildings which fall due
as follows:
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41. HEZHE
45 B s AR
NERWF - AEERBE L HRETY

AR REHE S E M AR A N HE
ZARRRERENFAESRENAT

2011 2010

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEBT

Within one year —FNR 32.7 28.6
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEERF (BEBERTE) 28.3 36.9
Over five years hFE 5.6 8.6
66.6 74.1

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and staff quarters. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals are fixed
for an average term of one to two years.

In addition, the Group is committed to leasing land in Singapore
where a hotel is situated for 86 years up to February 2074. The
annual lease payment is at the higher of approximately HK$3.3
million or 5% of the total gross revenue of the hotel.

BEME - TH-EMERELTE .

HESN - AN BB AR TH AT i — 18
BIERTR 2 L3 - HEIR 864 - 22074
F2REM - BFREGHEEHNIIAER
TLSOBEE BN 5% (B @mERLE)
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THE GROUP AS LESSOR

Property rental income earned from investment properties and
other properties during the year was in aggregate HK$371.1
million (2010: HK$335.0 million), of which HK$367.6 million
(2010: HK$329.9 million) was generated from investment
properties of the Group. Investment properties and other
properties with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$6,166.2
million (2010: HK$5,331.1 million) were held for rental
purposes as at the end of the reporting period. Depreciation
charge for the year in respect of other properties was HK$1.3
million (2010: HK$1.3 million). The properties held have
committed tenants for a period from one to six years. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants
for the following future minimum leases payments under non—
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

ACSE [ 2 AL

WEMEREMYERF AR 2 W
HeWAEHAE371.1H5EE T (2010
F:330888mL) r AH36768H
7T (20104F : 3299 B EBT) BB K
SEREME - RERBK - FHEAR
$#6,166.2 8 & /& 7T (20104 : 5,331.1
BEBL) 2IREWEREMETFHE
HERZ AFERNEHEEMYMEZT
EXHA1I3IEES T (2010F: 137
BH7T) - A EAMENEER
—ERETE - RERPER - ~5EE
EEFTHERIL - MBET I B E
HMER T MR RRFEBS
AR

2011 2010

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEAT

Within one year —FR 234.5 247 .4
In the second to fifth year inclusive ~F_ZFAF(BIEEEMRF) 161.2 246.9
Over five years hFE 22.5 16.7
418.2 511.0
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42. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

A

HONG KONG

In order to comply with Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance, a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) with employer’s voluntary contributions
has been established on 1 December 2000.

For the members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme, which contribution is matched by the employee.

The amount charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable of HK$15.5 million (2010: HK$14.9
million) to the MPF Scheme by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes less forfeitures
of HK$2.6 million (2010: HK$3.5 million) arising from
employees leaving the Group prior to completion of the
qualifying service period.

At the end of the reporting period, there is no forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefits schemes and which are available to
reduce the contributions payable in future years (2010:
nil).

PRC AND OVERSEAS

The employees of the Group in PRC and overseas are
members of state—-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the respective local governments in relevant
jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute and
recognise a specified percentage of payroll costs to the
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligations of
the Group with respect to these schemes are to make
the specified contributions and recognise the respective
retirement pay in accordance with terms set out in the
schemes and relevant jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the
above—-mentioned schemes in the relevant jurisdictions
amounted to approximately HK$9.4 million (2010: HK$8.9
million).
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42.

A.
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND 43, TR 2w i A ]
ASSOCIATES
(a) Details of principal subsidiaries incorporated and have  (a) HE&HBEMAT REEZ ETEHE
their principal place of operation in Hong Kong are as NEFFBMAT -
follows:
31.3.2011 31.3.2010
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest  Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable
share capital  tothe Group  sharecapital  tothe Group
Name of company BBTRA AEEHE BETRA AEEHE  Principal activities
ISEL ! ZHfE ZFiE ZEE ZRE  IERK
HK$ % HK$ %
B Bt BT Bl
Allmedco Group Limited 1,500,000 45.6° 1,500,000 456" Medical and dental
equipment and supplies
ERRTHRBREER
AmMed Cancer Center (Central) 2 100 2 100 Cancer treatment operator
Limited BIEREEME
AmMed Hong Kong Limited 10,000 100 10,000 100 Investment holding
CEBABRERAR REEK
AmMed (Hong Kong Island Center) 868 92.17 868 92.17  Cancer freatment operator
Limited BIEREEME
DP Properties Limited (formerly - - 1,000 100 Investment holding and
HKR Properties Limited)™ property development
(FIBAEARE (M%) REAREDZERE
BRAR) "
DbAY Service Limited 2 50* 2 50*  Property agency services
WRENEERARAR WERBRE
Discovery Bay Commercial 2 50% 2 50*  Property leasing

Services Limited

BEERERBERAR

ESiE
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31.3.2011 31.3.2010
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest  Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable

share capital  tothe Group  sharecapital  tothe Group

Name of company BHBTRA AEEHE BETIRA AEEHE  Principal activities
N ZHE iR ZEE LB FERE
HK$ % HK$ %
B Bt BT Bt
Discovery Bay Enterprises Limited 400,000 50* 400,000 50*  Operation of a shipyard
TEs
Discovery Bay Financial Services 2 50* 2 50*  Provision of financial
Limited services o first hand
W ENBREERAR purchasers of properties

Discovery Bay Golf Club Limited
BRERRAREERAR

Discovery Bay Marina Club Limited
WREBREERAT]

Discovery Bay Residents Club Limited
WREREEERAR

Discovery Bay Road Tunnel Company
Limited
HREREERAR

Discovery Bay Services Management
Limited
BREREEEERAR

in Discovery Bay
miRE—FER M

BB RS

2 50* 2 50%  Provision of club facilities
RESHTE

2 50* 2 50%  Provision of club facilities
REERE

2 50* 2 50%  Provision of club facilities
RESHTE

2 50* 2 50*  Road tunnel operation
P

2 50* 2 50*  Estate management
EREE
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31.3.2011 31.3.2010
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest  Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable

share capital  tothe Group  sharecapital  tothe Group

Name of company CEITRE AEEEE BRERA KEEHE  Principal activities
DB <HfE iR A ZIRE  FERE
HK$ % HK$ %
B B BT Btk
Discovery Bay Transit Services 2 50* 2 50%  Provision of bus services
Limited TR ARRS

WRERBREERAR

Discovery Bay Transportation Services 2 50* 2 50%  Provision of ferry services
Limited AR GRIRT

R EREREERAR

Fame Wood Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
BIRBRAR NERE
Frosmate Company Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
RILEERAT] REER
Gemsbok Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
REAR
Grace Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
EERBRRAT NERE
Greenyield Limited 2 100 2 100 Propery investment

AABRAR] WERE
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31.3.2011 31.3.2010
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest  Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable

share capital  tothe Group  sharecapital  tothe Group

Name of company BBTRA AEBHE BETRA AEEHAE  Principal activities
ISEL ZHfE 41 A} IEE FEXE
HK$ % HK$ %
#r Bk BT Bl
HKR Limited 2 100 2 100 Property management
ERREHFERAA NXER
HKR Capital Partners (HK) Limited 2 100 2 100 Advisory services
HAR%
Hagent Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
RERERRAT] NERE
Health & Care Dental Clinic Limited 8,708,433 57.05 8,708,433 57.05  Development and operation
ERIREBMERAR of dental clinic
TRYRERREE
Health & Care Dental Services 800,000 57.05 800,000 57.05  Provision of dental services
Limited HRAE T RL RS
ERTRREER AR
Health & Care Group Limited 1,133,334 57.05 1,133,334 57.05  Investment holding and its
ERBESEERAT subsidiaries are engaged in
operation of dental clinic
chain
RERR - MARBAT
At=g e s TRDm
Healthway Medical Centres Limited 1 100 1 100 Provision of medical services

RUEERPLERAR

RHEERRS
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31.3.2011 31.3.2010
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest  Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable
share capital  tothe Group  sharecapital  to the Group
Name of company CEITRE AEEEE ERERA KEEHE  Principal activities
DB ZMfE bt A ZRE IRRE
HK$ % HK$ %
B ARl AT BALt
Hong Kong Health Resort Limited 4 100 4 100 Property investment
MERE
Hong Kong Resort Company Limited 212,950,000.5** 50* 212,950,000.5%* 50*  Investment holding and
ERRZARAR property development
REAREDFER
ImagingMed Central Limited 20 100 20 100 Diagnostic imaging center

BEDHER L

Kellett Healthcare Training 100 57.05 100 57.05  Provision of dental training
Institute Limited COUrses

SUBEREIROERAR RAETRIEIRE

Lam Island Development 2,000,000 99.99 2,000,000 99.99  Property development
Company Limited ESE

HEESERAA

Lee Wo Company, Limited 300,000 100 300,000 100 Property investment

NMMERAA MERE

Parocka Investments Limited 20 100 20 100 Property development

NEER
Pearl Development Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment

BEERARAR ESE
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31.3.2011 31.3.2010
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest  Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable

share capital  tothe Group  sharecapital  tothe Group

Name of company BHTRA AEEEE BEIRA AEEHE  Principal activities
N ZHE iR ZEE LB FERE
HK$ % HK$ %
B Bt BT Bt

Qualigenics Medical Limited 3,000 80 3,000 80  Clinic operator in diabetic

BEBEERAT and cardio treatment
R R ORRE BRSNS

Quebostage Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment

BHARAT] ESE

Rich Deal Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding

RaERAR REAER

Royston Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding

WREXREERAT REAR

Scoot Development Limited 1 100 1 100 Investment holding
REAR

TCS Project Management Limited 2 100 2 100 Property development

project management

MERRERERE

Wells Estate Services Limited 100,000 100 100,000 100 Estate management

BIEMERBERAR EiER

Wells Property Management Limited 1,000 100 1,000 100 Estate management

RINEERERAR ERER

Yintaly Construction Company 2 100 2 100 Property investment

Limited ESEN

ENRETRARRA
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* %

#H#

According to the shareholders’ agreement of Hong Kong
Resort Company Limited (“HKRC”), the Group is able to
control more than half of the voting powers of the board of
directors of HKRC and its subsidiaries.

In addition to 1 ordinary share of par value of HK$0.25
each, 100% in the value of HK$212,950,000.5 deferred
shares are also held by the Group (see note).

Note: The deferred shares held by the Group are shares
whose shareholders are neither entitled to receive
notices, attend, vote at any general meetings nor
to receive any dividend out of operating profit and
have very limited rights on return of assets of the
companies.

Allmedco Group Limited (“Allmedco”) is classified as a
subsidiary of the Company as it is a 80%—owned subsidiary
of Health & Care Group Limited (“H&C”) while in turn is a
57.05%—-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company
has control over the board of directors of H&C and
Allmedco.

Renamed to “DP Properties Limited” with effect from
25 January 2011. On 10 December 2010, HK Resort
International Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into an agreement in relation to
the disposal of its interests in DP Properties Limited
(formerly “HKR Properties Limited”) including Goldencliff
Investments Limited, Discovery Park Commercial Services
Limited and Discovery Park Financial Services Limited. The
transaction was completed on 22 March 2011.

**

##

REFBHEXERAR ([FEH
¥ ) 2R - AKER] AR
HEEREMNEMNBARZES
SHRBFBZRTE

BREeREEREENDEIT LI
BE BN - AEEITEH 100%
{B18212,950,000.58 7T Z FEIEAX
o (RMEE) -

i NREERE ZRERD LR
BRENEBMZ2EERAE
RRBRAE LRE - ThE
T FI M B A & 28 a8 | P 23 IR
ZEMBRE - MEFEA L
RAFFEARZEED A
Rl o

B Allmedco Group Limited
(TAllmedcol) & 1B 1 5% & &
BRAAE ([1ER]) # B 80%#E
mZMBAR miERA AR
A B 5 57.05% 1 =5 2 K B A
Al © W Almedcot® o 8 & A& A
AZHB AR - AAREERK
Allmedcoz E =& B G2l # o

B2011F 1 A25HEE %% [DP
Properties Limited | ° 7220104 12
H 10 H * HK Resort International
Limited (KRR 2 2 &K B R
7)) BT tha% & 72 DP Properties
Limited (AU & [ &8 HZE ()
¥)ERAAD 2= (B
Goldencliff Investments Limited ~ 6
SHMMEEREER AR RS
IR BRBEBR AT ) © ZRX 5
R2011F3 22 B °
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Details of other principal subsidiaries are as follows: (b) EHEMFEMRBARGEEWET :
31.3.2011 31.3.2010
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of of issued  Equity interest ofissued  Equity interest
incorporation/ Principal share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable
registration place of registered capital ~ tothe Group  registered capital to the Group
Narme of company e/ operation BERRE/ FEEBE  BEORE/ REEHE  Principal actiities
AR CRwiE TERENY AMEAZEfE g AR CERE JIRE  EEER
% %
Akt At
Abraham Holdings Limited Liberia Hong Kong Nil 100 Nil 100 Securities investment
M2 & & i FHiE
Abraham Investment British Virgin Note* Us$1 100 US$1 100 Securities investment
Holdings Limited Islands 1% IE FHIE
ARARREES M
AmMed Intermational Cayman lslands ~ Note™ US$179,999.96 ~ 100 US$179,999.96 ~ 100 Investment holding and
Corporation Ltd. HeHe iR 179,999.96% 7 ~ 179,999.96% 7t~ its subsidliaries are
engaged in operation
of ambulatory cancer
diagnosis and
treatment centers
RERR  MAREAT
ElvETR
b -Gal
Bathroom & Kitchen Australia Australia A$329,861 100 £A$329.861 100 Marketing of bathroom
Supplies Pty Ltd BH il 329,861 39,8614 products
AZAmES
Beaufort Holdings Limited Cayman Islands ~ Note ** HK$10,197,932 9328  HK$10,197,932 9328 Investment holding
REER ffgE 10,197,932 % 10,197,932 BB
Beautfort Inemational Singapare Singapore $$1,000,000 & 100 $$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
Hotels (Singapore) Pte Lid il i JPY420,240,000 ~ 1,000,008 REAR
1,000,000 % &
420,240,0000 ~
Beaufort Sentosa Singapore Singapore $$143,011,794 ~ 93.64 $$43696,126 9364 Hotel operation
Development Pte Lid Dy e 143,011,7948 7~ 43,69, 1265 7T BERE
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31.3.2011 3132010
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of of issued  Equity interest ofissued  Equity interest
incorporation/ Principl share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable
registration place of registered capital  tothe Group  registered capital o the Group
Narme of company FERL/ operation BBERE/ FEEBE  EEORE/ REEHA  Principal activities
AR B TECENS a1 YA kit EMERZEE JIRE ERER
% %
R A7l
Broad Base International British Virgin Note * Us$1 100 Us$1 100 Securities investment
Limited Islands fifst> 1£% B E5RE
ZRGARNS
CDW Bilding Limited Cayman Islands ~ Hong Kong HK$5,100,002 100 HKS$5,100,002 100 Property investment
RSHS & 5,100,002 1 5,100,002% 7 e
Clarity Aesthetic Center, Inc Philippines Philippines PHP250,000 100 PHP250,000 100 Provision of
ez FEE 250,0008 B H % D000 EEERR dermatology services
RERERERS
Chinadental Investments Ltd British Virgin Note ** Us$1 100 Us$1 100 Investment holding
Islands itz 157 IE RERR
ERGARNS
Concord Management Co, Ltd Thailand Thailand Baht2,000,000 ~ 100 Baht2,000,000 ~ 100 Serviced apartment
2E R 2,000,000% ~ 2,000,000k ~ management
R EEER
Cosmos Glamour Limited* British Virgin Note ** Us$1 100 - - Investment holding
Islands (i3 1£7 Rank
ZRGARNS
DB Properties Inc British Virgin Note** Uss1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
Islands i3 1£7 IE Ramk

ZEERRRE
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31.3.2011 31.3.2010
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of of issued  Equity interest ofissued  Equity interest
incorporation/ Principl share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable
registration place of registered capital  tothe Group  registered capital o the Group
Narme of company FERL/ operation BBERE/ FEEBE  EEORE/ REEHA  Principal activities
AR B IREEN a1 YA <hig AR ZER JIRE ERER
% %
Bkt ant
GenRx Holdings Limited British Virgin Note** Uss1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
RIBRERAT Islands fie+ 1£7 B RERR
ABARRHE
Great Wisdom Holdings British Virgin Note** Uss1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
Limited Islands [ 1% S0 REER
ABARRHE
HK Resort International Cayman lslands ~ Note ** HK$2 100 HK$2 100 Investment holding
Limited REHE ffse %7 28T &R
HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$5,000,000 & 100 $§5,000,000 100 Investment holding
BERETABRAR HR g JPY5,447,780,000 & 5,000,000% 7 REER
Baht24,700,000 ~
5,000,000 7t &
5447,780000RE %
24,700,000%5 ~
HKR China Limited British Virgin Note ** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
EREZXPEERAR Islands fisk 1£7 B3 REER
ABABREE
HKR Japan Co, Ltd Japan Japan JPY1,000,000 100 JPY1,000,000 100 Property investment
A& A% 1,000,000 1,000,008 ESE
HKR Japan KK ¢ Japan Japan JPY10,000 100 JPY10,000 100 Investment
A& A% 10,000HF 10,0008 &
HKRJ Development Co, LtdA Japan Japan JPY10,000 100 JPY10,000 100 Investment
AR A% 10,0000 E 10,0008 el
HKR Shanghai Limited British Virgin Note ** Uss1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
BREX DBERAR Islands fie+ 1£7 B RERR

ZEERRRE
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31.3.2011 31.32010
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of of issued  Equity interest ofissued ~ Equity interest
incorporation/ Principal share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable
registration place of registered capital ~ tothe Group  registered capital  tothe Group
Name of company e/ operation BRTRA/ FEERE  CEARE/ AEEHE  Principal activties
NSz Bt TEEENY HMERZEE g HEfEACEE JRE  FERE
% %
Anlt Aalt
HKRJ Akasaka TMK" Japan Japan JPY2,700,100,000 ~ 100 - - Property investment
AR A% 2,700,100,000H ~ VESE
HKRJ Roppongi TMK" Japan Japan JPY2,700,200,000 ~ 100 - - Properly investment
AR A% 2,700,200,000HE ~ VESE
HMC, Inc Philippines Philippines PHP10,250,000 100 PHP10,250,000 100 Provision of medical
2z FEZ 10,250,000 10,250,000 senices
FRENE FEERE R{EERRHS
Hanbright Assets Limited British Virgin Note** Uss1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
Islands i 157 E RABR
EBEARES
Health & Care (Macau) Macau Macau MOP25,000 57.05 MOP25,000 5705 Operational of dental
Dental Group Limited il .0 25,0008 1 25,0002F7 clinic in Macau
B[R (8F) TS ERRAT ERSEETRDN
Healthway Philippines Inc. Philippines Philippines PHP19,137,500 100 PHP19,137,500 100 Investment holding
FEE FaE 19,137,500 19,137,500 RABR
FREHE FRERZ
Hojo Pte Ltd" Singapore Singapore JPY1,325,010,000 ~ 100 - - Investment holding
g Dk 1,325,010,000H ~ RABR
RR2EARAT PRC PRC U$$22,000,000 100 US$22,000,000 100 Manufacturing of
i H 22,000,000%7 22,000,00057% bathroom products
FEATRR
Impulse Bathroom Products United Kingdom ~ United £320,000 100 £320,000 100 Marketing of bathroom
Ltd it Kingdom 320,000%5 320000588 products
2 AZAmER
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 &% 201143 5 31 A1 F/Z

31.3.2011 31.3.2010
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of of issued  Equity interest ofissued ~ Equity interest
incorporation/ Principal share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable
registration place of registered capital ~ tothe Group  registered capital  tothe Group
Name of company e/ operation BRTRA/ FEERE  CEARE/ AEEHE  Principal activties
AR ErE IERELY HAMEAZafE g AR CERE JIRE  EEER
% %
Bl Bt
Mantle Investments Limited British Virgin Note * Uss1 100 US$1 100 Securiies investment
Islands iR% 1% IEJ BHRE
ARARRHEE
Maxbright Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore S§1 93.64 1 9364  Property holding
Fis Hii 147 17 HERE
National Asset Limited British Virgin Note** Uss1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding and
Islands i 17 IES its subsidiaries are
EBEARES engaged in marketing
of bathroom products
RERRK - AN
L
iifi2
Powerford Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$4,500,000 100 $§4,500,000 100 Property development
R il 4,500,000 7 4,500,000% 70 VESE
Prinia Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$2 100 2 100 Investment holding
FTIR i1 247 V2 RERR
Ruthin Investments Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore S$2 & 100 52 100 Property investment
TR TR JPY1,362,730,000 ~ Wi VESE
2k
1,362,730,000 Rl ~
Sathorn Park Company Thailand Thailand Baht933,600,000 96.47  Baht933,600,000 96.47  Hotel operation and
Limited R EEl 933,600,000 933,600,003k owner
BEREREE
Spa Botanica Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$2 100 2 100 Provision of spa
TR g Ui WL botanical services
ALK ERRS
Suki Pte Ltd® Singapore Singapore S$1& 100 - - Investment holding
AR i1 JPY367,500,000 ~ BEmk
R

367,500,005 ~
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 &%= 201143 A 31 A1 F/Z

31.3.2011 3132010
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of of issued  Equity interest ofissued ~ Equity interest
incorporation/ Principal share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable
registration place of registered capital ~ tothe Group  registered capital  tothe Group
Narme of company SR/ operation BBERE/ FEERE  CEORE/ KREEEE  Principal activities
ARIER Wik IREES HMERZEE g AR CER JIRE  EREE
% %
ARl Anl
Viva Fund Services Limited* Cayman Islands ~~ Note ™ Uss1 100 - - General partner
REHS fifse™ 17 —fREBA
Viva Investment Advisory Cayman Islands ~~ Note ™ Uss1 100 - - Investment advisory
Limited” HEHE ™ %5 BB
B2(L5RRARAR" PRC PRC US$14,000,000 100 US$14,000,000 100 Property investment
E ] 14,000,000%7 14,000,000 ESE
EELREESS PRC PRC US$1,500,000 100 US$1,500,000 100 Property management
BRAR' RE S 1,500,000£7 150000057 and consultancy
Services
NEEERERRE
* These companies are engaged in securities investment * WERRNEARAEBR 2 EHIEE
business of the Group and have no specific principal place 2% EAMEBEREZETESE
of operation. HoBh o
**  These companies act as investment holding companies = WENRAEEERE AT BAm
and have no specific principal place of operation. WEEEZ T ELIEE, o
~ The issued share capital of each of these companies ~ EAFKBZERITRABRS
comprises more than 1 class of shares. ZR—TE 2 o
o These companies were acquired/incorporated, as A WENFHREE2011E3 31 H
appropriate, during the year ended 31 March 2011. \FEEUREE / ARz (T0sEA ) o
¢ Renamed to “HKRI Japan Co, Ltd” (formerly “HKRI ¢ B 201046 A 14 H#EE & A [ HKRI
Investment Co, Ltd”) with effect from 14 June 2010 and Japan Co, Ltd] (AT # & [HKRI
then “HKR Japan KK” with effect from 5 October 2010. Investment Co, Ltd ) XE 1% B 2010
F10HA5H B E A A [HKR Japan
KK] °
A Renamed to “HKRI Japan Co, Ltd.” (formerly “HKRI A B 20104 B 28 H#EE & 4 [HKRI

##

Development Co, Ltd”) with effect from 28 April 2010
and then “HKRJ Development Co, Ltd” with effect from
14 June 2010.

These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

These companies have no specific principal place of
operation.

##

Japan Co, Ltd| (BT 7 A& [HKRI
Development Co, Ltd ) & H & B
20104 6 A 14 HEE & A [HKRJ
Development Co, Ltd | °

HERRREIERE -

HERRWRBEREL T BEE
HoFh o
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Details of principal associates are as follows:

456 B ok I

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &% 201143 5 31 A1 F/Z

Y- T kA
==

AIRELT -

31.3.2011 31.3.2010
Attributable Attributable
interest held interest held
Place of by the Group by the Group
Name of company incorporation NEEFTHEE NEBFHE Principal activities
NGB SEARAX S 3 fhHE s s FEXEB
% %
Bt B

Discovery Park Hong Kong - 50 Property leasing
Commercial Services B MERE
Limited

R R P SR AR TS
BRAT]

Discovery Park Hong Kong - 50 Provision of financial
Financial Services B services to first hand
Limited purchasers of Discovery

=R I AR S Park
BRAT] AR —F BRI M

B RR

Hanison Construction Cayman Islands 49 49 Construction, property
Holdings Limited REHE development, property

R B R AR A A investment and sales of

health products
B UEERE -
MERERRRERES
Morpheus Real Cayman Islands 20 - Investment holding and
Estate Fund LP** HERE its subsidiaries are
engaged in property
investment
REZERREMB AT
KEMEHRE
Polyoung Limited Hong Kong 31 31 Provision of financial
EHRAR AR s services to first hand
purchasers of Coastal
Skyline
MEXER-FER
R R

Tung Chung Station Hong Kong 31 31 Property development

Development s MEZRE

Company Limited
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* On 10 December 2010, HK Resort International Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
in relation to the disposal of its interests in DP Properties
Limited (formerly HKR Properties Limited) including Goldencliff
Investments Limited, Discovery Park Commercial Services Limited
and Discovery Park Financial Services Limited. The transaction
was completed on 22 March 2011.

**  The associate was established during the year ended 31 March
2011.

All of the above principal subsidiaries and associates, other
than Abraham Holdings Limited, Beaufort Holdings Limited,
DB Properties Inc, Great Wisdom Holdings Limited, Hanbright
Assets Limited, HKR China Limited, HK Resort International
Limited and HKR Asia—Pacific Pte Ltd, are held indirectly by the
Company.

The above tables list the subsidiaries and associates of the
Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries and associates would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Other than club debentures as set out in Note 30, no other loan
capital has been issued by any of the subsidiaries.

* P 20104 12 A 10 B ' HK Resort
International Limited (N2 &) 2 2 &M 8B
NTF]) 5] HhaE E S E 5L DP Properties
Limited (RITB R EBEZE (M) BRA
7)) Z # = (B IE Goldencliff Investments
Limited * = FMEERBER A

SRR ER AR ) o aZ
m2011¢3ﬂ 22 H5ERK °

= EEANRREE2011F3 A318 L
FERT -

B Abraham Holdings Limited * Beaufort
Holdings Limited * DB Properties Inc -
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited *
Hanbright Assets Limited + & 7 81 2
A R A 7+ HK Resort International
Limited X BAEHE D KBR A A -
MAABEEZEWB AR R ”**”Ti’JEEZIS
NAEEERE -

E=ZR5 LRAIAEEZHERR]
M ERBIIHAREZ XA EER
BEIBERE -EFRR WEMEMK
BRRIREERRABRITE °

BRI EE 30 PISI 2 & PRESSSM -
BRRHEETEABERE -

ZN-SE
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, other than balances with related parties as
shown in consolidated statement of financial position, the Group
had significant transactions with related parties as follows:

(A) Transactions with associates of Dr CHA Chi Ming, the late
chairman of the Company, namely Mingly Corporation
(“Mingly”) and its subsidiaries, and Cagen Holdings
Limited (“Cagen”). His issue including five directors of
the Company being discretionary beneficiaries of certain
discretionary trusts which have beneficial interests in both
the associates and the Company:

+.

BREAZ 5

BRéR e IO RATR B EA L 24

ﬁf%é?\\ AT RAREFAEREEALE
TZEARS

(A)

HANGEREFEERBL 28
AL (BEBHEEEZERERER
a0 REKBRAR UK
Cagen Holdings Limited ([Cagen]))
2R Bz EMBIESZAR A
%%W%“?%F*%Z%%ﬁﬁ
A REEERBMEATRAR

BEEEmER

2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEAT
(i)  Transaction with Mingly (i) E’@%ﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁ%
and its subsidiaries: NGRS
Management service fee AEERER 2
received by the Group EEREE 1.3 1.2
Rental income received AEEWEZ
by the Group GO 2.2 1.6

(i)  Cagen was appointed as manager to invest the
Group’s funds jointly with Cagen’s own funds in a
number of hedge funds (“Funds”) for a term of 3
years effective from 1 April 2007.

The Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Cagen to sell its interest in the Funds
during the year ended 31 March 2010. The disposal
was completed during the year ended 31 March
2011 and the Group received a cash consideration
of HK$145.8 million.

(i) CagenBEZITAAEBNE

A UBArAEEzES H

Cagen A GBS HERENZ

EHHES ([ZEES]) -

H2007F4 A1 HBER © &
HA34F o

REZE2010F3A31 B IEF
[ AEBHECageni] L EE
& MEERZEESHZ
Em o HEEREE2011F
3A31BIEFEREK @ ALK
EElBReRE 145888
PBTT o
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(B) Transactions with associates and jointly controlled entities

(B) HEARLERE NG KL

HFZEHEE

of the Group 2R
During the year, the Group had significant transactions FER - REBRE SN T K IERE
with associates and jointly controlled entities of the Group HERBVEARSW
as follows:
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Aggregate transaction value in respect 5 8755 B B — R B & A &)
of the following transactions entered (Efs B RIERAR A R])
into by the Group with an associate, REKTE R R#ETT
Hanison Construction Holdings UTRGZRH4EE :
Limited, and its subsidiaries:
— construction service fees — EERIEE 192.3 147.2
— renovation service fees — B EREE 0.1 0.1
Provision of services to an associate A B a8 N AR AR 7S 0.1 0.1
Management fee and other operating mBs A AU ER 2
service fees received from associates IR B N H 4 5 AR S & 5.0 0.2
Management fee and other )2k EE | B B U 2
operating service fees received BEENEMEERSEE
from a jointly controlled entity 21.4 12.7
Interest income received from A B & R EURER 2 A B A
an associate 0.5 0.7
Interest income received from MARESIEBE
a jointly controlled entity F 2 U A 5.5 -
Carpark rental paid to an associate mEE R R T2 FESES 0.4 0.3
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(C) Compensation of key management personnel (C) XEBEEBAEME
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EENHMFBEIERKENERN 2B
management during the year was as follows: ST
2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBAETL BEBTT
Short term employee benefits ySEI=Ri|
Fees e 2.1 1.9
Salaries and other benefits =e R EMIEF] 20.9 20.8
Performance related incentive B
payments 24.3 10.3
47.3 33.0
Post-employment benefit BEER 12 A2 R
Retirement benefits schemes RIRERIFT IR
contribution 0.9 0.9
48.2 339

The remuneration of directors and key executives is

EBITHRAB 2B B M
2 2E @R 8 TRIREMH5E
£

&
determined by the remuneration committee having regard %8
to the performance of individuals and market trends. R
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45. INFORMATION OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information of the Company’s condensed statement of financial
position is as follows:

45, AT 2 BABR LR

ARRZ ERFBHRRARERAT

2011 2010
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBTT
Non-current assets EMENE E 3,731.3 2,927.6
Current assets MENEE 6,800.4 6,406.2
Current liabilities VEIN=RE (6,970.6) (3,263.3)
Net current (liabilities) assets nE (BE) BEFE (170.2) 3,1429
Non-current liabilities EREEE - (2,241.8)
3,561.1 3,828.7

Capital and reserves IR R
Share capital [N 337.5 3375
Reserves HE 3,223.6 3,491.2
3,561.1 3,828.7

Loss for the year ended 31 March 2011 of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$10.9 million (2010: profit of
HK$478.1 million).

Under the Company Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its memorandum or articles of association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividends,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
articles of association, dividends can only be distributed out of
the accumulated profits of the Company of HK$1,682.6 million
as at 31 March 2011 (2010: HK$1,950.2 million).

AABBE2011F3A83IHIEFEZ
EE4AE109B 8B T (20104 : & F
4781 EEBHBIT) -

RIEFESBEEE2ZNAE (K8:T) -
KRR ZBRMDREAHSIETRELR
BERIRERE - WA ARMABEREKR
40 Ko 4B A SCRTRBR - 1 BPEIR 218 -
RNARBRENEENBEXERKIHZE
%o BBARRZARMBBERZMA -
B EARRANR2011F3A31H A
1,682.6 A&HEIL (20104 : 19502 B8
BT ) 2 RPN OIS ©
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A B R

RESULTS B
Year ended 31 March
BZ3A31HLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HEET BEBT BEBT BEBT BEBT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&7 (&5 (&73]) (7))
Turnover ] 1,800.7 1,839.8 2,593.7 3,429.7 2,636.7
Profit (loss) from & 18 )
operations (E18) 1,660.6 1,373.7 (253.7) 1576.7 1,217.0
Finance costs 5 E R (42.2) (82.2) (171.2) (193.2) (199.7)
Gain on disposal of HEHMBAR
a subsidiary 6 - - - - 580.8
Share of results of DR E AT
associates ¥4E 150.1 116.8 173.0 309.4 824
Share of results of jointly & FEEIEH]
controlled entities TREXE 79.3 780.2 (0.3) (34.0) 12.0
Profit (loss) before taxation B&#t A Al (518 ) 1,847.8 2,188.5 (252.2) 1,658.9 1,692.5
Taxation I8 (63.9) (236.1) (61.6) (334.4) (175.7)
Profit (loss) for the year REERF (EHE) 1,783.9 1,952.4 (313.8) 1,324.5 1,516.8
Attributable to: T3S -
Owners of the Company KAREER A 1,647.9 1,890.8 (292.4) 978.5 1,202.8
Non-controlling interests ~ FEiRfkiERS 136.0 61.6 (21.4) 346.0 314.0
Profit (loss) for the year AEERF (BE) 1,783.9 1,952.4 (313.8) 1,324.5 1,516.8
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL WSRO R E B
POSITION INFORMATION
At 31 March
MW3H31H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HE#ET BEBT BEBAT BEBT BEBT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&7 (&5 (&3]) (&7
Total assets BERAE 21,333.9 18,121.5 17,858.0 18,427.2 15,613.1
Total liabilities BERE (6,457.1) (5,179.7) (6,964.9) (6,985.4) (5,479.3)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (1,305.1) (1,157.5) (1,094.6) (1,118.5) (767.2)
Equity attributable to AREHEAA
owners of the Company FE(LRERS 13,571.7 11,784.3 9,798.5 10,323.3 9,366.6
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A. PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER A. FRfEBERE /R

Note: The Discovery Bay Project has a total site area of approximately 70

million sq. ft.. The remaining development area comprises a total

of about 153,905 sq. ft. of gross building area for residential

and commercial development and about 357,311 sq. ft. of gross

building area for recreational development.

DEVELOPMENT
Gross floor
area (sq. ft.)  Stage of Expected  Nature
Descriptions WEEEE  completion  completion date  of property
BR (EFR) =RER BHEHE WEME
1. The remaining phases, AE L =2
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island BTN EH
(@)  YiPak, Discovery Bay, AE L =2
Lantau Island =)
- Residential — =
— Remaining Phases — BT EH 357,034 Superstructure 2011  Residential
in progress F=
FETRRERF
- Commercial L ES 22,787  Construction 2012 Commercial
under progress [GES
Ti2tfTH
— Hotel —EE 269,100  Superstructure 2011  Hotel
in progress BIE
FETRRERF
(b)  Others (note) Hab (Hizt) 511,216  Not yet No definite  Retained for future
commenced plan development
AR E) T EETEE BERRER
2. PlotNo. 34, 174 and 257 REEA 862,717  Construction 2011  Residential
Soi Attakarnprasit 10120 Sathorn, under progress FE
Thungmahamek, Sathorn Soi Attakarnprasit TRgTH
Bangkok 10120 Thungmahamek,
Thailand 34~ 174 K% 257 53

it WRER B AMBREENR7T0BET

AR BRI ERLIEIEAELEES
#1563 905F HRZEEREEEE
Rt - AR A EmE 4 357,311F

TR RS R AN o
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

TR ERE

B. i BEWEM RS0

FOR RENTAL PURPOSES AR &
Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sq. ft.)  Nature of  the Group Category

Descriptions WEmmE  property KEE of lease

Bn (FHFR) WEHE FEiE#EZR MEER

3. 2houses located at Bijou Hamlet, RIE s asEmns 5392  Residential 100% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island 2ETERFRE FE i HA

4, 5 houses located at Headland Village, NI o= 2 B 12,836 Residential 100% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island SIEFEEFE = rh

5. 14 units comprising highrise, lowrise RIE L o= 2% 21,383  Residential 100%  Medium
and duplex apartments located at 14 {8 = R E L FE eh
Peninsula Village, EEFRE KR
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island B

6. 1 highrise apartment located at R L e =2 IE 1,068  Residential 100% Medium
Greenvale Village, Discovery Bay, 1 {EmEERL F=E A
Lantau Island

7. 37 highrise apartments located at RNE L= ERRe 23453  Residential 100% Medium
Parkridge Village, Discovery Bay, 37 (Bl BEE L =€ 8
Lantau Island

8. 6 midrise apartments located RNE L= 2 =ES 4522 Residential 100% Medium
at DB Plaza, Discovery Bay, 6 {El+ R B fis = 8
Lantau Island

9. 2 lowrise apartments located at RE L =&8EHN—EB& 2483  Residential 100% Medium
Siena One, Discovery Bay, 2 (B R B s E=c A
Lantau Island

10. 1 lowrise apartment located at RE L =&85HH -k 1315 Residential 100% Medium
Siena Two, Discovery Bay, 1 {BHE BB fir E=c A

Lantau Island
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TEDER

Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sq. ft.)  Nature of  the Group Category

Descriptions BEEEE  property AEE  of lease

Bn (EHFR) WxEHE FEfti#ER MEER

11. 1 lowrise apartment located at R =E8%R 976  Residential 100% Medium
La Vista, Discovery Bay, 1 {E{E AR B s F=E i
Lantau Island

12. 3 highrise apartments located at RIE L a5 2,197  Residential 100% Medium
Neo Horizon, Discovery Bay, A=A FE b
Lantau Island

13.  14/F of Century Tower Il and EB LA FIRER 15 3,663  Residential 100% Long
Car Parking Space, No. 12 on Level 1, R ISKAtLERE 1412 FE KH
Century Tower, Nos. 1 and 1A, KL REE 1 EEES
Tregunter Path, The Peak, Hong Kong 129784

14.  Flat 2 on 1st Floor, and Car Parking BREZEICREEAE 3,200 Residential 100% Long
Space No. 19 and One Roof Space 125 195RE M F=E R
Marked “5”, Bowen Mansion, AN
7C Bowen Road, Hong Kong

15. 6 highrise apartments located RERBBERI2% 6,652  Residential 100% Medium
at Coastal Skyline, 12 Tung Chung EXEFoEmRE F=E i
Waterfront Road, Tung Chung

16. 4 highrise apartments located FORRIER 4082  Residential 100% Medium
at Tung Chung Crescent, A AR AL FE b
Tung Chung

17. 14 highrise apartments located RBFRRSERSH 10,420  Residential 100% Medium
at Seaview Crescent, BIRERY 14 (85 BB F=E i

8 Tung Chung Waterfront Road,
Tung Chung
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Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sq. ft.)  Nature of  the Group Category
Descriptions BEEEE  property AEE  of lease
R (FAR) WEHEZ [Efb#Ez HEER
18.  8residential units and i ARERMB &M 17978  Residential 100% Long
10 car parking spaces of REGE|NK 10385 FE KH
Chelsea Residence, 169 R B EE
No. 169 of Lane 1038, Huashan Road, (BEF=EEM
Changning District, Shanghai, R 101E=Ef )
the People’s Republic of China
19. 2 highrise apartments located KU a2 228 1 1,438 Residential 50% Medium
at Peninsula Village, 2B s F=x 8
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island
20.  DIA Palace Sapporo H L% DIA Palace 44593  Residential 100% Freehold
Higashi Actio, Sapporo, Japan Sapporo Higashi Actio € KAFERE
21.  Horizon Place Akasaka, Tokyo, H % 3 Horizon Place 81,624  Residential 100% Freehold
Japan Akasaka FE KAFERE
22. Homat Sun, Tokyo, Japan H A = Homat Sun 57,521  Residential 100%  Freehold
F=E KA
23.  Commercial Centre, Discovery Bay, UL e =& ZE AR 180,910  Commercial 50% Medium
Lantau Island [SES F
24.  Shop 401, Coastline Villa, UL ) =& PO HR 7417  Commercial 50% Medium
Phase IV, Discovery Bay, B 401 E [EES 8
Lantau Island
25.  Commercial Centre, AN msE—rE 147,445  Commercial 50% Medium
Yi Pak, Discovery Bay, L [ A

Lantau Island
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Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sq. ft.)  Nature of  the Group Category
Descriptions BEEEE  property ALEE of lease
B (ERR)  xHE FEftiEs MEER
26. 22nd Floor, China Merchants Tower, B TEF 168-2005% 10,800  Commercial 100% Long
Shun Tak Centre, EERLBERAE 221 [EES st
168 — 200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong
27.  West Gate Tower, No. 7 NERDIEKRE 7% 146,531  Industrial 100% Medium
Wing Hong Street and FIBHET 8 R BHEH L T% ]
8 King Lam Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
28.  Joyce Building, No. 38 BEABRBTENEI®HR 89,157  Industrial 100% Long
Wong Chuk Hang Road, HIEHL I R
Aberdeen, Hong Kong
29. CDW Building, 382-392 HTARERIRE 27-37 5 982,777 Industrial 100% Medium
Castle Peak Road, H1L3E 382-392 5% T% A
27-37 Mei Wan Street, FEEHmAE
Tsuen Wan,
New Territories
30.  Prosun Building, FARALEREAEH 265 61,700  Industrial 100% Medium
2-6 Fui Yiu Kok Street, =P Ix hE]
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
C. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE C. FrfEiEmE
Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sq. ft.)  Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions BIEEEE  property AEE of lease
Bn (ERR)  HxHE etz MEER
31.  Neo Horizon, Discovery Bay, KU\ 1) = B0 1 791  Residential 50% Medium
Lantau Island FE A
32.  Chianti, Discovery Bay, RE L& w58 6,344  Residential 50% Medium
Lantau Island FE HEf
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR P‘P\OPE‘RT‘IES
FEWEFE
D. OTHER PROPERTIES D. HAptupE
Attributable
Site area interest to
(sq. ft.) Nature of the Group
Descriptions AR R property AEH
iR (ERR) L EL i) FE1h 1 25
33. Lot no.373RP and 374 in D.D. 352 KU ST2 4935257 23,400 Residential 100%
Lantau Island HoER 373 SRERER K2 374 5% — retained for future
development
FE
— BERRERE
34, Lotnos. 1735, 1737, 1979 and MAMELENENH 154,106 Agricultural lots 100%
portions of Lot nos. 1978 and HE% 17355 ~ 173757 (no definite plan)
2012 in Demarcation District no. 91, 19795541 E7 2 1978 B
Fanling, New Territories % 20125% 2 S HEL (EEERE)
35.  Various Lots in Demarcation District R L=/ & 150,282 Agricultural lots 50%
no. 363, Sam Pak, Lantau Island #)25 363 SR % A EL (no definite plan)
ERER
(EEERTE)
36. Section B and the remaining portion FEMHER 557 BER & 55 57,935 Agricultural lots 100%
of Lot no. 5, Section A and the HREL - 655 AR K 655 (no definite plan)
remaining portion of Lot no. 65 and FREL I B15% ~ 6657 « 675 B
Lot nos. 61, 66, 67 and 69, K 695 (EEEE)
Peng Chau
37.  Section C and the remaining FENH0ER 55 354 5% K% 346 5% 35,266 Agricultural lots 100%
portions of Lot nos. 354 and 346, CER R ERER (no definite plan)
Peng Chau B
(EEEaTE)
38.  Various Lots in Demarcation District KNI L|4T7K Diana Farm L& 222,592 Golf course 50%
no. 354, Diana Farm, Hang Sui, #)55 354 55 % EH B} (completed)
Lantau Island =RAS
(%T)
39.  The remaining portion of Lot no. 317 AT EAE 13258 1,394 Agricultural lots 50%

in Demarcation District no. 132,
Tuen Mun, New Territories

HER 317 2 B

(no definite plan)
R EY
(EEEE)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND INVESTORS' CALENDAR
A ER R EE s

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EHG

CHAIRMAN
ES

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson
EMELE

DEPUTY CHAIRMAN AND
MANAGING DIRECTOR
) e 3 o A B

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor
ERKELE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BT S

Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin
ERPEE

Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham”
EOAEE!

Mr TANG Moon Wah
BUmEES L

“Also alternate to Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson
IRIIBREBE L EREF

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BT E R

The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI
B{EEEE

Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson

ERMEEE

Mr CHEUNG Tseung Ming

REBALAE

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
RIKFRICEE

Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline
FTEEXELZL

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
B R PUAT RS

Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry

EIRAEE LT

Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin
SRERET

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta

gzt

Dr QIN Xiao

R L

AUDIT COMMITTEE
BEMLHE

Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry (Chairman)
R (FE)

The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI
BEEEES

Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin
REREL

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus

FROKFRICEE

Dr QIN Xiao

REEL

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

HMZ B

Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry (Chairman)
BRAE L (£/E)

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor

B IEE

Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin
REREL

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus

SRIKFRIEE

Dr QIN Xiao

REH T

COMPANY SECRETARY
A BbE

Ms MAK Sau Ching

BEEALL

REG!STERED OFFICE
a2
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman lIslands

PRINCIPAL OFFICE
TR

23/F, China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

BB THES 168-2005%

P ORBEBAE 2318

INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR

T S A% BT
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

2% o BAEMRTT SFTAITT

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
y 2 P
F AR BT
The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited
BB LBEZRITERAR
Standard Chartered Bank
BITERTT
Hang Seng Bank Limited
BAERITAR AR

SHARE REGISTRARS
JBe 388 5 3 i i

HONG KONG
it

Computershare Hong Kong

Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
BBPRBLERERAF]
BEAERANER1SIFEFF L1718
1712-1716 &

CAYMAN ISLANDS
P2 T

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.0. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

LEGAL ADVISORS
LA

HONG KONG LAWS
HilE

Reed Smith Richards Butler
B R ERNTT

Mayer Brown JSM
FFEATERTT

Kao, Lee & Yip
BT

CAYMAN ISLANDS LAWS
B 2 7 s 1 e

Maples and Calder

HKEX STOCK NAME
Wi 22 e e Ay 4 4

HKR Int'| 758 B3 B B

HKEX STOCK CODE
It 22 JB AR

00480

WEBSITE
Ak

www.hkri.com

INVESTORS' CALENDAR

P& Hub

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS
B 1 P %5

2011 Annual General Meeting
2014 BAUBAE R &

Thursday, 8 September 2011
201149 A8 H (25Hm)

2010/2011 Final Dividend
2010/201 1A 1B B,

Thursday, 15 September 2011 and
Friday, 16 September 2011
201149 A 158 (E£8mM) &
201149 A 16 H (2£8H)

PAYMENT DATE
URFEH

Thursday, 29 September 2011
201149 A 29 H (2£HiM)
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HKR

INTERNATIONAL LTD.
7 9 B B G

www.hkri.com

7 i BUE B AR A R A )
(RASRBEMK 2 BRAR)
BT B 16811 L AR B AE231E

HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
23/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
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